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We Do It Right. Easier said than done, our commitment is a serious

undertaking that carries a lot of weight.

This visionary principle forms the core of everything we do, from
market timing, location choice, architectural design to project
operation and talent development. The design of this year's annual
report highlights a number of precision measurement instruments:
professional tools relied upon for centuries to get the job done right,
to the most exacting criteria. At Hang Lung, we believe that measuring
up to our own meticulous standard is the best way to ensure
We Do It Right.

Our pledge of excellence is transforming the Group into the most
admired and leading national commercial property developer running

multi-city operations.
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Hang Lung Group Limited

Hang Lung Group Limited (stock code: 10) is one of the most established listed
companies in Hong Kong with more than 50 years of experience in the property
development market. Through Hang Lung Properties Limited (stock code: 101), we
have built a leading reputation as a top tier property developer in Hong Kong and on
the Mainland, with a recognized commitment to quality.

Hang Lung Group’s businesses in Hong Kong include property development for
sale and lease. Our substantial portfolio encompasses well-planned large-scale
commercial, office and residential developments in prominent locations.

We made our first investment on the Mainland in early 1990s as the foremost step
in our future business expansion. Adhering to the strategy of developing prime sites
in major cities, our portfolio of investment properties currently comprises two large-
scale developments in Shanghai — the commercial, office and residential complex
Grand Gateway 66, and the commercial and office complex Plaza 66. Coupling with
our prime landmark complexes of Parc 66 in Jinan, as well as Palace 66 and Forum
66 in Shenyang, we are vigorously building on our successes to develop similar
properties in major cities including Wuxi, Tianjin, Dalian, Kunming and Wuhan.

We will continue not only to expand our horizons on the Mainland, but also to invest
in our portfolio in Hong Kong, as we aim to become the most admired and leading
national commercial property developer of the highest quality in the market.
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Year ended Six months ended
December 31, December 31,
N s 2012 2011
WEBBETHE in HK$ million (K1)
(BREEFH) (unless otherwise stated) (Note 1)
BEHE Turnover
YHEBE Property leasing
B Hong Kong 3,185 1,564
R A Mainland China 3,526 1,604
YIEHE Property sales 1,275 193
e EoRy Total turnover 7,986 3,361
B BB (L 4 F) Net profit attributable to shareholders 5,262 1,578
i3S Dividends 1,066 512
BREM Per share data
ZH Earnings $3.90 $1.17
% 8 Dividends
Hh Interim $0.19 N/A
SR HR M2 Final Note 2 $0.60 $0.38
FEE Total $0.79 $0.38
A& R RS Shareholders’ equity $48.3 $44.9
BEFE Net assets $96.0 $89.9
R Shareholders’ equity 65,224 60,510
k2 EEE Payout ratio 20% 32%
=L EL Gearing ratio N3 0% 1%
EIARE4E Underlying Results
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Year ended Six months ended
December 31, December 31,
e a 2012 2011
BB EETATE in HK$ million (HiE1)
(BRSAETH) (unless otherwise stated) (Note 1)
BR R E L B AR AL ) e Underlying net profit attributable to
shareholders ot 4 3,564 1,000
GREEF HEs Earnings per share No°® $2.64 $0.74
ik 2 EE 2 Waks Payout ratio N5 30% 51%
MaE - Notes:
1 RZE—F AEEBVBRFEFEAHRAAS 1. In 2011, the Group changed its financial year end date from June 30 to December 31.
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As a result, the Group had a six-month financial period in previous year from July 1,
2011 to December 31, 2011.

2. The $0.38 represented final dividend per share for the six-month financial period from July

1, 2011 to December 31, 2011.

3. Gearing ratio represents net debt over equity plus net debt. Net debt represents bank

loans and other borrowings and finance lease obligations, less cash and deposits with
banks. Equity comprises shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests.

4. To facilitate better understanding of the Group’s operational results, the underlying

net profit attributable to shareholders is presented by excluding the effect of adopting
Hong Kong Accounting Standard 40, Investment Property which requires changes in
fair value of investment properties and investment properties under development, net of
related deferred tax and non-controlling interests to be accounted for in profit or loss.

5. The relevant calculations are based on the underlying net profit attributable to

shareholders.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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SUSTAINABLE RENTAL TURNOVER AND PROFIT GROWTH
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STRONG FINANCIAL CAPABILITY TO CAPTURE EXPANSION OPPORTUNITIES
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* 6-month period ended December 31, 2011, due to the change of financial year end
date from June 30 to December 31
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@ Interest cover represents operating profit before changes in fair value of investment
properties and investment properties under development and interest income divided

by net interest expenses before interest capitalization.
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The ruler is a measurement
tool calibrated for fine and
exact measurements. At Hang
Lung, we believe that living up
to our own stringent internal
benchmarks  ensures  the
utmost quality in all facets of
our operations.
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By holding ourselves to the highest
standards of excellence in every aspect o
our business, we strive to deliver fi

quality and create unparalle
our stakeholde




o

()

o o o = S

% o > s 2 i
€ e 35 £5r5 3,
.m.mh L_WMMH W%ew mum.m
@ o S B S S o oS Doz
W o © Bz = BT g

v
N —

—_— T T =

LR B | W Y |
\lUnETECALRRREg \BuEwa
TN ERIELARAEUEEN Baaae . -



SR HE

Determination Honesty

# 1=
Integrity

BNy
S
SN

R AL
s : s SRR
:‘*r _"'I T | v e O
_._u_ I'I.‘"l.i.l “LI- -. _|‘_ .l _!I:i:____. —e ik L




HREEhENEH  BE
PA 2R B R 8% E B8 AR A0 A B
7R o HEEREMN RS E

N G
IPLES

ii’f ’ fgiﬁ%ﬁﬁf&i Eim KRR  BERRNMBEEERF - KM
/ 5%;%% = REM BY 4+ BX =0 , e A N N -
Ly Invented in China, the compass Hﬁﬂ )
! has been used to plot routes 0 S .
ur principles guide our long-term

and identify directions since ) ) o
ancient times. Hang Lung's strategic planning, management decisions

R compass  guides and daily operations - making sure we

busi trat d .
B croedy an choose the best course for our business.
decisions, navigating the best

path to create long-term value
for our stakeholders.
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Diligence
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Perseverance
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Ronnie C. Chan

Chairman
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

As previously advised, we changed our financial period end
date from June 30 to December 31. To facilitate a more
meaningful comparison of performance between 2012 and
2011, we requested KPMG to audit historic results for the
entire twelve-month period of 2011. On a like-for-like basis,
turnover grew 27% to HK$7,986 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012 over the year before, and net profit
attributable to shareholders and earnings per share both

grew 64% to HK$5,262 million and HK$3.90, respectively.

When excluding all the effects of revaluation gain, the
underlying net profit attributable to shareholders surged
83% to HK$3,564 million. Underlying earnings per share
likewise advanced 83% to HK$2.64.

11
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SREAR K CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.60 per
share. Including the interim dividend already paid, total
dividends per share for the year ended December 31, 2012
would be HK$0.79. For the six-month period from July 1 to

December 31, 2011, we paid HK$0.38 per share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Because of the inexcusable failure of the Hong Kong
government to sell land in 2005-2010, our residential market
is totally distorted. Coupled with the Asian Financial Crisis in
1997-2002, SARS of 2003 and its aftermath in 2004, our city
has had a deficit of land supply for about a decade. Equally
devastating as not selling land was the negligence to build up
a government land bank for longer term needs. Such a stock
is necessary to serve as a buffer when property prices become
too high. Prolonged years of under supply finally exploded in
the past two years. Even so, the then government did pitifully

little to address the issue.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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As | predicted six months ago when our city’s new Chief
Executive first took office, proper steps would be taken to
remedy the situation for both the short and the long terms.
Indeed it came to pass. However, a decade-long problem
cannot be fully resolved in a few short months, especially
when it comes to real estate which is a long-dated asset.
Buildable land cannot be had within a short period of time,
and even if we have it, constructing residential units will take
many years. Given the circumstances, | believe the present
government is doing all it can. Desirable effects will unlikely

be seen for perhaps a year or so.

Some commentators not understanding market dynamics
have said that all the measures proposed or taken will not
solve the immediate problem. That may be true, but | do not
believe that there exists any short term solution which will
not induce longer term and serious negative conseqguences.
If adopted, such quick-fixes will inevitably leave the city in
a worse condition. Take an extreme case: the government
can use administrative measures to prohibit residential
transactions or cause the banks to stop making mortgages.
Prices will quickly fall, but is that a solution for society?

Obviously not.

13
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My question to those critics of the government is: what do you
propose? So far | have not heard of constructive suggestions
that would work reasonably well. It is always easy to criticize

but far more difficult to present workable plans.

So for now, our city will just have to collectively pay for the
mistakes — unintentional or intentional — of the previous
government. It is much better to exercise a little patience
for the medicine to take effect than to take poison to cure a

tough but not incurable disease.

Ironically, as the government errors of the past years drove
up prices, we became a beneficiary thereof (Nevertheless,
we for years have been among the strongest to encourage
the then government to release more land). As prices moved
up, we through our subsidiary Hang Lung Properties (HLP)
were able to sell some of our completed apartments at
successively higher prices. That process has been ongoing

for a few years.

For example, last May we parted with 108 units of The Long
Beach and achieved the highest profit margin ever. Our
hope was to sell several times that amount but we were
unfortunate to have announced the sales plan right before a
serious downdraft of the stock market caused by economic

problems in Europe. So we were forced to wait a little

15
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longer. HLP also parted with 9 units of The HarbourSide
and achieved a profit margin hitherto not seen. As | wrote
before, we will be happy to clear the entire stock at today’s
price. Unfortunately, for luxury or near-luxury products like

ours, transaction volume is somewhat limited.

Lest my readers think that management was coasting, we
identified a window of opportunity last year to do what |
have long alerted our shareholders, namely, to sell mature
non-core investment properties. Many of them have been in
HLP’s portfolio for over twenty years. We have always done
our best to maximize consistent return therefrom, but aging
still takes its toll. Maintenance and repair expenses inevitably

go up; rent increase was slow and growth potential limited.

Fortunately other players in the market with a different set
of circumstances and so a different risk profile may be able
to do something with them. So when they were willing to
pay with a cap rate of 4-5%, HLP was happy to unlock
value and recycle the capital. Five such major transactions
brought in cash of HK$5.3 billion with a realized profit of
about HK$2.1 billion. The latter figure represents a premium

of 77% over the revalued worth of June 30, 2012. Although

17
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more than once | have informed shareholders that our valuer
was probably among the most conservative, few believed
me. This was the major reason why researchers everywhere

had underestimated our underlying profit for the year.

The rent loss from the five transactions of 2012, plus two
others executed right before, accounted for approximately
11% of 2011 Hong Kong rental income. Even with that, total
Hong Kong rents collected in 2012 was still 3% higher than
the year before. Taking out the discontinued properties so

as to compare like with like, the increase was 9%.

Property market on the Mainland also underwent

considerable changes. Slower global and domestic
economies combined with Beijing’s austerity measures on
residential sales have kept the lid on prices and transaction
volume. But by the fourth quarter, both began to move,
and the momentum was carried over to the new year. That,
together with the observation that the local stock market
has recovered somewhat after about three weak years,
causes one to wonder if the slowdown in retail sales may

soon end. We certainly hope so.
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In terms of retail sales, our malls across the board performed
better in the second half of 2012 than in the first. Greatest
improvement came in Shanghai Plaza 66 which could be
partially explained by the re-opening of three top fashion
brand stores after expansion and renovation. All such works
were concluded by the third quarter. Shenyang Palace 66
also advanced by quite a bit, followed by Shanghai Grand
Gateway 66 and Jinan Parc 66. The trend seems to be

moving in the right direction.

PROSPECTS

It is plausible that the global economy in 2013 will improve
somewhat from that of last year. While we cannot expect
too much from Europe, the U.S. will hopefully pick up
some momentum. Against this backdrop, China, barring
unforeseen social issues, should not fare too badly. With

luck, it may outperform 2012.

One economic driver should be the further advancement
of urbanization which is emphasized lately by the incoming
Premier Mr Li Keqgiang. Under this scenario, consumer
spending should rise which can only benefit our retail rental
business. Increased commercial activities should then lead
to a greater need for office space. We are truly well positioned

to benefit from the next phase of China’s economic growth.

21



@ EERYACR K CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

mEHNEREES
Center 66, Wuxi

22 | BEEEERAT —T—_FFW  HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



(VRIS ZEVIEYETE R
B EAZ R
eSS AmE

BEEMEER

- HIEYE S
FEHEIE IR -
o NATEHS -

Z RSN ILAD

£
—ng

EHHEREESMERNENE
EEOTET  ERERGEASEEE
BN BRI AKE - KPR B ER
MREETHE  HPHAIR_-Z—N
FE—FEBA

EREGHTABERS - BHASH
RAEBEEREPAEBHNEEEFE
A R—FRIBBUSEEELL
HE o B EAS R AR 5 HIRK A #0 i
% EEGERAMIIRITARE o B
R REBE R BIA - BAIRK
REBRERANER T —NFFHHA
o RMIR B MEFRBEINESIA
A HE 5> BARR AR P SR A @R

R EX Pt e - NATEHIAME
TIREEE L —EE - WAKEMA
BB e B S EFIRIE - AA
I RENZEIN o EEHFTEKNEY
B BREER -FNmAER
&35 M AN R EG N ERE BS T

Still eight months ahead of the opening of the shopping
center at Wuxi Center 66, take up has been strong and at
satisfactory unit rents. By September, | expect that like all

our previous developments, the entire facility will be fully let.

Our first office tower to be completed outside Shanghai, the
first of two towers at Wuxi Center 66, is almost ready. We
have started leasing in earnest and tenants are expected to

move in from the first quarter of next year.

At Shenyang Forum 66, we once toyed with the idea to first
occupy the low zone of the first office tower with the higher
floors to be occupied a year or so later. Apparently such
partial opening of a skyscraper has never been done on the
Mainland and certainly not in Shenyang. It proved to be too
novel an idea and so we have decided to inaugurate the
entire building in early 2015. The extra rents received from

phased occupancy are not worth the risks.

Given the views expressed earlier, | expect that growth in our
Mainland rents should pick up further. | will not be surprised
if new unit rents in all our complexes improve. Together
with newly completed shopping centers, namely, the first
full year of operations at Forum 66 and the addition of

Wuxi Center 66, total rental income should be considerably
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higher than last year. Rental margin for the three recently
opened malls (Palace 66, Parc 66 and Forum 66) should
continue to advance. Occupancy everywhere is expected to

be basically full.

For our Hong Kong investment portfolio, 2013 should look
quite similar to last year in terms of rental growth rate. Extra
rents therefrom should more than compensate for the loss

of income from discontinued properties.

We are hopeful that there will again be opportunities to
sell completed apartments in meaningful quantities and at
satisfactory prices. On the other hand, after a year of many
transactions, the sales of non-core investment properties

may take a breather. There is however an odd case.

Due to technical reasons, a block of serviced apartments
called The Bay Bridge owned by this Company is being
sold through the assignment of company scripts. The sale
and purchase agreement was signed late last year but the
transaction will not be completed until early this year. Unlike
the sales of real asset, accounting rules dictate that profit
from the sale of shares will not be recognized until the deal
is closed. Because a market price has been established
when the transaction was struck, the property must be
revalued to that number at December 31, 2012. As a result,

the sale was not included among the 2012 transactions
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but the appreciated value was accounted for as part of
valuation gains for the year. In this case, the “profit” was
not inconsequential — we sold it for HK$901 million while the
value on the books at the time of sale was a mere HK$490

million. The margin was thus 84%.

Because we parted with many non-core investment assets
last year, it is perhaps unrealistic to expect higher total profit
in 2013. All will depend on how many completed flats we can
sell in the coming 11 months. Looking purely at our rental
business, chances are very good that we will outperform

last year.

Ronnie C. Chan
Chairman

Hong Kong, January 31, 2013
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With 10 major property developments commanding prime locations in

eight major cities across mainland China, Hang Lung is evolving into the
most admired and leading national commercial property developer.
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The sextant calculates distance
and position by comparing the
height of objects and measuring
the angles in between. Just like
the sextant, Hang Lung relies
on comprehensive, accurate
analyses of multiple data inputs
to guide our long-term growth.
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Every facet of our business works
together  precisely. We  carefully

tailor our strategy for each project,
delivering projects with faultless quality.
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At Hang Lung, we build our business on a serious
undertaking - We Do It Right. Leveraging precise
planning and dexterous execution to navigate through

a volatile global economic situation, the Group continued
to deliver solid growth in shareholder returns during

the year under review.
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In 2011, both Hang Lung Group Limited and Hang Lung Properties
Limited changed their financial year end date from June 30 to December
31. As a result, both companies had a six-month financial period in the
previous year from July 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011. Comparing
the current financial year ended December 31, 2012 with the previous
six-month financial period ended December 31, 2011, total turnover

was up 138% to HK$7,986 million.

To enhance comparability of performance between 2012 and 2011,
the below-mentioned comparison was made with the historic results
covering the 12-month period from January 1, 2011 to December 31,
2011, audited by KPMG.

Hang Lung Group delivered solid and defensive results in 2012,
with total turnover of HK$7,986 million, an increase of 27% when
compared with the year ended December 31, 2011. Underlying net
profit attributable to shareholders grew by 83% to HK$3,564 million,
resulting in an 83% increase in earnings per share to HK$2.64.

PROPERTY LEASING

Property leasing in Hong Kong and mainland China are the Group’s
core businesses, delivering consistently sustainable growth in rental
turnover and operating profit.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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EEMEEANERBHESREER
Our property portfolio in Hong Kong enjoys steady rental growth

HE-_Z——F+_-_A=+—HIt+=1  For the 12-month period ended December 31, 2012, overall rental
REIR - el A NEEERBD 2+E#  turnover increased by 10% to HK$6,711 million, riding on 3% growth
X+t E—TFT—E&t EFEEEE  in Hong Kong and 17% growth on the Mainland. Excluding the effect
Boz=  AMEEAS 2+t - Tzt of the disposed non-core investment properties, the overall rental
ADHERNERLEEMENTE - 18 tunover for Hang Lung Group would have grown as much as 13%.
FEEENEEHAeRASERE 2 T=- Rental operating profit grew by 10% to reach HK$5,313 million, up 4%
KESERMEINA S ZTEBER+T=18—  inHong Kong and 17% on the Mainland.

T8 HRFEAEME > 2 - A

HEMBE S 2T+ -

BB Hong Kong

CEFERN AEBEBETESWEMEAHN  Steady growth in our leasing portfolio in Hong Kong supported a 3%
BEASETIER  AFHHALWA LA increase in rental tumnover to HK$3,185 million, which contributed to
PREEBE=+—EBNTHEET &  operating profit of HK$2,645 million, up 4% for the year. Excluding the
BN EFABD2EEBE —_+/5EET  effect of the disposed investment properties, rental turnover of Hong
AEHET - M T ARHENREMER  Kong investment properties would have been up 9%.

T BBEREMENESKAEINE D

2T

N-ZB——F  EBHEMHEMAS(EAE  In2012, the Group’s Hong Kong property leasing portfolio contributed
EHeWAREED 2+t - 47% of total rental turnover.
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Mainland China
Mainland China leasing operations achieved total rental turnover
of HK$3,526 milion, up 17% compared to the previous year.
Correspondingly, profit rose to HK$2,668 million, representing an
increase of 17%.

In September 2012, Forum 66 in Shenyang opened with an impressive
100% occupancy rate. The property delivered rental turnover of HK$70
million in its first three months of operations.

In Shanghai, Plaza 66 and Grand Gateway 66 achieved consistently
high occupancy rates. The two properties contributed HK$2,927
million in rental turnover to the Group, achieving an increase of 7%
compared to the previous year.

BEmEREESTBEEREESHZEMN TS MR
Both Plaza 66 and Grand Gateway 66 enjoy prestigious market positions and reputations

HABLEEFPHEHASESNENERES
MBELREEEES Z AT/ BES
EEMERFB LA ZTH - BHE
L EERASRNTE  BmMET L
AESZ—BA—THEZEKENTHES
TC e tbSh - ERMIERES BT 2
o REESRABE =B THAE
T BREFERASZ-BAATLE -

Initiatives to optimize the tenant mix at Palace 66 in Shenyang caused
a slight dip in occupancy rate to 88%. However, this strategic reshuffle
has already enhanced profit margins by 15%, more than offsetting
any temporary effects in occupancy. As a result, profit rose 114% to
HK$45 million. In addition, Parc 66 in Jinan — which is almost fully let —
generated rental turnover of HK$365 million, up 197 % year on year.
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53% of total rental turover was contributed by the Group’s property
leasing operations in mainland China for the year ended December 31,
2012.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

The Group opened the shopping mall at Forum 66 — our second project
in Shenyang — on September 28, 2012. As testament to the nationwide
prestige of our renowned “66” brand, the property has been fully leased
to more than 150 tenants since opening day. Forum 66 is the Group’s
largest project under construction, with a total gross floor area of
1,060,000 square meters. The complex will also feature office towers,
a hotel and serviced apartments upon completion.

We hosted a groundbreaking ceremony for Spring City 66 in Kunming,
the capital city of Yunnan Province, on November 28, 2012. This
project marks our entry into the southwest region of mainland China,
and represents a major business milestone for the Group. Sitting at the
core of the central business district, Spring City 66 is centrally located
in the business and commercial heart of Kunming. The prime 56,000
square-meter site is the future home of a world-class shopping mall,
Grade A office tower and serviced apartments.

Pre-leasing activities have commenced in preparation for the Phase 1
launch of Center 66 in Wuxi, which is scheduled to open in 2013.

The Group’s other development projects on the Mainland are
progressing well according to schedule.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group maintained a healthy and robust balance sheet, with cash
and bank deposits of HK$40,183 million as at December 31, 2012.
After deducting total borrowings of HK$37,645 million, we had a net
cash balance of HK$2,538 million. Further enhancing our financial
flexibility, we issued, through a wholly-owned subsidiary of our main
subsidiary, Hang Lung Properties Limited, an equivalent of HK$5,799
million of 10-year fixed rate bonds under the Medium Term Note
(MTN) Program.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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The Group maintains ample capacity to finance all development
projects on hand, with sufficient capital reserves to capture promising
business opportunities as they arise.

OUTLOOK

The volatile macro environment will continue to affect market sentiment
and, in turn, domestic spending. However, our experience and financial
strength will allow us to minimize potential challenges posed by
unstable markets while simultaneously taking advantage of attractive
land acquisition opportunities to fuel future growth. In the mid to long
term, urbanization in China would be a boost for consumption and thus
benefit the Group.

Our properties in Hong Kong command excellent locations, supported
by refined tenant mixes, upgraded facilities and active promotion
campaigns, and will continue to pose healthy and steady growth. With
an eye firmly on the real estate environment, we closely monitor the
market to capture the most favorable timing for sale of residential units.

The Group also anticipates steady business growth on the Mainland, with
Phase 1 of Center 66 in Wuxi being on track for launch in 2013. Expanding
our presence nationwide, other developments bearing the renowned “66”
brand are scheduled to come on line over the next few years.

In February 2013, Hang Lung successfully acquired a prime site
for commercial property development in Wuhan, Hubei Province.
Ideally located on Jinghan Avenue in the bustling Qiaokou District,
the commercial and business heart of Wuhan with light rail and
mass transit railway accessibility, the land has a net site area
of approximately 82,637 square meters. It is also close to two
renowned commercial zones, namely Wuguang and Zhongshan
Avenue. With an investment amount of about RMB12 billion, the
new site is to be developed into a commercial complex comprising
a world-class shopping mall, office towers and serviced apartments
with a maximum floor area of about 460,000 square meters for long-
term investment. The acquisition extends the geographic spread
of our presence into the largest and most important city in central
China and adds further to our Mainland portfolio.

Hang Lung is developing into the most admired and leading national
commercial property developer running operations in multiple major
cities across mainland China, leveraging skillful execution of our growth
strategy with a firm focus on long-term development.
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When it comes to commercial property, location is
everything. Our business strategy revolves around
building the finest quality projects in premium locations.

B E  WEBWEMAETISIESE  Although turbulence in the global economy continued to affect
MOREE o AT BB ERE - AW3|  Hong Kong's leasing market, the Group’s shopping malls and office
DB RS A A R A H - A%EE  developments maintained steadily high occupancy rates of 96% and
HEYRISE MR AEHREREESRIBD  93%, respectively, through strategic planning, attractive promotional
RBESZATAERES 2N T=857K  campaigns and effective cost controls. Rental turnover and profit
¥ EMREAA  WMEESWAREF S increased by 3% to HK$3,185 million and 4% to HK$2,645 million,
FIEEBENZ=REN M - EEZHBE = respectively, due to positive rental reversion.
T—ENATHEEELREE _+XENT

ABHETT
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During the year under review, we disposed of non-core investment
properties including Star Centre, Park Towers, Laguna Plaza, Park
Building and Stanhope House to optimize our Hong Kong property
portfolio. Disposal of non-core investment properties recorded a
turnover of HK$5,304 million. The gain on disposal of HK$2,149 million
was recorded as Other Income.

Excluding the effect of the disposal of non-core investment properties,
the growth in rental turnover would have been 9%.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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“Savour Life « Coffee Time” organized by Fashion Walk
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COMMERCIAL

In prime districts such as Causeway Bay, Mongkok and The Peak, the
performance of the Group’s core properties remained stable despite
a slowdown in Mainland tourist arrivals and the associated effect on
consumption. Atthe same time, local household consumption continued

to support steady growth at regional shopping malls like Amoy Plaza
and Kornhill Plaza. For the 12-month period ended December 31,
2012, rental turnover in Hong Kong increased by 6% to HK$1,619
million, building on a steady performance from our flagship shopping
malls. Excluding the effect of the disposed non-core properties, rental
turnover would have increased by 11%.

a2k

Partnership

BHMEREEFPHNRARME -
BfIRaERE  BMME
NENTISEFEE RHEE
BIEIE AR - HAEIER -
We value our long-term
relationships with tenants and
treat them as partners. Working
closely with our tenants across
different markets, we generate
mutual success by creating an
exceptional lifestyle experience
for shoppers.

mEH
Passy Wong

BREE — AR RMEER
Senior Manager - Leasing & Management
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Paving the way for long-term sustainable growth at our developments,
we continued to invest in upgrading the Group’s core properties during
the year under review. We continuously fine-tuned our tenant mixes to
appeal directly to target audiences, supported by a bustling schedule
of promotional activities designed to attract shoppers with unique
lifestyle experiences.

New flagship tenants, including AEON Supermarket and Pacific Coffee
Emporium at Fashion Walk in Causeway Bay, have formed a strong
nucleus of popular lifestyle attractions in the Group’s property portfolio. A
complementary campaign of brand-building events, such as the “Savour
Life « Coffee Time” and “Halloween@Fashion Walk” celebrations, drew
heavy crowds to Fashion Walk and Hang Lung Centre.

At The Peak Galleria, a rebranding campaign highlighted the mall as
an icon of Hong Kong style and culture, and a distinctive wedding
venue. Working together with Hong Kong Art School and supported by
the Hong Kong Tourism Board, we held “Hong Kong Fantasia at The
Peak”, thrilling visitors with a dazzling display of lights and synchronized
sound effects at The Peak. The outdoor fagade show — which was held
from September 29 to October 7, 2012 — inspired audiences to further
explore Hong Kong’s unique style, history and character. Solidifying
The Peak Galleria’s position as a unique Hong Kong wedding venue,
the mall played host to nuptial celebrations at our “12.12.12 The Peak
of Love” wedding ceremony.

IWTa SRR [1EREBEILIE]
“12.12.12 The Peak of Love” organized by The Peak Galleria
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LEARNscape

ElIaES [FIaSEH]
Komnhill Learnscape at Kornhill Plaza

BPNMERRDEMEMOUE - BBE
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BEREDNKMETMENSKTERNES
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AR  BMAEFEFLETT REE
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FEEEMNEAEH EMEXER -
BMEESHOERPME  8FE Nt
(Rolex) + ##t (Tudor) & Collect Point * %

BAPTAERESHEZRRE  BHE
AXR - WREBSER ° st - RF3
EEZRFEIRABELRERBOHELE
[ERIaSM ] - MBI EZFERERRIEES o

FRITERE  HEEAR  WEAER
WEEEISYMERLEY - ARERER
BITIRITRKEMNREZEEETRN - T2
SERIERSIAFERP - R RMNYE
HEEEREBLRBHERHEBERR -

Leveraging mobile data technology to keep customers conveniently
updated with the latest offers and events at our properties, we
introduced iPhone applications for Fashion Walk and The Peak Galleria.

Maijor renovation works at Grand Plaza (previously known as Grand
Tower) in Mongkok created two new duplex retail shops — which are a
highly sought-after rarity in the district’s prime shopping area. We also
welcomed new tenants including Rolex, Tudor and Collect Point, which
have been warmly received by enthusiastic shoppers.

We introduced several new food and beverage outlets at Kornhill Plaza,
providing a wide variety of cuisines and luring additional foot traffic to the
shopping mall. We also introduced more tenants, which provide different
educational services, to Kornhill Learnscape, drawing more family-
oriented traffic to the mall.

Limited supply is fueling correspondingly high demand for prime retail
locations in the premium Central district. We are currently renovating
the commercial podium in Standard Chartered Bank Building, and will
introduce new tenants upon completion — upgrading the quality of our
portfolio while enhancing the overall performance of our Hong Kong
leasing operations.

L EEFIRIEITIRITARE
Standard Chartered Bank Building in Central
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OFFICE AND INDUSTRIAL/OFFICE

Total rental turnover increased by 5% to HK$1,097 million for the
12-month period ended December 31, 2012, based on a steady 93%
occupancy rate.

Although the office leasing market began to slow in the second quarter
of 2012, pricing and occupancy rate at the Group’s office and industrial
properties remained stable. Our strategy of creating themed zones
for office buildings continued to generate steady rental turnover from
properties including Hang Lung Centre in Causeway Bay, Kornhill Plaza—
Office Tower in Quarry Bay and Grand Plaza in Mongkok.

New high quality tenants moved into the retail space at our office
buildings at Duddell Street in Central, including Lalique and the flagship
five-story 18,000-square-foot Shanghai Tang Mansion. The improved
tenant mix is transforming the area into a lifestyle destination, which
is subsequently driving follow-on demand from office tenants. By
diversifying our tenant mix with a greater proportion of semi-retail
tenants at the Duddell offices, we have increased rental turnover and
mitigated risks from the unstable economic environment.

Looking to increase rental yields and create greater risk resilience
against uncertain markets over the long term, the Group will continue
to diversify trade sectors and broaden our tenant mix.

RIRERZ R — 5%
1 Duddell Street, Central
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RFFEABEFPHES  AEBERINERENRE
BRRNEBETERRERF  BHEEER
# BB EHRERTF - HFINE
BEFPBIERE  KAMEPF - SMEALH
BE - YEEEEATEPARN  LARGE
EEH -

EZUNNSXIVAESE-

We Care for Every Guest

BREDREMEMBEE - BRMETRRE
T EBHBE o mEAFIE TIEEE -
BB R FIR AL LRI TR RO RE O IR

With warm smiles and a friendly greeting every
day, we enjoy building close relationships with
all our residents. Our passion and enthusiasm
make the difference and inspire us to deliver
the highest standards of services.

RESIDENTIAL AND SERVICED APARTMENTS

Total rental turnover for 2012 was HK$341 million. Instability in
worldwide markets has tightened housing budgets — leading to low
expatriate family arrivals from the banking and financial sector and
slowing demand for luxury apartment units.

As a result, the Group has branched out into new industries
such as fashion and apparel, information technology, trading and
pharmaceuticals — which are becoming major sources of expatriate
family movements. We are targeting corporate accounts, local
households, overseas expatriates and visitors, and will continue to
diversify our client base to deliver steady returns.

METR
Winco Lam
BREPRBEE —HE

Senior Guest Services Supervisor,
The Summit
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The Summit encompasses a complex of 54 glamorous duplex suites
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In line with global trends, we expect to see a moderate downward
adjustment in average rental of luxury residences over the next 12
months. In response, we are introducing more flexible leasing terms
while embracing an increasingly diversified tenant mix. To drive optimal
rental returns, we are also committed to continuously improving our
serviced apartments, such as The Summit and Burnside Villa.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



BBRB YR 2RI DT
Geographical Analysis of Hong Kong Investment Properties
#¥+=A=+—H At December 31

BEEEE (FFAK)
Total Gross Floor Area* ('000 sg. m.)
2012 2011
BE Hong Kong Island
FIRKEEE Central and Admiralty 51 58
e KB Causeway Bay and Wan Chai 92 112
Bt M R0 Kornhill and Quarry Bay 135 165
ITE R L= The Peak and Mid-Levels 47 47
BEEE Hong Kong South 12 12
i Kowloon
A Mongkok 140 140
EQVLENS T Tsim Sha Tsui and West Kowloon 88 89
SEEAREE Ngau Tau Kok and Kwun Tong 78 98
R - 2% - 28 K&HPFY  Cheung Sha Wan, Kwai Chung, Tsuen Wan and 123 166
Tuen Mun
Et Total 766 887

Y BREESZBEEE

Including gross floor area of car parks

BEREYE AN

Segmental Analysis of Hong Kong Investment Properties
HZE+=A=+—HILLFE For the years ended December 31

BIZEEE HARBEA Ficlaap:s
(FFF7K) (E%E&8T) (ADL)
Total Gross Floor Area Rental Turnover Occupancy Rate
(000 sg. m.) (HK$ million) (%)
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Gk Commercial 262 287 1,619 1,524 96 94
?ﬁ?’&%{& Office and Industrial/Office 223 291 1,097 1,048 93 93
T¥/HnE
FEREM Residential and Apartment 88 99 341 383 74 83
=85 Car Park 193 210 128 124 N/A N/A
BEt Total 766 887 3,185 3,079 91 92
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AREBHEETNSEEEESA LB The uncertain global economy, increased land supply and tightened
FRsghn+ bt e R IR B R - fIInEMmE  government policies — such as the Buyers’ Stamp Duty - affected
KEER - ABEBWEHEEMSHMN -ZF  consumer sentiment in Hong Kong, resulting in consolidation of the

—ZFHIREEME o property sales market in 2012.

R R ESHEBEMIEREEWETAR  However, demand remains enthusiastic for top quality residential

TR o REEFERALENIEERM  properties in prime locations. Capitalizing on our assets, the Group is

MTSHEELEER - AETEFEBAl  optimizing the value of our residential developments for both end-users

EHRANEE YLARMRE—HZE - and our shareholders by offering homes of distinctive quality to the
market through a rigorously disciplined sales approach.

CEFERN  RFICERKEEYE B3  We captured several windows of opportunity to launch property sales
EHREE—FHZT /@ BERATAMEME  during the year under review, including 108 residential units at The Long
FEARHAM - A HEMNBE ) {EN T+ Beach, nine units at The HarbourSide and others, which generated an

BEIT e aggregate profit of HK$847 million.

R THE LONG BEACH

EEsEFEEEMNRAEADE - Featuring a premium address in southwestern Kowloon, The Long
BRENEERUZEEMESSNEERE - Beach is a high-end residential complex that includes 1,829 residential

RBE—TNEZ_+TAEFE=EEA - IFH  units spread across eight towers. The development also features a

SENNEARRNREETEE —REE

High-end residential complex in southwestern Kowloon — The Long Beach
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The HarbourSide offers stunning 180-degree views of Victoria Harbour

PO & = e TR AR X 55 & P S 87 37 R 4ERR T -
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H—F—Ba_t-_RAEL - —FT—=F
N ZYEEBNEER -

ERE

EEMNEFHERES WRNRER
B BEEEET/\BR+HFHK A
R-T—=FFK - ZRBRAEBRER
S [ R MIRFERA R | (F
TR A M R IR E EF AR -

unique wave-inspired design, spectacular sea views and a four-story
best-in-class clubhouse with the latest recreational facilities. During
2012, a total of 108 units were sold.

THE HARBOURSIDE

The HarbourSide offers stunning 180-degree views of Victoria
Harbour, cutting-edge architectural design and a full complement of
modern lifestyle facilities. Towering above southwestern Kowloon,
this top-of-the-line residential complex commands prestige with
1,122 units in three inter-connected 65-story towers. Nine units
were sold during 2012.

BLUE POOL ROAD

With a prime location on Blue Pool Road in Happy Valley, this 7,850
square-meter site is scheduled for completion in 2013. This green
residential development is the first project in the world registered
under the LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design)
for Homes International Pilot Scheme launched by the U.S. Green
Building Council.
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HPVARINIEE - ERIFHOEEER RS BNTS
We enter the right markets with the right projects at the right time

AEENYEL R AGERNERETHE - mERE A
o — (B2 BRI EES -
Showcasing modern architecture and design,

the Group's properties form a nationwide portfolio of
city landmarks across mainland China.

HE-_T——F+-HA=+—HI1t+=18  Total rental turnover from property leasing in mainland China rose 17%
REIA - RERE A ESHES WAL  to HK$3,526 milion during the 12-month period ended December 31,
BEABSZTEEBB=+RE=FT 2012

A& °

RPARIFOIEE @ ERIFOBHEES SR We enter the right markets with the right projects at the right time. Hang
BEMNTS - EABMTMEZEEBKHE  Lung was an early pioneer amongst Hong Kong property developers
BHERRERE  BREENALTERYICE  in expanding operations nationwide throughout China. We established
AR A - WHIAITE —E#EA T 54  a presence on the Mainland in the early 1990s and began building
EEEB MM TIIZNMEMLESERIE  a portfolio of world-class commercial complexes and city landmarks
B o BIETHIEMFRNEHRMEB#MZEN  for long-term investment. The success of our national property leasing
B RMABE—E2REHEEWEAS  portfolio is built on a solid foundation of on-the-ground experience and
BSTERK TN B ERE © a solid track record of development.
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—E-FMEP - EAREERRMTES
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FRERBZEE LK
China’s first Louis Vuitton Maison

BEES - £8

CIEEER - LENERBESNESEA L
AR ZUEEETOELTERET
EEFRAEEN SRR - REREL
FEEIEAASEOET AR RBIFNIAKL
BERTEREIEME -

BE = HEAE A2 5 3 B (Dior Homme) fE 5§
ft(Hermes) MRS IEm/E ER - AR EH
BRI S EE 2 Z (Louis Vuitton Maison)
BERE ZBYESRTEEFENE
MMASRACKERH - ELIRIKEE
—ENRFMEE  BEEBRENSIE
EZmBINER » #45 (Roger Vivier) »
Bk (Celine) « BMEEE (Bvigari) « B4k
I5E (Giorgio Armani) F#t E= 44 (Dolce &
Gabbana) E k58 K1 Rz - &IE B
HREZER I 3 — 22 SR AR
BT LB EEMA -
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The grand opening of our shopping mall at Forum 66, our second
project in Shenyang, in September 2012 was one of the highlights
of the year. Fully leased upon opening, the development contributed
HK$70 million to rental turnover in only three months of operations and
has further cemented our foothold in the city. The mall’s success is
helping to drive the overall momentum of the Group’s Mainland leasing
portfolio.

PLAZA 66, SHANGHAI

During the year under review, rental turnover from Plaza 66 in Shanghai
increased 4% to HK$1,475 million. Growth in turnover was relatively
moderate due to extensive renovation and upgrading works at the
shopping mall carried out during the first half of the year, combined
with a general slowdown in retail consumption.

Traffic and sales revenue rebounded during the second half of the
year with the re-opening of the mall’s Dior Homme and Hermeés
flagship boutiques, as well as the grand opening of China’s first Louis
Vuitton Maison. These global design icons anchor a high-end stable
of luxury brands including Roger Vivier, Celine, Bvigari, Giorgio Armani
and Dolce & Gabbana, creating a strong synergy that is accelerating
foot traffic and boosting retail sales, further strengthening the Group’s
leading position in Shanghai.
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B ESE EBHEABLNREMN

Plaza 66 enjoys a superior leading position in Shanghai
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ZHEEBR T =Fa5T R IMNEEE
T2 RARESEZE (Louis Vuitton) ~ 5
ft(Hermes) ~ L7 (Prada) ~ #E (Dior)
MR8 (Cartier) FHEEHS - HRMBHE
LERTFE - ARG TERRENRBATE
BHRE -

FA - _EENERESOHRABHELRRS
EADZNATIANERKYE - HEWARS
RS ZE - FEFER - THRATE
BORAESEHRE  BRENFE=FHEE

iy,

priority, which we achieve by providing
friendly, responsive and professional
customer service. We strive to create

e
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ ) ///////////%//// /

L SR

Service Excellence

BN EEEBRAEREREREM
EEORE - FAIEORE - B
ANEEER - WIROEBYIRER o

Shoppers’ satisfaction is our top

a unigue and pleasurable shopping
experience for our customers.

Development of a new external fagade is scheduled for completion in
the first quarter of 2013, showcasing anchor tenants including Louis
Vuitton, Hermes, Prada, Dior and Cartier. We will be refocusing our
selection of tenants to optimize the mall’s positioning for long-term
sustainable growth.

Occupancy rate at Plaza 66’s office towers remained impressively high
at 99%, with stable rental turnover up 5% during the year. Rental returns
increased on recovering sentiment during the first half of the year before
stabilizing with the market in the third quarter. Highlighting the Group’s

2=

Liu Ting
SRR — BEEEES
Customer Service Assistant —
Shopping Mall, Grand Gateway 66
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Edmonds A7 %58 « B/ £ (Pierre Balmain
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R B (Gucci) * Bottega Veneta ~ M%EE
2 (Chaumet) * AMP£E(Jimmy Choo) + &
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commitment to environmental sustainability, both Office Towers 1 and 2
at Plaza 66 were awarded “Precertification under Leadership in Energy
and Environmental Design (LEED) for Core and Shell Development —
Gold Level” issued by the U.S. Green Building Council.

As our existing anchor tenants’ demand for space increases, they
are providing a steadily rising baseline of support for both occupancy
rate and rental turnover. Riding on a strong tenant growth, the Group
expects to see continued stable growth in rentals during 2013.

GRAND GATEWAY 66, SHANGHAI
Rental turnover at Grand Gateway 66 grew 10% to HK$1,452 million
during the year under review despite continued pressure on the retail
sector and on high-end luxury brands in particular. Profit increased
correspondingly by 11% to HK$1,185 million.

iﬁfﬂtlj B INERY Znﬂ—hﬂﬁ%ﬂ@?
Grand Gateway 66 has achieved a consistently high occupancy rate of 99%

FBIEEIEE
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Grand Gateway 66 in Shanghai
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Outlet location, shopping environment, targeted consumers and tenant
mix are critical decision factors for luxury brands entering new markets.
With its distinctively upmarket business positioning, Grand Gateway
66 has a proven track record of success in attracting premium luxury
brands entering the Mainland. In 2012, the mall welcomed a number
of leading international retail brands, including Allen Edmonds and
Pierre Balmain Shoes & Bags — which both chose Grand Gateway 66
to launch their retail operations in mainland China. They joined other
world-renowned tenants like Gucci, Bottega Veneta, Chaumet, Jimmy
Choo, Diane von Furstenberg, MCM, Anteprima and Kate Spade in
drawing throngs of enthusiastic shoppers to the mall, contributing
towards a consistently high occupancy rate of 99%.

This year, the serviced apartments at Grand Gateway 66 were named
“Best Overall” in the “2012 Best Homes in Shanghai” awards organized
by CITY WEEKEND lifestyle magazine, earning the recognition and
respect of the industry.

Office Tower 1 at Grand Gateway 66 was awarded “Precertification
under Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) for Core
and Shell Development — Gold Level” issued by the U.S. Green Building
Council, confirming our commitment to sustainable development.

In the coming year, the Group is expecting the new government will
focus on maintaining stability and momentum in the markets. As such,
Shanghai remains a very attractive base for international luxury brands
seeking to expand into the Mainland market — which dovetails perfectly
with Grand Gateway 66’s unique market position. Welcoming new
world-class tenants to the mall in 2013, we are constantly refining
and strengthening the mall’s tenant mix to maintain its position as a
destination for high-end shopping experience in Shanghai, and to bring
healthy growth in both the top line and the bottom line.

PALACE 66, SHENYANG

We are optimizing our tenant mix to maximize long-term rental returns
at Palace 66. Occupancy rate temporarily dipped slightly to 88%
due to the process — however the reorganization is already showing
dividends. Rental margin and profit increased by 15% and 114%,
respectively, during the year.
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ML B RG RIES 2 EERES

Palace 66 has introduced a collection of international designer brands

BIRR - ERERS mEES - )3
TREBYERGIE - ZROEHI0LT
EE M AApe M H&M &£ B &) Monki &+ 1
EERENEREESEAREEPERILME
RITR2E - FPIUR3I A Juicy Couture ~ lijin &
G-Star Raw EF SRk - 2% [EE L
R R Mg N 2 B 5% (Starbucks) ~ KFF
Ik (Pacific Coffee) * Arita Dessert M 82
BRANERAEME - UK AERSNZLE
P W RIBERER ©

SWERESHTERFRALE - %5
BHUGCGERBERMEE —_T——F+ A
2B EHERTRREEER - +—AMNE
Bl SEE5E#F = © ™ Miss Sixty Fl CKA4-{F
18 (CK Jeans) & #AHE BB ERENE
PR E=TEERBILEEE -
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Shoppers are drawn by our refreshed collection of international
designer brands, with many choosing Palace 66 as the base for their
retail debuts in northeastern China — including I.T Group’s AApe and
Monki under the H&M Group. Young and trendy brands like Juicy
Couture, lijin and G-Star Raw were also introduced. Rounding out the
tenant mix is a core of leading food and beverage brands that are a
proven draw for foot traffic, including Starbucks, Pacific Coffee, Arita
Dessert and Han Sheng Barbecue.

The mall is delivering an exceptional performance from our retalil
tenants. UGG’s footwear boutique in Palace 66 set a new sales record
in November 2012, after achieving top sales income of all stores
nationwide in October. The mall’s Miss Sixty and CK Jeans outlets were
also the top sales performers amongst their numerous retail outlets
in Shenyang.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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BrENEEESENRE RS
Parc 66 celebrated its first anniversary

Titans International MMA Club and Fitness, Jolyvia Beauty,
Eastern Renowned and Kaku Children Playgroup are currently
renovating premises for opening in the near future; and we look
forward to attracting even more lifestyle brands and foot traffic in
the coming year.

Despite the challenges of intense market competition and economic
uncertainty, Palace 66 is staying ahead of the market by optimizing
our tenant mixes to maximize the appeal for target shoppers. We will
continue to leverage internal strengths to remain a leader in Shenyang’s
retail market.

PARC 66, JINAN

Parc 66 offers a completely new lifestyle experience —a comprehensive
package of premium dining, shopping, leisure and entertainment
facilities. The mall celebrated its first anniversary in August 2012,
marking a milestone year of success with rental turnover up 197% to
HK$365 million. Enjoying a high occupancy rate of 97%, the project’s
rental margin improved to 51% during the year.
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By introducing light food and beverage outlets on selected floors, we
have created a comfortable environment for shoppers to relax and
recharge. We introduced a Jurassic-themed zone as well as a children’s
playground on Level 5 and also launched a Kids Club — which offers
entertainment and educational activities as well as special discounts
on purchases — to enhance the family-friendly atmosphere of the mall.
Tenants offering related products and services have experienced
improved footfall and revenues from our renewed family focus.

Gathering recognition from the industry, Parc 66 won a Gold Award
in the 2012 ICSC Asia Pacific Shopping Center Awards in the “New
Developments”
section, as well as a Gold Award for “Sustainable Design”. Echoing
that success, the mall also earned a Silver Award for “Best Retail and
Leisure Development” at the MIPIM Asia Awards 2012.

category under the “Design and Development”

FORUM 66, SHENYANG

Forum 66 celebrated its grand opening on September 28, 2012, and
contributed rental turnover of HK$70 million during its first three months
of operations. It is the Group’s largest project under construction and
our second landmark development in Shenyang.

EERTTERESR —F—
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Forum 66 in Shenyang celebrated its grand opening on September 28, 2012
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EyE RAERBCEE2HEL  SEBA
—BATXREFP ER T DHRLEE
FmBEUTRERESERE MEERS
FHPERIEMEEREHNEZS R - &
A5 (Chanel) » &AMIFE (Giorgio
Armani) ~ A7 X %5 fm (Ralph Lauren)
A o #EHETE (Roger Vivier) ~ Efga R
W (Valentino) B +~#Hz(Baccarat) ° ©
PEEMERE S REER - 81
Bottega Veneta + Rt as (Cartier) + Bk
(Celine) « EE & (Dunhill) - ERITH o
JERI 155 (Salvatore Ferragamo) ~ & =&
(Loewe) ~ #ZEE (Tiffany & Co.) RIFEHT
(Tod’s)% * T REREEE - TBH AEB MR
KA R MR E R B ER I AR
B EEBEMNEERTEMSRNER
BAE -

RRRZE
The Detalls Make
the Difference

BN ITIERERE TR BIEME -
M OMIRATIE - BHBEBRETNZ
2HNEFE - RSB IRERER -

Our work demands careful attention
to details, as well as patience
and dedication to the job. We are
committed to the safety and comfort
of our customers, and to protecting
the well-being of our environment.

With 101,960 square meters of retail space and more than 2,000
car park spaces for shoppers’ convenience, Forum 66 has been
fully leased to more than 150 world-class luxury brand tenants
since opening. Chanel, Giorgio Armani, Ralph Lauren, Roger Vivier,
Valentino, Baccarat and many others have chosen Forum 66 for their
first stores in Shenyang or northeast China — joining other internationally
renowned brands like Bottega Veneta, Cartier, Celine, Dunhill,
Salvatore Ferragamo, Loewe, Tiffany & Co. and Tod’s. Forum 66 offers
an exceptional lifestyle experience for trendy and affluent shoppers in
Shenyang, and is expected to take a leading role in the luxury retail
market in Shenyang.

T

Wang Jian
EERT — TNEEES
Technician - Air Conditioning,
Forum 66
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Mainland China Rental Turnover

$3,526
million
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CENTER 66, WUXI

Phase 1 of Center 66 is scheduled for its grand opening during the third
quarter of 2013, marking the Group’s entry into Wuxi. The high-end
development comprises 263,800 square meters of premium shopping
space and Grade A office towers.

Centrally located in the heart of Wuxi’s commercial district, the 118,500
square-meter shopping mall at Center 66 will host over 270 retail outlets
and 1,300 car park spaces — making it the top choice for international
luxury and fashion labels expanding into Wuxi. The development offers
a unique one-stop shopping experience for customers, supported by
a handpicked selection of food and beverage outlets as well as lifestyle
facilities. Roger Vivier, Chaumet, Kate Spade and many others have
put their trust in the leading reputation of the “66” brand, choosing
Center 66 as the location for their first stores in Wuxi.

B N e WA 2 R $R
Mainland China Rental Turnover by
Business Segment

RZE—=—F+=ZA=+—H
At December 31, 2012
5% 1%

28% 66%

W 8

Commercial

N

Office

B FERSZF
Residential and
Apartment

B 55

Car Park

A Financial years ended June 30
# Restated to 12-month period covering from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011
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Segmental Analysis of Mainland China Investment Properties
#HZE+—- A=-+—HIL4EE For the years ended December 31

RIEEEE fﬂi‘lﬁy&_ TR =
(FFHK) (BEBHET) (AHLL)
Total Gross Floor Area* Rental Turnover Occupancy Rate
('000 sq. m.) (HKS$ million) (%)
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
[ Commercial 556 454 2,305 1,863 97 98
WAE Office 227 227 990 938 98 99
FEREFR Residential and Apartment 83 83 183 171 96 97
(BT Car Park 460 263 48 42 N/A N/A
Hat Total 1,326 1,027 3,526 3,014 97 98
b ORIEHE RIE 2 A EE
Including gross floor area above and below ground
IR E YR R ER PR E R 2RSS
Geographical Analysis of Mainland China Investment Properties and
Investment Properties Under Development
R-Z——%F+=F=+—H At December 31, 2012
BIEEmEE
(FFAK)
Total Gross Floor Area*
('000 sg. m.)
HEWE Investment Properties
L& Shanghai
RER Xuhui District 315
FLE Jing’an District 273
&R Shenyang
& [ (P AT ) Shenhe District (Zhongjie Lu) 181
B (FFAH) Shenhe District (Qingnian Da Jie) 301
Em Jinan 256
1zt Total 1,326
BRPEREYE Investment Properties Under Development
B Shenyang
e (FFENE) Shenhe District (Qingnian Da Jie) 759
&5 Wuxi
=Z@m(ARFE) Chong’an District (Renmin Zhong Lu) 264
S77E () Chong’an District (Jiankang Lu) 113
xiE Tianjin 153
KE Dalian 222
EM Kunming 401
4Est Total 1,912

* BIEME R 2 A E S
Including gross floor area above and below ground
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376,300...

Total Gross Floor Area
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The shopping mall at Center 66 in Wuxi will open its
doors for business in 2013. It is destined to become
a new city landmark and the flagship of the Group's
operations in Wuxi.
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CENTER 66 — PHASE 1, WUXI

Center 66, another world-class project of the Group in Wuxi, is set to
open in the third quarter of 2013. As we further extend our footprint on
the Mainland, we are set to develop into the most admired and leading
national commercial property developer in the market.

Phase 1 of Center 66 spans over a total gross floor area of 263,800
square meters with premium shopping space and Grade A office towers.
The shopping mall to be completed first will house an impressive array
of internationally renowned luxury brands. Boasting a diversified tenant
mix and excellent customer service, Center 66 will definitely create
an extraordinary lifestyle and shopping experience for Wuxi people.
Located on Renmin Zhong Lu in Chong’an District, Center 66 enjoys
a prime location in the very heart of Wuxi’s central business district. In
addition to the heavy pedestrian flows in the area, Center 66 will also
benefit from the busy traffic that the Metro Lines 1 and 2, currently
under construction, will bring.

Center 66 will definitely create an extraordinary lifestyle and shopping experience

66 |
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Center 66 will become Wuxi’s

major landmark

BERRAEH T

The design and planning of Center 66 evolve around the concepts of
flow, circulation, harmony and connection, and embody the essence
of Chinese calligraphy. The energetic and fluid curved lines of the word
for “people” (Chinese form: A) flow through the sites of both Phase 1
and Phase 2, uniting all the buildings with the common language of
movement while enhancing the dynamism of the created space.

Attesting to the quality of the development as well as the many
environmental initiatives that have been included in its design, the
shopping mall and Phase 1 office tower obtained their “Precertification
under Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) for
Core and Shell Development — Gold Level” from the U.S. Green
Building Council in July 2009. In May 2012, Center 66 also clinched
the “Best Mixed-use Architecture in Asia Pacific” and the “Five-star
Best Mixed-use Architecture in China” titles in the prestigious 2012
Asia Pacific Property Awards.

CENTER 66 — PHASE 2, WUXI
Phase 2 of Center 66 will consist of commercial and office facilities as
well as a hotel and serviced apartments. When completed, it will
bring the total gross floor area of Center 66, Phases 1 and 2, to an
impressive 376,800 square meters, making it the largest retail
and commercial landmark in the central business district
of Wuxi. The Phase 2 site is situated at the intersection
of Jiankang Lu and Hou Xixi, adjacent to the south of
Renmin Zhong Lu where Phase 1 is located.
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FORUM 66, SHENYANG

Forum 66 has a total gross floor area of 1,060,000 square meters.
Following the grand opening of the shopping mall in September
2012, the project’s office towers are expected to come next. The twin
office towers rising 350 meters above the city will be the tallest office
buildings in northeast China. Apart from the shopping mall and office
towers, Forum 66 also comprises hotels and serviced apartments. The
complex is the largest of our projects currently under construction.

This prime landmark complex is ideally located on Qingnian Da Jie, the
“Golden Corridor” which runs through the city center. Itis also sited among
Shenyang’s most well-known landmarks, including Liaoning Grand
Theater, Liaoning Provincial Museum, Municipal Government Building,
as well as City Plaza. Boosting traffic flow even further, a new metro
line which has been built along the “Golden Corridor” will also provide
direct internal access from the station to our development. The
shopping mall of Forum 66 has been awarded “Certification
under Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED)
for Core and Shell Development — Gold Level” issued by the
U.S. Green Building Council.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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RIVERSIDE 66, TIANJIN

Located in the heart of Tianjin on a prime site in Heping Lu, one of
the “Ten Most Famous Commercial Streets in China”, Riverside 66 will
provide 152,800 square meters of world-class commercial facilities,
and also create an iconic landmark for the city as one of the longest
shopping malls in China. Specially designed to integrate Riverside
66’s internal elements with its external surroundings, the development
boasts a unique glass shell design which enables an external view into
the shops and activities within the mall. This innovative design has
won Riverside 66 a host of awards including the prestigious “2010
AIA New York Chapter’s Design Awards — Unbuilt Category” from
the American Institute of Architects (AIA) New York Chapter. We are
probably the first Hong Kong developer operating on the Mainland to
receive this well-known award. It also won the “MIPIM Architectural
Review Future Project Awards 2007 — Retail and Leisure” title. In 2009,
Riverside 66 received its “Precertification under Leadership in Energy
and Environmental Design (LEED) for Core and Shell Development —
Gold Level” issued by the U.S. Green Building Council. The project is
due for completion in 2014.
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OLYMPIA 66, DALIAN

Upon its expected completion in 2015, Olympia 66 will offer a new
leisure and lifestyle experience with 221,900 square meters of prime
shopping, dining and entertainment space. Centrally located at Wusi
Lu, one of the city’s leading commercial avenues, the design concept
of traditional twin dancing carps of the project creates a dynamic icon
for the city. Moreover, Olympia 66’s grand indoor plaza will connect
the complex’s vibrant atrium spaces, bringing them all together under
a crystalline skylight. Attesting to the innovation and sophistication of
this design, Olympia 66 won numerous awards including the “MIPIM
Asia Awards 2011 — Bronze Award” in the category of the “Best
Chinese Futura Projects”, as well as the highly coveted “Best Retall
Architecture in Asia Pacific” and the “Five-star Best Retail Architecture
in China” titles in the distinctive International Property Awards 2011.
Even more significantly, our project outperformed top projects from
across the world to bring home the ultimate “Best International
Retail Architecture 2011” award. In view of its environmental and
sustainability features, Olympia 66 also received its “Precertification
under Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) for
Core and Shell Development — Gold Level” from the U.S. Green
Building Council in August 2011.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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SPRING CITY 66, KUNMING

On November 28, 2012, Spring City 66 hosted an official
groundbreaking ceremony, which commenced its construction work
and symbolized a new growth chapter in the southwest region of our
Mainland operations. Due for completion in phases from 2018, Spring
City 66 consists of an impressive total gross floor area of 401,300
square meters, which will be developed into a world-class shopping
mall, with a Grade A office tower and serviced apartments.

Spring City 66 is centrally located in the business and commercial
heart of Kunming, and is sited in the core area of the central business
district now being planned. Located where the municipal building of
the Kunming government was originally erected, Spring City 66 is
ideally positioned, stretching from the intersection of Dongfeng Dong
Lu to the north and Beijing Lu to the west, the two leading commercial
avenues and main thoroughfares in the city. The Metro Lines 2 and 3,
now under construction, will run along Beijing Lu and Dongfeng Dong
Lu, respectively, offering direct access to Spring City 66 and attracting
further traffic flow to the complex.

NEW PROJECT IN WUHAN

In February 2013, Hang Lung successfully acquired a prime site for
commercial property development in Wuhan, on Jinghan Avenue in
Qiaokou District. The new site is to be developed into a commercial
complex comprising a world-class shopping mall, office towers and
serviced apartments with a maximum floor area of about 460,000
square meters for long-term investment.
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A EB2ERTYE
Major Properties Under Development

MR-ZT——F+—-F=+—H At December 31, 2012

SEELER N
BIEEE R (A5LL) st
AR ER (FEFHK) Group’s B HHA
(EAXK) FEMHE Total Gross Attributable M IREE  Expected
Site Area Main Floor Area Interest Stage of Completion
HhEh Location (sq- m.) Usage (sq- m.) (%) Completion Date
it HONG KONG
By Blue Pool Road, 7,850 R 8,005 50.7 BELE 2013
NHLER 5747 5% IL 5747 Superstructure
& SHENYANG
M ERES Forum 66, 92,065 H/O/S 758,800 50.7 EELEE 2014
SEKRE - Qingnian Da Jie, Superstructure i
A& Shenhe District onwards
i3] WUXI
182 &3%5(—H) ©  Center 66 (Phase 1), 37,324 C/0 263,800 50.7 BELE 2013
ARFE Renmin Zhong Lu, Superstructure i
=L@ Chong’an District onwards
1B E%(—H1) » Center 66 (Phase 2), 16,767 C/H/O/S 113,000 50.7 Bells
R Jiankang Lu, Planning
ERE Chong’an District
X TIANJIN
BREES - Riverside 66, 42,697 © 152,800 50.7 BELE 2014
AR Heping Lu, Superstructure
¥ [@ Heping District
KE DALIAN
1B ES - Olympia 66, 63,400 C 221,900 50.7 BEEE 2015
AR Wusi Lu, Superstructure
fiid] s Xigang District
B KUNMING
1BIZ &5 - Spring City 66, 56,042 C/O/S 401,300 50.7 FHElF 2018
HE - Dongfeng Lu, Planning i)
BEEm Panlong District onwards
C : % Commercial
H : JBJE Hotel
O : P~ 12 Office
R : {£=E Residential
S : [RIENEFT Serviced Apartment
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Properties Completed for Sale

MR-ZT——F+—-F=+—H At December 31, 2012

SEELES ) ﬁ% #E
BIEEEE (B B HuSH
(FFH*K) Group’s #HE No. of
FEHE Total Gross Attributable No. of Car Park
Main Floor Area Interest Residential Space
i 2k Location Usage (sg. m.) (%) Unitfor Sale for Sale
i HONG KONG
BERAT The HarbourSide, R 35,856 50.7 273 254
- EEFE 15 1 Austin Road West,
JUBEAHLER 1108055 KIL 11080
REE The Long Beach, R 92,814 50.7 1,126 =
G HEE 85 8 Hoi Fai Road,
TUBERHEER 1115258 KIL 11152
EEEX AquaMarine, R 1,939 50.7 21 =
REXBE 85K 8 Sham Shing Road,
L BE A HE ER 6338 51 NKIL 6338
Bl Carmel-on-the-Hil, R 286 50.7 2 14
MERET R - 9 Carmel Village Street,
TUBEAHIER 1112257 KIL 11122

R : {£=E Residential
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Major Investment Properties
RZZE——F+=F=+—H At December 31, 2012

wrEmmE(CEAR)
Total Gross Floor Area (sg. m.)
LN 7 A
T%/#)\E FERBHR HAHE
Ith£2 Office and  Residential No. of
&R Gk Industrial/ and Car Park
2k Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
T HONG KONG
IR CENTRAL
ENRIAT - Printing House, 2848 1,709 5,980 - =
HWEFE65 6 Duddell Street,
A4 E% 339 5% IL 339
HEHE 15 - 1 Duddell Street, 2848 2,340 6,616 - -
AHBEL 7310 %% IL 7310
BERXAT Baskerville House, 2880 1,473 3,379 = =
ERET 225 22 lce House Street,
A0 ER 644 5% IL 644
BITERITAE - Standard Chartered 2854 4,814 23,730 - 16
fEEiEP 4-4A5% © Bank Building,
TEEHER 10357 4-4/ Des Voeux Road Central,
AEE N BER Sections A&B of ML 103
R ST CAUSEWAY BAY AND WAN CHAI
BEAHL Hang Lung Centre, 2864 8,777 22,131 - 126
AEFA2-205% ©  2-20 Paterson Street,
NHBER 524 57 K IL 524 &IL 749
74955
HI5ES Fashion Walk, 2842, 2864 31,072 - 7,935 =
BEHE - EHE - Paterson Street, & 2868
SR aE - Houston Street,
hnEfy - =t EAT - Great George Street,
HITE Cleveland Street, Kingston
B REHER 231 5% Street, Gloucester Road,
K525 - MR ML 231 & ML 52,
46955k K 47055 IL 469 & IL 470
&AL Shui On Centre, 2060* - 16,313 - 42
1522818 - 15/F-28/F,
B8 6-855 6-8 Harbour Road,
N HLER 8633 5% IL 8633
* AIEHAE+RF
With an option to renew for a further term of 75 years
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AEEEE(FHK)

Total Gross Floor Area (sq. m.)

T£/#NE HFERER  HuHB
1h 22 4 Office and  Residential No. of
EimEL ki Industrial/ and Car Park
25 Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
HE(E) HONG KONG (Continued)
EEle (8 R0R) KORNHILL (QUARRY BAY)
BEIaES - Kornhill Plaza, 2059* 53,080 10,577 - 1,069
FEILE1-25F - 1-2 Kornhill Road,
b L 8566 57 IL 8566
FEEE - Kornhill Apartments, 2059* - - 35,275 -
FEILE25R - 2 Kornhill Road,
A HbER 8566 5% IL 8566
L TE R 1L & THE PEAK AND MID-LEVELS
WIBES - The Peak Galleria, 2047 12,446 = = 493
IITEE 11855k - 118 Peak Road,
B iR 35% RBL 3
EEZ - Nos. 2&3, 2078 & 2886 - - 558 25
2-35REE —FE - Garden Terrace, Block 2,
E | TREBASR - 8A Old Peak Road,
AIHEER 896 57 K IL 896 & IL 2850
2850 5%
= The Summit, 2047 - - 15,225 54
RIfENE41CHE © 41C Stubbs Road,
AHBER 8870 5% IL 8870
BEmEE HONG KONG SOUTH
BERE Burnside Villa, 2072 = = 9,212 89
B9 9 South Bay Road,
T 2P b B 994 557 RBL 994

* AEBETRSF

With an option to renew for a further term of 75 years
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BIEEZ 55 RAHT MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEZ2%% MAJOR GROUP PROPERTIES

C TEREMEGE)

Major Investment Properties (Continued)

MR-ZT——F+—-F=+—H At December 31, 2012

wrEmmi(EAR)
Total Gross Floor Area (sg. m.)
WAER )
I£/#nE F=ERER  BHUHA
thE2 Office and  Residential No. of
=i S H ki Industrial/ and Car Park
hEh Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
Ei#&(E) HONG KONG (Continued)
it A MONGKOK
FEahOLE—H) - Argyle Centre, Phase |, 2060 114 - - _
TEE 6885 688 Nathan Road,
JUBERIHE ER KIL 1262
12625%
HEFH L Grand Plaza, 2060 20,905 31,251 = 40
FFUE 62557 625 & 639 Nathan Road,
X 6395 - KIL 10234 &
JUBE D ER KIL 10246
10234 55 &2 10246 55
BEAE Hang Tung Building, 2045* = = - 1,000
FEEEE1112-11205%% + 1112-1120 Canton Road,
NBEAHLER KIL 9708
97085k
TEE R L/ Park-In Commercial Centre/ 2044* 7,454 30,205 = 478
RELLy - Gala Place,
EITEH569% - 56 Dundas Street,
TUBE A HIER KIL 9590
95905%
FREmMESRL © Holywood Plaza, 2047 9,139 17,941 - -
SRBGEB6105% - 610 Nathan Road,
BB ER KIL 11024
11024 5%
2l Carmel-on-the-Hill, 2050 2,131 - - 11
MEZAIET Q5 9 Carmel Village Street,
BEAMLER KIL 11122
1112288
* OEHttRE
With an option to renew for a further term of 75 years
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EEEE(EAR)
Total Gross Floor Area (sg. m.)

I
TE/#0NE FERBHR HAHE
1h 22 Office and  Residential No. of
EimE i Industrial/ and Car Park
hEh Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
Ei#&(E) HONG KONG (Continued)
RYPERFEAE  TSIM SHA TSUI AND WEST KOWLOON
BRI Grand Centre, 2038 3,688 7,198 - -
HEMN+TE8SE - 8 Humphreys Avenue,
NERHBER KIL 7725 & KIL 8026
772555 % 8026 5%
E?ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ&;‘é ’ Hanford Fashion, 2037 1,444 4,891 - -
TFE221B-ESE © 221B-E Nathan Road, KIL
NEAHEL 1061957 10619 & KIL 8132
X 813255
EBEX AquaMarine, 2050 22,350 = = 494
IREXFE 85K - 8 Sham Shing Road,
AR NKIL 6338
633855
REE The Long Beach, 2050 20,174 = - 390
G HEE 85 8 Hoi Fai Road,
FNEEAMIER KIL 11152
1115258
45EA NGAU TAU KOK
AR Amoy Plaza, 2047 49,006 = = 620
HSEABTTIR 77 Ngau Tau Kok Road,
BENHER 5397  NKIL 53, NKIL 1482, NKIL
14825% ~ 26605% &% 2660 & NKIL 3947
3047 %%
AT ERLD - Amoycan Industrial Centre, 2047 - 8,589 _ _
SSEAETR 7 Ngau Tau Kok Road,
FILEEAMER NKIL 1744
174458
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BIEEZ 55 RAHT MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEZ2%% MAJOR GROUP PROPERTIES

C TEREMEGE)

Major Investment Properties (Continued)

MR-ZT——F+—-F=+—H At December 31, 2012

wrEmmi(EAR)
Total Gross Floor Area (sg. m.)
WAEER )
TE/#0NE FERBHR BHAUHA
1h 22 Office and  Residential No. of
=i S H i Industrial/ and Car Park
hEh Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
Ei#&(4E) HONG KONG (Continued)
B ZEREE  CHEUNG SHA WAN, KWAI CHUNG AND TSUEN WAN
B AE82258 - 822 Lai Chi Kok Road, 2047 - 9,004 - 73
HNBEAMER 55685  NKIL 5568
IKERAT OS5 9 Wing Hong Street, 2047 - 35,223 = 95
HFAEERMER 62295  NKIL 6229
ZETEE - Laichikok Bay Garden, 2047 3,109 - - 172
%138 1A1 - 1A2~  Shops 1A1, 1A2,
5A - BAK 6B © BA, 6A & 6B,
RIS 47 4570 ER Lai King Hill Road,
33365k Lot 3336 of SD 4
THEE" The Bay Bridge”, 2047 = = 20,096 179
SHAHSE 123 Castle Peak Road,
BIAK1235% - Yau Kom Tau, TWTL 356
SV T H EX 356 5%
ASIEE - Bayview Garden, 2047 4,959 - - 52
£7#511138633%% © 633 Castle Peak Road,
BT HIER 329 5% Tsuen Wan, TWTL 329
P9 TUEN MUN
ANEFEE - Tai Hing Gardens, 2047 10,970 - - 387
TFEEK 115~ 11 Tsun Wen Road and
JATEAT105RA - 10A Ho Hing Circuit,
H P ER 3125% Tuen Mun, TMTL 312
BEERL - Luen Cheong Can Centre, 2047 = 7,856 = 37
PR RE 857 8 Yip Wong Road,
LEAH 13158 Tuen Mun,
HbEX 1169 5% Lot 1169 in DD 131

ANIPEER-E——FHE  UR-E—ZF AKX - R-_T-——F+-A=+—H  kDEESER[FLEZEE] -

The property was sold in 2012 and its disposal was completed in January 2013. This property was classified as “Assets held for sale” as at December

31, 2012.
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AEEmmE (EAR)

Total Gross Floor Area” (sg. m.)

MomE
TE/#NE FEREMR BHAUHA
1h 22 Office and  Residential No. of
EimE Gk Industrial/ and Car Park
hEh Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
Lig SHANGHAI
BEEER Grand Gateway 66 Gardens 2063 - - 64,900 -
F—HREZH - 18&2,
=K 211858 - 2118 Hua Shan Lu,
IREER Xuhui District
BIEEREES Grand Gateway 66, 2043 120,000 67,200 18,300 835
ARG B 1 5% - 1 Hong Qiao Lu,
IRER Xuhui District
BEERS - Plaza 66, 2044 53,700 169,600 - 804
FRPEEK12665% © 1266 Nan Jing Xi Lu,
HE Jing’an District
& SHENYANG
SWERERES Palace 66, 2057 109,300 = = 864
PR 12857 - 128 Zhongjie Lu,
&R Shenhe District
M ERERES Forum 66, 2078 101,960 = = 2,139
SERE Qingnian Da Jie,
& [ Shenhe District
i) JINAN
BEES - Parc 66, 2059 171,000 - - 789
SRINEE 1885 188 Quancheng Lu,
BN & Lixia District
* BIEHE KR 2 SR

Including gross floor area above and below ground
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EER
Turnover

BEEET
HK$ million

14,000

$7,986
million

HE

2008/ 2009/ 2010/ 7-12/ 2011% 2012
2010 2011"  2011*

N BEANAZTBIEMBFE
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—HIEREA
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=t—HIE+=@EA
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73 803 A
Segment Profit

AR
HK$ million

— 10,000

—— 8,000
B $6,160
million
— 6,000
6000 —— 4,000
B FBYEEE I B EBYHEEE
Hong Kong | Hong Kong
4,000 leasing | leasing
B FERmY% B PR
— 2,000 HE
2,000 Mainland China | Mainland China
leasing — leasing
W MFEEHE - B YEHEE
Property sales 0 Property sales

2008/ 2009/ 2010/ 7-12/ 2011* 2012
2009" 2010° 2011 2011*

A Financial years ended June 30

* B6-month period ended December 31, 2011, due to the change of financial year end
date from June 30 to December 31

# Restated to 12-month period covering from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011

REVIEW OF 2012 FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group changed its financial year end date from June 30 to
December 31 at the end of 2011. Accordingly, the 2012 financial
period covered the 12 months ended December 31, 2012 whereas the
preceding financial period covered the six months ended December
31, 2011 (“the 2011 financial period”). To facilitate a more meaningful
comparison of the financial results between 2012 and 2011, we
also requested our auditor, KPMG, to audit the results covering the
12-month period from January 1 to December 31, 2011 (“the last
corresponding period”).

Turnover increased by 138% to HK$7,986 million; and both net profit
attributable to shareholders and earnings per share soared by 233% to
HK$5,262 million and HK$3.90, respectively, when compared with the
2011 financial period.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$0.60 per share, making
total dividend of HK$0.79 per share for 2012. For the six months ended
December 31, 2011, we paid HK$0.38 per share.

Against the last corresponding period, turnover and net profit
attributable to shareholders increased by 27% and 64%, respectively;
earnings per share also increased by 64%. The significant increases
were mainly due to sustained growth in leasing income as well as
increases in property sales and gain on disposal of certain non-core
investment properties during the year.

The underlying net profit attributable to shareholders, being profit after
taxation without taking into account the net revaluation gain, amounted
to HK$3,564 million, increased by 256% and 83%, respectively, against
the 2011 financial period and the last corresponding period.

Our core business, property leasing in Hong Kong and mainland China,
continued to perform well under a subdue economic environment. Both
rental turnover and leasing profit increased by 112% to HK$6,711 million
and HK$5,313 million, respectively, against the 2011 financial period.
The growth in both rental turnover and leasing profit was 10% when
compared with the last corresponding period. When excluding the effect
of non-core investment properties disposed of during 2012, the overall
rental growth between the two corresponding periods would be 13%.

Rental turnover and operating profit generated from Hong Kong
investment properties grew by 104% and 105% to HK$3,185 million
and HK$2,645 million, respectively, when compared with the 2011
financial period. Against the last corresponding period, the increases in
such rental turnover and operating profit were 3% and 4%, respectively.
Rental turnover would be up 9% in 2012 should the effect of the
disposed investment properties be excluded.

With the grand opening of Forum 66 shopping mall in late September
2012, mainland China investment properties achieved 120% growth
to HK$3,526 million for rental turnover and HK$2,668 million for
operating profit when compared with the 2011 financial period.
Against the last corresponding period, growth in rental turnover and
operating profit was 17%.
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LEME 2 N HEEN

Change in Fair Value of Investment Properties

BEEET
HK$ million

— 22,000
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o}
e}

18,000
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10,000

$3,057
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2008/ 2009/ 2010/ 7-12/ 2011%* 2012
2009" 2010" 2011"  2011*
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HEWA R

Interest Income and Expenses

BEEET
HK$ million
—— 800
— $722
— million
— 700
— 600
— $458
— 90 million

B A EHA
Interest income

W RS

—— 200
3 IJ .
R Interest expenses

2008/ 2009/ 2010/ 7-12/ 2011% 2012
2009" 2010° 2011"  2011*

A Financial years ended June 30

* B6-month period ended December 31, 2011, due to the change of financial year end
date from June 30 to December 31

# Restated to 12-month period covering from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011

The sales of nine units of The HarbourSide and 108 units of The Long
Beach, etc. generated turnover and profit of HK$1,275 million and
HK$847 million, respectively. Property sales in both the 2011 financial
period and the last corresponding period amounted to HK$193 million.

There was also a significant increase in Other Income mainly attributable
to gain on disposal of certain non-core investment properties and a
sizable increase in interest income.

Disposal of non-core investment properties in Hong Kong recorded a
turnover of HK$5,304 million. The related gain on disposal amounted
to HK$2,149 million was recorded as part of Other Income. No such
disposal was made in 2011.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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As a result of the growth in rental turnover, increases in property sales
and gain on disposal of non-core investment properties, operating profit
grew 228% to HK$8,434 million against the 2011 financial period. When
compared with the last corresponding period, the growth was 72%.

Increase in fair value of investment properties amounted to HK$3,057
million, compared to HK$953 million in the 2011 financial period and
HK$2,100 million in the last corresponding period.

The Group had significant cash balances, with the majority held in
Renminbi (RMB) deposits to hedge against future RMB denominated
construction payments on the Mainland. Benefiting from the higher
interest rates of the RMB than Hong Kong dollars (HKD) deposits, net
interest income of HK$264 million was recorded for the year, increased
by 439% and 120%, respectively, against the 2011 financial period and
the last corresponding period.

Taxation charges for the year amounted to HK$1,379 million, increased
by 138% against the 2011 financial period and 20% against the
last corresponding period, in line with the higher rental turnover and
development profit.

As a result, profit for the year increased by 227% to HK$9,930 million
when compared with the 2011 financial period. Against the last
corresponding period, profit for the year grew 63%.

REVIEW OF 2012 FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group maintained a strong balance sheet with sufficient financial
resources and liquidity at appropriate currency mix to meet all
obligations as they fall due.

Investment properties rose by 4% during the year to HK$ 106,102 million.
This is the net result of inclusion of Forum 66 shopping mall upon its
opening in late September 2012, moderate gains on revaluation of the
leasing portfolio and after the disposal of certain non-core investment
properties in Hong Kong during the year.

Taking advantage of the Group’s relatively low borrowing cost and
a much higher RMB bank deposit rate compared to HKD rate, we
adopted a policy of maintaining a high cash balance and converting
the majority of its cash surplus to RMB deposits as a natural hedge for
its future RMB equity injections and construction payment obligations
on the Mainland. As at December 31, 2012, the Group had cash and
bank deposits of HK$40,183 million, an increase of HK$14,034 million
when compared with a year ago. The cash in hand was predominantly
held in RMB deposits.

83



BIEEZ 55 RAHT MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Br#%B1EE FINANCIAL REVIEW

FE A
Profit for the Year
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EfEEARAR

SRFAE - EEEBE

TE-CFFR

BREEFE
Net Assets per Share
R+=A=+—8
At December 31
bou
HK$
—— 100 $96.0
— 90
— 80
— 70
— 60
W EAHF -
$9,930 Underlying profit |
million 1l %%Efﬁjﬁﬂl@% —
EERIE R .
3H1Hx$§ﬁn 2 =
Effects of — 30
revaluation, net of —
deferred tax and =
non-controlling — &0
interests =
B TR — 10
Non-controlling |
interests —
2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
2011*

A Financial years ended June 30

* B6-month period ended December 31, 2011, due to the change of financial year end
date from June 30 to December 31

# Restated to 12-month period covering from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011

Total capital commitments of the Group as at December 31, 2012
amounted to HK$34,871 million, which were mainly RMB denominated
land and construction costs in respect of projects under development
on the Mainland.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Group issued in total an
equivalent of HK$5,799 million 10-year fixed rate bonds with coupon
rates ranged from 3.55% to 4.75% per annum through the Medium
Term Note (MTN) Program. Proceeds from the bond issue were largely
used to repay some short-term bank borrowings.

The MTN Program is part of the Group’s long-term financial management
strategy to add an alternate source of debt financing to bank borrowings.
Leveraging on the prevailing favorable bond market conditions like high
liquidity and low interest rates, raising fixed rate and longer term debts

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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through bond issues provided the Group with more financial flexibility
and further enhanced its ability in managing interest rate volatility and
re-financing risks in the future. The average maturity period of the debt
portfolio has been lengthened to 4.1 years from 3.5 years during the year.

The current market conditions provide a rare opportunity for the Group to
tap the bond market to mitigate various financial risks and to convert the
surplus cash to RMB deposits. As a result, it could earn higher interest
income and at the same time benefit from a natural currency hedge for
the Group’s capital commitments on various Mainland projects.

Consequently, both the cash and borrowings of the Group increased
during the year. After netting off total borrowings, all unsecured, of
HK$37,645 million, the Group had net cash of HK$2,538 million as
at December 31, 2012. As at December 31, 2011, the Group had net
borrowings of HK$1,545 million.

The Group will continue to adopt a prudent and sound financial
management strategy to support its long-term growth. With a strong
balance sheet and an outstanding ability to generate quality recurring
cash flow, the Group is well positioned to buy more land and seize new
investment opportunities when arise.
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LAND BANK ACQUISITION AND

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Taking a long-term view towards growth, the Group’s development
strategy for investment projects in mainland China is minimally affected
by short-term market fluctuations and government policies.

Our expansion strategy is to establish and maintain a solid land
bank for property development. Each development project or land
acquisition is carefully scrutinized for related risks and returns —
including consideration and assessment of relevant government
policies, the level of local government support, economic data as well
as the adequacy of infrastructure support in the surrounding area. If
these requirements are met, purchases and projects are presented to
the Board for final approval.

Upon launch, the project team carefully monitors the progress of each
project, evaluating and approving any important design or construction
changes. Management actively supervises projects and conducts
regular progress reviews to maintain a clear overall picture, which
facilitates prompt decision making. Each project designates a team of
skilled and experienced professionals who are tasked with keeping the
Board fully informed through regular and comprehensive reports.

The cost and quality control of construction work are crucial to the
Group. With several large development projects in the pipeline, these
elements will account for a significant portion of project financials.
Management will continue to enhance controls over the selection of
contractors as well as material suppliers and monitoring of work quality
to maintain high standards of excellence.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

Our stringent internal controls are marked by clear guidelines and a
well-established control environment of close and regular management
reviews, segregation of duties, budgetary controls, well-defined
and specific limits for various levels of authority, whistle-blowing
mechanisms, Codes of Conduct for both staff and trading partners, as
well as appropriate training for staff development.

Further enhancing our corporate governance and transparency — in
addition to the requirements on Directors’ security transactions — all
executive staff are required to submit a signed declaration of compliance
with the Code of Conduct regarding “Transactions in the Company’s
shares” on a half-yearly basis.

TREASURY RISK

Although the scale and scope of the Group’s activities expose us to
a variety of treasury risks, we have made every effort to mitigate them
through the Group’s well-established treasury policies.

(a) Interest Rate and Foreign Exchange

As most of the Group’s borrowings are floating-rate bank loans, we
are exposed to interest rate movements. Interest rate risks are closely
monitored and, as and when appropriate, the Group may adopt
measures to manage associated risks — including but not limited to the

issuance of fixed rate bonds and interest rate swaps.

Renminbi exchange rate risks arising from the Group’s investments
on the Mainland are prudently managed for maximum protection.
An appropriate level of Renminbi resources are maintained to meet
the Group’s capital requirements for ongoing Mainland projects.
Recurring rental turnover in Renminbi also provides a natural hedge
for these investments.

The US Dollar exchange rate risk faced by the Group is not considered
significant as its net exposure to US Dollar is moderate and HK Dollar
is pegged to US Dollar under the prevailing pegged rate regime in
Hong Kong.
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(b) Cash Management, Funding and Liquidity

The Group’s cash and financing are managed and controlled at the
corporate level. It helps negotiate better borrowing terms and facilitate
coherent financial risk management.

The Group ensures that sufficient funds, banking facilities and multiple
fund raising channels are available to meet obligations as and when
needed. The maturity of deposits and loans is also carefully planned
and managed to reduce liquidity risk. During the year, average debts
maturity of the Group has been lengthened as a result of issuance of
long-dated bonds. Given the Medium Term Note Program in place, we
have flexibility to tap the bond market if we so choose. We will closely
monitor the markets to manage repayment and refinancing risks in a
prudent manner.

(c) Credit/Counterparty

Credit/counterparty risk exposure is primarily in the areas of rents
receivable, installments receivable relating to property sales and
deposits placed with banks.

Rents receivable risks are mitigated through credit assessments of
prospective tenants, collection of rental deposits and close monitoring
of outstanding rent. Receivables related to property sales are protected
with collateral on the properties in question. The Group assigns
exposure limits on banks to mitigate concentration risks, and deposits
are made only with reputable banks that have sound financial strength
and/or good credit ratings.

(d) Use of Derivatives
Derivative instruments are used only for hedging purpose. Group
policies do not permit speculative derivative transactions.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL RISK

The Group closely monitors market trends and the overall business
environment to ensure that our properties maintain the highest market
standards and a keen competitive edge. Regular maintenance and
renovation uphold the safety and quality of our properties, and the
Group has adequate insurance coverage in place to protect properties
against accidental losses and/or other hazards. Established internal
controls are in place to safeguard our assets and reputation against
any potential liabilities.

A designated team of skilled and experienced professionals closely
monitors the overall design, progress and capital expenditure involved
in major maintenance and renovation projects. They report regularly
to the Asset Enhancement Committee which comprises senior
management representatives from multiple disciplines.

An independent team of internal auditors frequently reviews and tests
key aspects of business critical internal control systems to ensure
that our policies are adequate, cost-effective and stringently adhered
to. As part of the Group’s systems continuity plan, off-site back-up
procedures are in place to safeguard against any potential loss of
computer data.

We Do It Right means not only acting responsibly as a global corporate
citizen, but also meeting and staying ahead of market expectations.
The Group continuously upgrades our environmental conservation
measures to achieve these goals.

PEOPLE RISK

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works to ensure the
Group’s remuneration levels for directors and senior management
are competitive and proper management succession plan is in place.
Employee remuneration packages are evaluated and monitored
against market trends to make sure we attract and retain top market
talent. We also maximize staff potential by providing financial support
for additional training through recognized professional programs.
With a focus on two-way staff dialogue, we have clearly established
channels of communication and an accessible grievance reporting
system for all levels of staff. The Group also conducts exit interviews
with departing staff to gather feedback and relevant information for
future improvement.
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We live up to our responsibility to society by
committing to the principles of good corporate
citizenship, environmental protection, positive
socialimpact and continuous staff development.
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At Hang Lung, we view sustainability as complementary and
enabling for our business strategy. We seek to build long-
term, iconic buildings in growing cities. Demonstrating

good governance, building and maintaining environmentally
efficient properties, and enhancing our human capital help
the Group's business operations and the wider community.
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In 2012, Forum 66 in Shenyang is awarded the
“Certification under Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (LEED) for Core and Shell
Development — Gold Level” issued by the U.S. Green
Building Council
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pursue green building initiatives and further improve various aspects
of our human resources management in light of our rapid staff
growth. We also decided to put in place a new structure to guide
our sustainability journey and incorporate this into our executives’
performance evaluations.

OUR BUILDINGS

As a property developer, the largest impact we have on the
environment is through the buildings we construct and operate. In line
with our long-term business model, building to own and building to last,
environmental and efficiency considerations are embedded throughout

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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We communicate with our staff through staff briefing
sessions

the life-cycle of our buildings, from design and construction to operation
and maintenance. This translates into the adoption of internationally
recognized environmental certification for all new buildings.

We benchmark the environmental performance of our buildings against
the Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certification
issued by the U.S. Green Building Council. In all of our projects in
mainland China, we plan, design, construct and operate with the LEED
gold rating as the ultimate target. Our intention is to create iconic
properties that will appeal to users and also to make Hang Lung a
preferred partner for municipalities.

At the same time, we also look for opportunities to make our operating
properties more energy efficient. Since 2006, we have upgraded or
replaced air conditioning chillers at 12 buildings in Hong Kong. In 2012,
we completed the replacement in Grand Centre at a cost of HK$14.8
million, with plans to invest a further HK$147.5 million to replace chiller
plants in 10 more of our buildings in Hong Kong.

As a result of our energy efficiency initiatives over time, we achieved
optimal energy savings at all our properties.

OUR PEOPLE

Hang Lung employs over 3,300 staff in Hong Kong and mainland China
and we are in a period of rapid growth as more properties come into
operation. We therefore need to be able to simultaneously attract and
retain talented staff and integrate them into our corporate culture.

To do this, we have invested heavily in training and seek to create a
working environment that stands out as a desirable place to be. In
2012, we invested over 66,000 hours in training for our employees on
a range of topics.

We engage regularly with our staff through staff briefing sessions,
department and team meetings, conferences and focus groups and
the “MD Lunch” where staff members have an informal lunch with the
Managing Director. We communicate key initiatives and projects of the
Group to our staff through the monthly staff newsletter, Connections.

We have policies and procedures in place to guide our staff conduct.

We ensure that our employees strictly follow our Code of Conduct and
we do not hesitate to take action when appropriate.
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Hang Lung Social Club promotes work-life balance through different
recreational activities

OUR COMMUNITIES

We see connectedness with the communities that we serve as a driver
for making Hang Lung a developer of choice.

We contribute to the community by providing access to our facilities
and buildings to community members, supporting our community
partners and organizing staff volunteer activities.

In 2012, we donated HK$14 million directly to non-profit organizations
and also made space in our venues available for a range of charitable
activities. We continue to encourage our employees to participate
in volunteer activities. Our volunteer team, “Hang Lung As One”,

EEBNFEANMETINNE  BERERE

Staff members from Hong Kong and mainland China join “Hang Lung As One” volunteer team to contribute to the community
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organized a range of activities in Hong Kong and mainland China. In
total, our volunteers clocked up 3,870 hours of service over the year.

We launched the Hang Lung Green LEEDers program which allowed
students to gain a better understanding of sustainability through
a series of activities focusing on low-carbon living, energy saving,
eco-experience and waste diversion, fostering a commitment to
environmental protection of the next generation.
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Over 300 staff and their family members have joined our volunteer team

OUR FIRST SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Our commitment to honesty and transparency extends to our
sustainability performance. Whereas previously, Hang Lung reported
on its sustainability performance in its Annual Report, this year, the
Group will publish its first standalone Sustainability Report, which is
in accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative G3.1 reporting
guidelines. This provides a more comprehensive review of our
sustainability performance for our stakeholders.

The Report communicates our sustainability efforts and strives to
provide an honest account of our commitment to the environment,
community and our people, and the challenges we face while upholding
this commitment. For more details of our sustainability performance,
please refer to our Sustainability Report.
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are designed to create and
measure one of nature’s most
perfect shapes, the circle. Our
goal at Hang Lung is to deliver
360° oversight of the business
through perfect governance
and management controls.
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We Do It Right by maintaining sophisticated
corporate governance and a professional
management system, earning the trust
and respect of our stakeholders.



#
@ R 3% FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2012
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Announcement of interim results

JULA SEP
R3S R EANS B

Interim dividend paid

2013

—E——FtA=+—H
July 31, 2012

—E-——FNAT=H
September 13, 2012
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BEEE N

Announcement of annual results

P9 A APR

BUESER B \ N
(BAHERRBAFAERNE FREME)

Latest time for lodging transfers
(for attending and voting at annual general meeting)

iEmEkmiBdE R
(HEFRRBFAGRNE LREMS)
Closure of share register
(for attending and voting at annual general meeting)

IRERBERE
(BEHB2HAFRN 2 RRAFASRE)

Annual general meeting
(Details are set out in the notice of annual general meeting
accompanying this annual report)

BLEHERO B (AR EME)

Latest time for lodging transfers (for final dividend)

BiEmEkmnBsER(ARBEREmE)
Closure of share register (for final dividend)

A A MAY

RS e 2 RS
Proposed final dividend payable

Vi
January 31, 2013

—ZT—=#mMA+HA
TFmE =15
4:30 p.m. on April 15, 2013

—E-=FMA+BET/\H
(BERMABEEA)
April 16 to 18, 2013
(both days inclusive)

—=2—=FmA+NH
HF BT
11:00 a.m. on April 18, 2013

—E-=FMA=+=H
TFmEE =15
4:30 p.m. on April 23, 2013

—E-=#p/=+mA
April 24, 2013

VN
May 8, 2013
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OUR STRONG BELIEF IN GOVERNANCE

Hang Lung firmly believes that strong governance is the foundation
to delivering the corporate objective of maximizing return to its
stakeholders over the long term. The core of the governance structure
is an effective and qualified Board of Directors (the “Board”) which is
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance,
sound internal control and effective risk management to enhance
transparency, accountability, integrity and honesty, in order to earn the
confidence from our shareholders and other stakeholders.

B
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

AR ER B E M3 D &
Shareholders and Other Stakeholders

A
BEAE Transparency
&% Accountability
NME T Integrity
B 3E Honesty

52/

Board of

Directors

HNIEAZ BLRD NEWE WITEEE RERFMEES BZEEg WEREETED
External Company Executive Nomination and Audit ~<— Internal
Auditor Secretary Committee Remuneration Committee Committee Auditor
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A SOUND CORPORATE CULTURE

As good governance is essential to corporate success, we instill the
core principle of good corporate governance into our corporate culture.
A sound governance culture starts from the root. Hang Lung maintains
a code of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”) which every staff and
supplier is made aware of and required to adhere to.

PROFESSIONAL AND RESPONSIBLE MANAGEMENT
The Board comprises professionals from different facets of society
who bring in a wide range of business and financial experience and
expertise to the Board. The Board includes a balanced composition
of Executive and Non-Executive Directors so that there is a strong
independent element on the Board which can effectively exercise
independent judgment. To improve on the function of the Board, three
committees, namely the Executive Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee had been set up to take up
different responsibilities.

PRUDENT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group recognizes the various risk factors it will face in its operations,
and properly deals with them in a manageable manner by setting a
good internal control environment and making improvements where
necessary. Further explanations are disclosed hereunder.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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The following are the major aspects of our corporate governance
practice in addition to the code provisions and some recommended
best practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(effective until March 31, 2012) and the Corporate Governance Code
(effective from April 1, 2012) (the “New Corporate Governance Code”)
(both, the “CG Code”) as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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Six regular Board Meetings were held in 2012.

A strong independent element is maintained on the Board as half of the Board
is represented by Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Management is invited to join the Board Meetings, where appropriate, to
provide appropriate information to enable the Directors to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises only Independent
Non-Executive Directors to ensure no Executive Director is involved in deciding
his own remuneration package.

The Audit Committee met the external auditor more than two times without
the presence of the Executive Board members in 2012.

Since 2008, the Company has announced its interim and annual results within
one month from the end of the accounting period.

Our Internal Audit Department is independent of our operation and accounting
functions.

The Company has adopted a corporate Code of Conduct since 1994, which
is applicable to all staff and Directors. The Code of Conduct contains our
whistle blowing policy.

The Company continuously enhances its website as a means of communication
with stakeholders. Principal corporate governance structures, newsletters and
webcast of analysts’ briefings are available on its website.
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(1) The Board
1. Composition and Functions
The Board currently comprises eight persons:

e three Executive Directors, namely, Mr Ronnie C. Chan, Mr Philip
N.L. Chen and Mr H.C. Ho;

e one Non-Executive Director, Mr Gerald L. Chan; and

e four Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr S.S. Yin,
Dr H.K. Cheng, Ms Laura L.Y. Chen and Mr Simon S.O. Ip. They
possess appropriate academic and professional qualifications or
related financial management expertise and have brought a wide
range of business and financial experience to the Board.

Mr William P.Y. Ko resigned as Executive Director of the Company on
December 12, 2012.

An updated list of Board members identifying their roles and functions
and whether they are independent non-executive directors is maintained
on our website and the website of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (“HKEx”). Their biographical details, disclosed on pages 122 to
126 of this annual report, are also maintained on our website.

The Board is responsible for, among other things:

e ensuring continuity of leadership;

e development of sound business strategies;

e availability of adequate capital and managerial resources to
implement the business strategies adopted; and

e adequacy of systems of financial and internal controls and conduct
of business in conformity with applicable laws and regulations.

All Directors are required to disclose to the Company their offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments.
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Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development of the
Company’s strategies and policies through independent, constructive
and informed comments. They gave the Board and the committees
on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation.

The Non-Executive Director, Mr Gerald L. Chan and an Independent
Non-Executive Director, Ms Laura L.Y. Chen were unable to attend
the annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company held on April
18, 2012 as provided for in code provision A.6.7 as they had
overseas engagements.

In 2012, six regular Board Meetings were held. Two Board Meetings
were held outside Hong Kong during two offsite Board trips in mainland
China including one visit to Shenyang for the opening ceremony of
Forum 66.

Details of Directors’ attendance records in 2012 are set out below:

i /%2 17E 3 Meetings Attended/Held

RERFMNEES

EREER Nomination & —E——fF

BER Audit Remuneration BEXE
B Directors Board Committee Committee 2012 AGM
B FHITEZE Independent Non-Executive Directors
B & S.S. Yin 6/6  EMANA TEF N/A 1/1
EEH H.K. Cheng 6/6 4/4 2/2 1/1
PR &L 1G Laura L.Y. Chen 3/6 174 1/2 0/1
S Simon S.0. Ip 5/6 4/4 2/2 1/1
FHITES Non-Executive Director
PR = Gerald L. Chan 3/6  TEM NA TSEA N/A 0/1
BITES Executive Directors
PRARR Ronnie C. Chan 6/6 TEMANA TER N/A 1/1
PR A 5% Philip N.L. Chen 6/6 TEANA TERA N/A 1/1
HE H.C. Ho 6/6  EANA TEA N/A 1/1
[Sh(=hen William P.Y. Ko* 6/6 TEANA TEA N/A 1/1

* RBBERER-T-—FT AT HREANTES - ERUEBRTEEREE ©

Mr William P.Y. Ko resigned as Executive Director on December 12, 2012. No Board Meetings were held thereafter.
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All Directors can give notice to the Chairman or the Company Secretary
if they intend to include matters in the agenda for Board Meetings.
Full Board or Committee papers will be sent to all Directors or
Committee members at least three days before the intended date of a
Board Meeting or Committee Meeting respectively. Management also
supplies the Board and its Committees with sufficient information and
explanations so as to enable them to make an informed assessment of
financial and other information put before the Board and its Committees
for approval. Management is also invited to join Board Meetings
where appropriate.

Furthermore, management provides all Board members with monthly
updates which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient details
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties under the Listing Rules.

All the Directors are entitled to have access to timely information in
relation to our business and make further enquiries where necessary,
and they can have separate and independent access to management.

In addition, all Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary, a full time employee of the Company, who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that procedures are followed and
that all applicable laws, rules and regulations are complied with. The
Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and is also a source of advice to the Chairman
and to the Board on corporate governance and the implementation
of the CG Code. The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in 2012.

Procedures have also been agreed by the Board to enable Directors
to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Under our articles of association, a Director shall not vote or be counted
in the quorum in respect of any contract or arrangement in which he/
she or any of his/her associates is/are materially interested.

We have also arranged appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against them arising from
corporate activities.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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2. Chairman and Managing Director
There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Managing Director to ensure a balance of power and authority.

Chairman

The Chairman, Mr Ronnie C. Chan, provides leadership for the Board.
He is responsible for ensuring that all Directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate information which must be accurate, clear, complete
and reliable and that Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
Board Meetings. He also ensures that:

the Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities;

e all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner;

e good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established; and

e appropriate steps are taken to provide effective communication
with shareholders and that their views are communicated to the
Board as a whole.

He, at least annually, holds meetings with the Non-Executive Directors
(including Independent Non-Executive Directors) without the Executive
Directors being present.

He is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda
for each Board Meeting. He takes into account, where appropriate, any
matters proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda, or
delegates such responsibility to the Company Secretary.

He encourages all Directors to make an active contribution to the
Board’s affairs and takes the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the
best interests of the Company. He encourages Directors with different
views to voice their concerns, allows sufficient time for discussion on
issues for the Board to deliberate and reach decisions.

He promotes a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contributions of Non-Executive Directors in particular and
ensures constructive relations between Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors.
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Managing Director
The Managing Director, Mr Philip N.L. Chen, is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company and is responsible for:

e operating the business of the Company and implementing policies
and strategies adopted by the Board;

e the Company’s day-to-day management in accordance with the
instructions issued by the Board;

e developing strategic operating plans that reflect the objectives and
priorities established by the Board and maintaining operational
performance; and

e ensuring the adequacy of financial and internal control systems
and the conduct of business in conformity with applicable laws
and regulations.

The Managing Director chairs the monthly meetings of the Company’s
various operational divisions. He reports to the Board from time to time
matters of material importance.

3. Independence of Non-Executive Directors

We have received from each of our Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. We consider the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent.

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an Independent
Non-Executive Director who has served on the Board for more than
nine years will be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders. We will state in the notice of the AGM the reason why we
consider the Independent Non-Executive Director is still independent
and our recommendation to shareholders to vote in favor of the re-
election of such Independent Non-Executive Director.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal

In accordance with our articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation for re-election
by shareholders at an AGM. In addition, every Director is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and new
appointments to the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders
at the upcoming general meeting. Names of such Directors eligible for
re-election being accompanied by detailed biographies will be stated in
the notice of the general meeting.

The Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors
are appointed for specific terms, which coincide with their expected
dates of retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

5. Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will meet with other fellow Directors and
key executives, and will receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment. Subsequently,
he/she will receive any briefing and professional development necessary
to ensure he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and business and full awareness of his/her responsibilities
under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other
regulatory requirements, and especially the Company’s business and
governance policies. The Company Secretary facilitates induction and
professional development of Directors.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
In 2012, the Company has arranged for Directors a seminar on the
topic of creating sustainable value and two offsite Board trips.

107



»

BUREEEN T - —FAEXNFI
RCEXRE BT -

@ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ% CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
r

Record of training received by each existing Director in 2012 is
summarized below:

= Directors =13 Types of Training
P& Bl o Ronnie C. Chan A, B, C,D
R 1 B S.8.Yin A B
BeR 7 1 Philip N.L. Chen A B, C,D
e 84 =R Gerald L. Chan B,D
L0F ) H.K. Cheng A B,D
R4S Laura L.Y. Chen A, B, D
o e Simon S.0. Ip A B, D
Ed= H.C. Ho A B,D

A RS/ M

Attending seminar(s)/forum(s)
B BIEAME—MEN HEFRRRE EFBERETSFEH

Reading materials relating to general business, property development and investment,
directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on

C  RINIBFAR & /FmiBEE:

Giving talks to external seminar(s)/forum(s)

D HEARIES/EHTTIE

Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s)

O EZRENNER

HITERBEE  BERZEGNMEZRFME
BEDRR—NNE  —AAAFRZ
TT=FNIL -

ARBEZRZATEREE N —NANN
FRY G RAEXNBEBEE2HMATES &
SEHRITEE  BUHERR R Z K
HEHRAMEREEECRE - EFRER
WEWRBERE  YORE TARHE
ERAREMNEENG T3 - BUERES
KEHTRFREMLERARHERTRE

AT MELEBEACHESSHEEE
8g -
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(11) Delegation by the Board
Audit Committee and Nomination
1999 and

The Executive Committee,
and Remuneration Committee were formed in 1989,
2003 respectively.

1. Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Board of the Company was formed in
1989. Its members are all the Executive Directors of the Company, who
meet regularly to establish the strategic direction of the Company, and
to monitor the performance of management. Clear terms of reference
have been adopted by the Board, and guidelines were also set up
for certain issues requiring Board approval. Each of the Committee
members has full understanding on determining which issues require a
decision of the full Board and which are delegated by the Board to the
Committee or management.
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2. Audit Committee

An Audit Committee was established by the Board in 1999, which
now comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors with
appropriate academic and professional qualifications or related
financial management expertise, namely Mr Simon S.O. Ip (Chairman
of the Committee), Dr H.K. Cheng and Ms Laura L.Y. Chen. Under
the CG Code, it is required that meetings are held at least two times a
year with the external auditor. Separate meetings will also need to be
held with the external auditor (in the absence of management) as and
when required. The Audit Committee has exceeded the CG Code and
has held four meetings for the purpose of, inter alia, discussing the
nature and scope of internal audit work and assessing the Group’s
internal controls in 2012. Moreover, the Committee met the external
auditor four times in 2012 without the presence of the Executive
Board members.

The terms of reference explaining the Committee’s role and authority,
which have been reviewed and revised with reference to the New
Corporate Governance Code to include duties regarding corporate
governance functions and as a minimum the specific duties as stipulated
in the Listing Rules were adopted by the Board and are available on
both our website and the website of HKEX.

The Committee is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference; to seek any information it requires from
any employee and all employees are directed to co-operate with any
requests made by the Committee; to obtain outside legal or other
independent professional advice; and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise to their meetings
if necessary. Sufficient resources are provided to the Committee to
discharge its duty.

In 2012, the Audit Committee has performed, inter alia, the following:

e reviewed and obtained explanation from management and
the external auditor on the interim and annual results, including
causes of changes from the previous accounting period, effects
on the application of new accounting policies, compliance with the
Listing Rules and relevant legislation, and any audit issues, before
recommending their adoption by the Board;
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considered and proposed to the Board the re-appointment of
KPMG as the Company’s external auditor;

considered and approved the procedures and guidelines in
employing the external auditor to perform non-audit assignments
for the Company;

received and reviewed the internal audit reports from the
Internal Auditor;

held meetings with the external auditor in the absence of
management to discuss any material audit issues;

held meetings with the Internal Auditor in private to discuss
material internal audit issues;

approved the internal audit programs for 2012 and 2013; and

carried out reviews of the internal control system of the Company
including senior management’s structure, risk management,
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and the Company’s procedures for financial
and functional reporting.

Corporate Governance Functions
reviewed and approved the Company’s policies on corporate
governance and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors; and

reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

A Nomination and Remuneration Committee, set up in 2003, now
comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr
H.K. Cheng (Chairman of the Committee), Ms Laura L.Y. Chen and Mr
Simon S.0. Ip. Regular meetings were held to review human resources
issues, including significant changes in the salary structure of the
Group and terms and conditions affecting Executive Directors and
senior management. The Committee met twice in 2012 to review, inter
alia, the composition of Board members and Directors’ remuneration.

The terms of reference explaining the Committee’s role, which have
been reviewed and revised with reference to the New Corporate
Governance Code to include as a minimum the specific duties as
stipulated in the Listing Rules, were adopted by the Board and can be
accessed on both our website and the website of HKEX.

The major work performed by the Committee in 2012 included
the following:

e reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

e made recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship in view of the
qualifications and related expertise;

e made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration;

e determined the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments; and

e made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

of Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
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The remuneration package of Executive Directors and senior
management, including discretionary bonus and share options, is
based on the following criteria:

individual performance;

e  skills and knowledge;

e involvement in the Group’s affairs;

e achievement of business targets; and

e performance and profitability of the Group.

The Committee also considers factors such as salaries paid by

comparable companies, time commitment and

employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

responsibilities,

Details of remuneration payable to members of the senior management
(which includes Executive Directors only) are disclosed in note 6 on the
financial statement.

The Committee obtains benchmark reports for evaluation of market
trends and the competitive levels of remuneration being offered to
Directors and senior management. Sufficient resources are provided
to the Committee to discharge its duties. The Committee may consult
the Chairman and the Managing Director about their remuneration
proposals of other Executive Directors and has access to independent
professional advice if necessary.

4.  Management Functions

Senior management includes Executive Directors of the Company
only. Their duties were explained in the paragraph headed “Executive
Committee” above. Key executives are responsible for the day-to-
day operations and administration function of the Group under the
leadership of the Executive Directors. The Board has given clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be approved
by the Board before decisions are made on behalf of the Company.
The types of decisions to be delegated by the Board to management
include implementation of the strategy and direction determined by the

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Board, operation of the Group’s businesses, preparation of financial
statements and operating budgets, and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. These arrangements will be reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate to our needs.

(Il Directors’ Securities Transactions and Share Interests

1. Compliance with Model Code

We have set out guidelines regarding securities transactions by
Directors under “Transactions in the Company’s Shares” in our Code of
Conduct according to the required standard set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The Company
has made specific enquiries to all Directors and confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
and the Code of Conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

2. Share Interests of Directors

Details of Directors’ interests in shares of the Company and our listed
subsidiary, Hang Lung Properties Limited as at December 31, 2012
are as follows:

b NN Bt ERRAT

The Company Hang Lung Properties Limited
R REE
KRGS E AR 2 RE RGER TR 2 IR
Number of Number of Shares Number of Number of Shares
EENE Name of Directors Shares under Option Shares under Option
BRARSR Ronnie C. Chan = 11,790,000 = 36,570,000
BRiH B S.S. Yin = = = -
FeR = £ Philip N.L. Chen - - - 14,500,000
PR 4R Gerald L. Chan = = = =
O] H.K. Cheng - - _ _
e Laura L.Y. Chen - - _ _
Bz Simon S.0. Ip - - - _
(EEAS] H.C. Ho - - - 5,600,000
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(IV) Accountability and Audit

1. Financial Reporting

Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements on a going concern basis, with supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary. The Company’s financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance
and also the accounting principles and practices generally accepted
in Hong Kong. Appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently; judgments and estimates made are prudent
and reasonable. A statement by the external auditor, KPMG, about
their reporting responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on the Company’s financial statements.

The Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Company’s position and prospects in annual reports,
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

2. Internal Control

We maintain a good internal control environment to enable the internal
control systems and procedures to perform effectively and to make
improvements where necessary. The Code of Conduct details the
Group’s philosophy in running its business and acts as a benchmark
for all staff to follow.

Internal control systems have been designed to allow us to monitor
the Group’s overall financial position, to safeguard its assets against
loss and misappropriation, to provide reasonable assurance against
material fraud and errors, and to manage the risk in failing to achieve
the Group’s objectives.

We have a well defined specific limit of authority governing activities of
the Executive Committee, Directors, executives and senior staff. Annual
and mid-year budgets on all capital and revenue items are prepared
and approved by senior management and key executives before being
adopted. We monitor the business activities closely and review monthly
financial results of operations against budgets. We also review, update
and improve the internal controls to meet upcoming challenges.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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We take proactive precautionary measures in handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive information. Such information is
restricted to a need-to-know basis. We have adopted a policy on

disclosure of price-sensitive information.

We maintain an Internal Audit Department which is independent of our
daily operations and accounting functions. The Internal Auditor reports
directly to the Audit Committee. An internal audit program based on risk
assessment methodology has been designed and reviewed by the Audit
Committee on an annual basis. On a monthly basis, the Internal Auditor
discusses his internal audit reviews and findings with the management
and obtains management’s responses on various issues. Internal audit
reports are prepared for the Audit Committee every quarter.

Formal meetings were held every three months between the Internal
Auditor and the Audit Committee to discuss internal audit issues in
2012. During Audit Committee Meetings, the Audit Committee also
enquired on financial and internal control matters with the external
auditor. The Audit Committee has the authority to have direct
discussion with the external auditor in the absence of management
if deemed necessary, and they meet at least once annually for this
purpose. Executive Director(s) is/are present at the Audit Committee
Meetings to answer enquiries from the Audit Committee and to report
to the Board on matters arising.

The Directors acknowledged that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control systems, and had
reviewed them four times in 2012. The Directors manage risks by strategic
planning, appointing appropriately qualified and experienced personnel
at senior positions, monitoring the Group’s performance regularly,
maintaining effective control over capital expenditure and investments,
and setting a Code of Conduct for all Directors and employees to follow.

The Directors had conducted a review covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
financial year ended December 31, 2012, and were satisfied that an
effective and adequate internal control system had been in operation.
Considerations are also given to the adequacy of resources, staff
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qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Directors
came to such a conclusion based on the Company’s policies and
procedures, specific limits of authority, budgetary controls, regular
monitoring of performance and the reports from both the external
auditor and the Internal Auditor.

We identify major risk in land acquisition for future expansion, the
development into world-class outstanding properties that will let us
stay ahead of competitors, maintaining adequate financial resources
for the projects, constantly upgrading the functions and appearance
of our properties to capture the changes in market and trend, using a
centralized treasury function and limiting the exposure to currency and
credit risk, safeguarding our assets, maintaining adequate insurance
coverage, formulating an appropriate disaster plan including a separate
computer back-up site, providing appropriate training and competitive
remuneration packages to retain quality staff.

The Directors confirm that there have been no major downside
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks faced by us from
the previous financial year, and the Company has the ability to respond
to any such changes in our business and the external environment.
Furthermore, there were no significant control failings or weaknesses
identified that have not been rectified in 2012. We closely monitor our
system of internal control, and received further assurance from the
Audit Committee that the internal audit function has been functioning
effectively. We have complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code in respect of maintaining an effective internal control system.

3. Code of Conduct
We have adopted a corporate Code of Conduct since 1994 which is
updated from time to time.

The Code of Conduct clearly spells out the Company’s stance, the legal
requirements, conflicts of interest, handling of confidential information
and company property, use of information and communication systems,
avenue for whistle blowing, fair trading with suppliers and contractors,
payment procedures, responsibilities to shareholders and the financial
community, relationship with customers and consumers, employment
practices, and responsibilities to the community. In essence, it details
the Group’s philosophy in running its business and acts as a benchmark
for all staff and suppliers to follow.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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In order to monitor and enforce compliance to the Code of Conduct,
functional managers are responsible for ensuring their subordinates
fully understand and comply with the standards and requirements
as stipulated. Any violation thereof will result in the employee being
disciplined, including termination of employment or reporting to
appropriate authorities if necessary. The Executive Directors will
also answer directly to any Board member for impartial and efficient
handling of complaints received from all shareholders and potential
shareholders; customers and consumers; suppliers and contractors
and our employees.

Also, all employees who are above a designated level are required to
complete and sign a declaration form every six months declaring their
interests, directly or indirectly, with the Company and our subsidiaries and
associated companies, so as to make sure that all operations are managed
in accordance with a high standard of practice and corporate governance.

4.  Auditor’'s Remuneration

KPMG was re-appointed as our external auditor by shareholders at the
2012 AGM until the conclusion of the 2013 AGM. They are primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the annual
consolidated financial statements.

The total remuneration in respect of services provided by the external
auditor is as follows:

BE-_ZT——F BE_ZT—F
T-A=t+—HLEE +ZA=+—RHItFE
Year ended December 31, 2012 Year ended December 31, 2011

BETET BB EET

HKS$ (in million) HK$ (in million)

TETE LB RS Statutory audit services 12 11
RIS MEMART  Tax and other services 5 5

() B hE )RR

1. BRE

EZRDHERFBABER - HIARF]
ERERBREERRE - HBERBB IR

B - DARERIRREREBERARRIE -

NMARF AR R E AN B N8B R - WERIS

BB NTERR R RRER o

(V) Communication with Stakeholders

1. Shareholders

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
setting out strategies that the Company has in place to promote
effective communication with shareholders, with the aim of ensuring
shareholders are provided with information about the Company and
enabling them to engage actively with the Company and to exercise
their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.
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Our AGM provides a good opportunity for communication between
the Board and shareholders. The Chairmen of the Board and of
the Committees are normally present to answer queries raised by
shareholders. The external auditor also attends the AGM every year.
Notice of the AGM and related papers are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the meeting. Each separate issue
is proposed by a separate resolution by the Chairman. The meeting
enjoys strong participation from shareholders.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of paid up capital
of the Company can make a requisition to convene an extraordinary
general meeting pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Ordinance.
The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must
be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at our
registered office.

Furthermore, section 115A of the Companies Ordinance provides that
(i) shareholder(s) representing not less than one-fortieth of the total
voting rights of all shareholders of the Company or (i) not less than
50 shareholders holding the shares in the Company on which there
has been paid up an average sum of not less than HK$2,000 per
shareholder can put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company by depositing a requisition in writing signed by
the relevant shareholder(s) on the registered office.

According to our articles of association, if any shareholder(s)
representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having the right to attend and vote at general meetings
of the Company wish(es) to propose a person (other than a retiring
director) for election as a director (the “Candidate”) at a general
meeting of the Company, the following documents must be lodged at
our registered office: (i) a written notice of such proposal duly signed by
the shareholder(s) concerned; and (i) a written consent duly signed by
the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected. The period
for lodgment of the above documents (being a period of at least seven
days) shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such meeting.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be sent
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our registered
address or by e-mail to our Company. In addition, shareholders can
contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the
share registrar of the Company, if they have any enquiries about the
shareholdings and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are
set out under “Listing Information” of this annual report.

Our last AGM was held on April 18, 2012 at Meeting Room S421, Level
4, Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The meeting was attended by 186 shareholders
present in person or by proxy. At the meeting, the Chairman had
demanded a poll on each of the resolutions submitted for voting, and the
shareholders were provided with detailed procedures for conducting a
poll. All resolutions tabled at the 2012 AGM, inter alia, adoption of the
financial statements, re-election of Directors, re-appointment of auditor
and renewal of general mandates were voted on by poll, and the results
of poll voting were posted on the websites of our Company and of the
HKEX in the evening on the same day. There are no changes in our
memorandum and articles of association in 2012.

SHRAFRGHRRAE
Shareholders Participation in AGM
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EERWERABHAN_Z—=FMA+/\H  The Board confirms that there are no changes proposed to our
BIT7BEREHREITARNT 2E4E  memorandum and articles of association at the forthcoming AGM
RAMEME] - TEAMBRFEEZERRERBA  to be held on April 18, 2013. The important shareholders’ dates
NEZAH  BRUEERLREHE_S— for the coming financial year, which include the Board Meetings for
=FF+_A=+—"HULEFEZFHIEN  considering the payments of interim and final dividends for the year
FERRBMBITANEEZER2EAMHEE - LA ending December 31, 2013 and the AGM, are expected to be held at
MBERXESBE  DRIHNR T —=F+  around late July 2013, late January 2014 and in April 2014 respectively.
AR ZZT—mOF—AK WEZF—

FPY FERTT o
2. KREZEH 2. Investors
RZT——F+ZA=+—HB2ZKREME  Details of shareholders by domicile as at December 31, 2012 are as
HEBIT - follows:
B3R BRE
Shareholders Shareholdings
A Btk BHEE BAk
Bt Domicile Number % Number of Shares %
B Hong Kong 2,144 97.94 966,215,107 71.59
R B A, Mainland China 6 0.27 128,375 0.01
SR Macau 4 0.18 116,075 0.01
B Taiwan 1 0.05 1,874 0.00
SN K PR Australia & New Zealand 4 0.18 18,200 0.00
IERKEH Canada & USA 15 0.69 108,025 0.01
REgn South East Asia 1 0.05 33,000 0.00
R United Kingdom 7 0.32 32,758 0.00
EHh Others 7 0.32 382,939,828 28.38
wet TOTAL 2,189 100.00 1,349,593,242 100.00
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Details of shareholders by holding range as at December 31, 2012 are
as follows:

B * BRE
Shareholders* Shareholdings*

AE Aot RHOEE Aot
24 B Holding Range Number % Number of Shares %
1-1,000 f% 1 - 1,000 shares 419 19.14 237,597 0.02
1,001 - 5,000 f% 1,001 - 5,000 shares 759 34.67 2,324,450 0.17
5,001 - 10,000 % 5,001 - 10,000 shares 388 17.73 3,235,677 0.24
10,001 - 100,000% 10,001 - 100,000 shares SIS 26.18 15,768,489 1.17
100,000 & A = Over 100,000 shares 50 2.28 1,328,027,029 98.40
st TOTAL 2,189 100.00 1,349,593,242 100.00

*BEECAATER2EPRER
BRE+Z8ATNE /&L

RZWEBZ AL WEERB 2K

BARNAN  UEBPREERBABRAREBRELHEEARLENT—

incorporating, in their respective shareholdings range, 297 participants of Central Clearing and Settlement System holding a total of 791,526,818
shares registered in the name of HKSCC Nominees Limited
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

We are committed to disclosing relevant information on our activities
to our shareholders and investors through regular analysts’ briefings,
press conferences and press releases, e-mails and our website,
apart from our annual and interim reports. All enquiries and proposals
received from shareholders, investors, media or the public are
responded to by Executive Directors, the Company Secretary or

appropriate key executives.

The Company'’s information is accessible to all via our website. Besides
providing traditional financial data, our website also contains the most
current information including properties available for sale and leasing,
interests

latest issued capital, updated substantial shareholders’

in shares, newsletters, major corporate events and frequently

asked questions.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
As good corporate citizens, we adopted the code provisions of the
CG Code. We comply with, and in many cases exceed, the CG Code
save as a deviation of code provision of A.6.7 as stated on page 103
of this report.
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PR BRR o8 &
Mr Ronnie Chichung Chan
Z =& Chairman

Aged 63, Mr Chan joined the Group in 1972, becoming Chairman in
1991. He also serves as Chairman of Hang Lung Properties Limited,
the Group’s major publicly listed subsidiary. Mr Chan is Vice-President
of The Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong, Co-Chair
of the Asia Society and Chairman of its Hong Kong Center. He also
acts as an advisor to the China Development Research Foundation in
Beijing. Mr Chan sits on the governing or advisory bodies of several
think-tanks and universities, including the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology, the University of Southern California, USA,
where he received his MBA, and Tsinghua University in Beijing. Mr
Chan is the brother of Mr Gerald Chan, a Non-Executive Director of
the Company.

R BELEE
Mr Shang Shing Yin
BIEERCBIENTES)

Vice Chairman (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Aged 81, Mr Yin joined the Group in 1970. Holding various positions
on the Board, including Managing Director between 1986 and 1992,
he has been Vice Chairman since 1992. He has over 40 years of
experience in the fields of property investment and development, and is
a qualified banker with a Banking Diploma from The Chartered Institute
of Bankers in London, UK. Mr Yin also serves as Vice Chairman of
Hang Lung Properties Limited.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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PR E 1% 5t &
Mr Philip Nan Lok Chen
% F 484518 Managing Director

Aged 57, Mr Chen joined the Company and its major listed subsidiary,
Hang Lung Properties Limited, as Managing Director in July 2010. Mr
Chen has more than 30 years of management experience, mostly in
the aviation industry, acquiring a wealth of experience in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and beyond. Mr Chen graduated from the University
of Hong Kong in 1977 with a Bachelor of Arts degree and holds a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from the same university.

[RER L
Mr Gerald Lokchung Chan

JE#7T7E 5 Non-Executive Director

Aged 61, Mr Chan has been a Director of the Company since 1986.
As co-founder of Morningside, Mr Chan has been active in venture
capital and private equity investments since 1987. He also serves on
the advisory boards of numerous universities including the University
of California, Los Angeles, Harvard University, Fudan University and
also the Chair of Overseers Committee of Morningside College, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr Chan received his undergraduate
training in engineering at the University of California, Los Angeles, and
his Doctor of Science degree from Harvard University. He is the brother
of Mr Ronnie Chan, Chairman of the Group.
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EZ 91 T sxmEs  OBE- ATML
Dr Hon Kwan Cheng aBs, 0BE, JP
JBN FEHITE = Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 85, Dr Cheng joined the Group in 1993. Dr Cheng obtained
an engineering degree from Tianjin University and a postgraduate
diploma from Imperial College, London, UK, of which he is a
Fellow. He is a past President, Honorary Fellow and Gold Medallist
of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Fellow of the Hong
Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences, and past Vice President,
Fellow and Gold Medallist of The Institution of Structural Engineers,
Fellow of The Institution of Civil Engineers, UK, Honorary Fellow of
The Institution of Engineers, Australia, and an Authorized Person
and Registered Structural Engineer in Hong Kong, with a State
Class 1 Registered Structural Engineer qualification. Dr Cheng
was a Member of both the Executive and Legislative Councils and
Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing Authority. Dr Cheng is an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Wing Hang Bank, Limited,
Agile Property Holdings Limited and Tianjin Development Holdings
Limited. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hang
Lung Properties Limited.
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PR 4 16 22 +
Ms Laura Lok Yee Chen

JBN FEHITE = Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 64, Ms Chen joined the Group in 1997. She has been involved
in the banking, real estate, and financial service industries for over
twenty years, both in Hong Kong and in the USA. Since 1993, she
has been a director of the Sterling Group — a private investment
entity managing investment portfolios in global capital markets, with
a special interest in emerging markets and high-yield products. In
recent years, her professional career has made the transition into
the development and management of philanthropic programs and
activities, and she is currently the Executive Chair of the Hong Kong
based ZeShan Foundation. She serves on the advisory councils of
the Hopkins-Nanjing Center — a joint program between the Johns
Hopkins and Nanjing Universities, the Asia Society Hong Kong Center,
and numerous nonprofit organizations. Ms Chen holds an MBA from
the George Washington University in Washington, DC, USA, and a
postgraduate certificate in International Banking from the University of
Virginia, USA. Ms Chen is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Hang Lung Properties Limited.
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EHLIRE cBE- AT@+
Mr Simon Sik On Ip cBE, JP

JBN FEHITE = Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 64, Mr Ip joined the Board in 1998. He is a solicitor and Notary
Public. Mr Ip has a distinguished record of public service. A former
Legislative Councillor, past President of the Law Society of Hong Kong,
and a past member of the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee and The
Advisory Committee on Post-service Employment of Civil Servants, he
is the Founding Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Education, the
Deputy Chairman of the Hong Kong Jockey Club, and he also holds
honorary positions in two local universities and Tsinghua University.

CEF=PH:
Mr Hau Cheong Ho

#177% = Executive Director

Aged 53, Mr Ho joined the Group in 2008 and was appointed to the
Board of the Company and of its publicly listed subsidiary, Hang Lung
Properties Limited, in September 2010. He is the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company and Hang Lung Properties Limited. Mr Ho possesses
more than 20 years of management experience covering a wide range
of industries in England, Australia, Mainland China and Hong Kong. He
qualified as a chartered accountant in England and Wales and Australia
and holds an MBA from the University of Melbourne, Australia and a
Bachelor of Commerce Degree in Accounting from the University of
Birmingham, UK.
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Ms Bella Peck Lim Chhoa

Company Secretary, General Counsel and Assistant Director — Corporate Affairs

Aged 42, Ms Chhoa joined the Group as Company Secretary, General
Counsel and Assistant Director — Corporate Affairs, in 2011. She is
responsible for overseeing the company secretarial, legal and human
resources and training functions of the Group. Prior to joining the Group,
she was head of the legal department and company secretary of two
other companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for a number of years. Ms Chhoa is a solicitor qualified to practice in
Hong Kong. She holds a Master of Business Administration degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor degree in
Law from The University of Hong Kong.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding, and
through its subsidiaries, property development for sales and leasing,
property investment for rental income, and other investments. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
also operate in car park management and property management, and
through its jointly controlled entities, are involved in the operation of
dry-cleaning.

An analysis of the turnover and trading results of the Group by
operating segments during the financial year is set out in Note 3 on the
Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

A list of principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, together
with their places of operations and incorporation and particulars of their
issued share capital/registered capital, is set out in Notes 35 and 36 on
the Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out
in the Financial Statements on pages 140 to 214.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last ten financial years is set out on page 215.

DIVIDENDS

The directors now recommend a final dividend of HK60 cents per share
which, together with the interim dividend of HK19 cents per share paid
on September 13, 2012, makes a total of HK79 cents per share in
respect of the year ended December 31, 2012. The proposed final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting
on April 18, 2013, will be paid on May 8, 2013 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on April 24, 2013.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



TERERIEF
FRREBRAAHERA {2 BER
B RAEBMAREF A KL 4!
HUHERAALETRASTEEHRBE
BREEBAHEREH 2=

%

BATG R M EE 58 — +HIHIER -

B

FRAREBZBRAEE —THEST(Z
E——F+-A=1+—HIXEA : B
—A8T —E——FT-A=t—HL
FE AN \BST) °

EEEE
FRETEELE
HE+ AR

BRI R E S

RITERREMER
AEER-F-—F+-A=+—HZR
TEHRRE S ERAHR S HRENM
E+NIER -

ERMbEZEES T
FAXREEENME 2 EEXZ ERIBAEE
—EAT=ZBEBR(ZE—F+=ZA=+
—HBEAEAR - BEALFTEEE T
T+ A=+ —HIEFEE:
BE—EBLT=ZE8T) °

SEFEYHE
RZTE——F+_A=+—HAEFATE
MEZFBERFELT _EETHLER

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, both the percentage of purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers combined and the percentage of turnover
or sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers combined
were less than 30% of the total purchases and turnover or sales of the
Group respectively.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 24 on the Financial Statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$14
million (HK$1 million for the six months ended December 31, 2011 and
HK$8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011).

FIXED ASSETS
Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note
11 on the Financial Statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
December 31, 2012 are set out in Note 19 on the Financial Statements.

BORROWING COSTS CAPITALIZATION

Borrowing costs capitalized by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$393 million (HK$97 million for the six months ended December
31, 2011 and HK$193 million for the year ended December 31, 2011).

MAJOR GROUP PROPERTIES
Details of major properties of the Group as at December 31, 2012 are
set out on pages 72 to 79.
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SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the issued and fully paid share capital was increased
by an issue of 1,152,000 shares (123,000 shares for the six months
ended December 31, 2011 and 373,000 shares for the year ended
December 31, 2011) of HK$1.00 each for total consideration of
HK$16,421,400 (HK$1,162,350 for the six months ended December
31, 2011 and HK$3,929,100 for the year ended December 31, 2011)
as a result of the exercise of share options under the Company’s share
option scheme.

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 23 on the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY’'S LISTED
SUBSIDIARY

During the year, the Company’s listed subsidiary, Hang Lung
Properties Limited (“HLPL”) issued 3,796,000 shares (955,875 shares
for the six months ended December 31, 2011 and 4,435,375 shares
for the year ended December 31, 2011) of HK$1.00 each, fully paid,
for total consideration of HK$59,827,080 (HK$15,851,750 for the
six months ended December 31, 2011 and HK$68,808,490 for the
year ended December 31, 2011) as a result of the exercise of share
options under HLPL's share option scheme adopted on November
22, 2002 (the “Old Scheme”). The Old Scheme was terminated upon
the adoption of a new share option scheme of HLPL on April 18, 2012
(the “New Scheme”). No further options shall be offered under the Old
Scheme.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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As at the date of this report, the total number of shares of HLPL
available for issue under the New Scheme is 335,504,253 shares,
representing 7.5% of the issued share capital of HLPL. The total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
(including both exercised and outstanding) granted to each participant
shall not exceed in any 12-month period 1% of shares of HLPL in issue.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company as at the date of this report are listed
on page 216 and their brief biographical details are set out on pages
122 to 126. Details of their remuneration are set out in Note 6 on the
Financial Statements.

Mr William P.Y. Ko resigned as executive director of the Company and
HLPL with effect from December 12, 2012.

In accordance with articles 103 and 104 of the Company’s articles of
association, Dr H.K. Cheng, Mr Simon S.O. Ip and Mr H.C. Ho retire
from the board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
director of the Company was materially interested, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year or at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
As at December 31, 2012, the interests or short positions of each of
the directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code

HESEBR (FE RFHEH) 2% Mm ~ t8F8  for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers or which were
i R EEE 2 ERIOAR T ¢ recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO are as follows:
EAR(HRE) EEEFRAT(HFR)
The Company (Long Position) Hang Lung Properties Limited (Long Position)
RIEHARE R
BRT  TRB2RY BRT  TRB2RY
BRAZ (BaE1) Rz (BaE2)
RAEE Bk Number of BRHEHE Epalsd Number of
Number % of Shares under Number % of Shares under
Name of of Issued Option of Issued Option
EEHSE 51  Directors Capacity Shares Capital (Note 1) Shares Capital (Note 2)
[REfs=  fEA  Ronnie C. Chan Personal - - 11,790,000 - - 36,570,000
BRiEE - S.S.Yin = = - - - _ _
s {EA  Phiip N.L. Chen Personal = = = = = 14,500,000
fREER - Gerald L. Chan - = = = = = =
Bzdy - H.K. Cheng = - - - - - -
fREENE  — Laura LY. Chen - = = = = = =
BB - SimonS.0.Ip - - - - - _ _
& @A HC.Ho Personal = = = = = 5,600,000
5 Notes
1. READ R ZRAHAEEINHEES
Movement of Options under the Share Option Scheme of the Company
RIBHETREZRE
Number of Shares under Option
FRITEE
(%)
RHEH 20124 FRITE R2012F Exercise =R g
(R/B/%) 1A1A8 Exercised 128310 Price (R/B/%) (A/B/%)
Date Granted As at during As at per Share Vested Dates Expiry Date
(mm/dd/yyyy) & Name Jan 1, 2012 the Year Dec 31,2012 (HK$) (mm/dd/yyyy)  (mm/dd/yyyy)
05/20/2004 FREZSR  Ronnie C. Chan 5,090,000 - 5,090,000 $9.45 05/20/2005: 25% 05/19/2014
05/20/2006: 25%
05/20/2007: 25%
05/20/2008: 25%
11/20/2006 BREZE  Ronnie C. Chan 6,700,000 - 6,700,000 $20.52 11/20/2007: 10% 11/19/2016
11/20/2008: 20%
11/20/2009: 30%
11/20/2010: 40%
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Movement of Options under the Share Option Scheme of Hang Lung Properties Limited

RIZERE TR 2 R
Number of Shares under Option

BRITEE

(B
ZH B A2012% FRIT H20124%F Exercise HEAH 28R
(B/R/%) 1818 Exercised 12A31H Price (B/8/%) (R/8/%)
Date Granted As at during As at per Share Vested Dates Expiry Date
(mm/ddlyyyy) R Name Jan 1, 2012 the Year Dec 31, 2012 (HK$) (mm/dd/yyyy)  (mm/dd/yyyy)
05/20/2004 fEEGR  Ronnie C. Chan 5,090,000 - 5,090,000 $9.20 05/20/2005: 25% 05/19/2014

05/20/2006: 25%
05/20/2007: 25%
05/20/2008: 25%

11/20/2006 PREZSR  Ronnie C. Chan 2,000,000 = 2,000,000 $17.14  11/20/2007: 10% 11/19/2016
11/20/2008: 20%
11/20/2009: 30%
11/20/2010: 40%

08/21/2007 FREZSR  Ronnie C. Chan 3,640,000 = 3,640,000 $25.00 08/21/2008: 10% 08/20/2017
08/21/2009: 20%
08/21/2010: 30%
08/21/2011: 40%

08/21/2007 FREZSR  Ronnie C. Chan 5,600,000 = 5,600,000 $25.00 08/21/2009: 10% 08/20/2017
08/21/2010: 20%
08/21/2011: 30%
08/21/2012: 40%

09/01/2008 f#%& H.C.Ho 300,000 - 300,000 $24.20 09/01/2010: 10% 08/31/2018
09/01/2011: 20%
09/01/2012: 30%
09/01/2013: 40%

12/31/2008 FREZSR  Ronnie C. Chan 9,240,000 = 9,240,000 $17.36  12/31/2010: 10% 12/30/2018
%58 H.C.Ho 300,000 = 300,000 12/31/2011: 20%

12/31/2012: 30%
12/31/2013: 40%

02/08/2010 FREZSR  Ronnie C. Chan 6,500,000 = 6,500,000 $26.46 02/08/2012: 10% 02/07/2020
02/08/2013: 20%
02/08/2014: 30%
02/08/2015: 40%

10,000,000 $33.05 07/29/2012: 10% 07/28/2020
07/29/20183: 20%
07/29/2014: 30%
07/29/2015: 40%

09/29/2010 fA#%& H.C.Ho 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 $36.90 09/29/2012: 10% 09/28/2020
09/29/20183: 20%
09/29/2014: 30%
09/29/2015: 40%

07/29/2010 BREG#%  Philip N.L. Chen 10,000,000

06/13/2011 FRERZ  Ronnie C. Chan 4,500,000 = 4,500,000 $30.79 06/13/2013: 10% 06/12/2021
FREg3%  Philip N.L. Chen 4,500,000 = 4,500,000 06/13/2014: 20%
fIZg& H.C.Ho 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 06/13/2015: 30%

06/13/2016: 40%

BRELENR-F - ZF+ AT —AREAARRRERBENTES - R-F——F—A—H  WHKARHEE  TRBATAERTRAR
RAIZBRMR-TAB Lt T=8REEMEZRD  EERZEHERN  BISAROBE  IRE_Tha tT=BREEMMEZKR®K -

Mr William P.Y. Ko resigned as executive director of the Company and HLPL on December 12, 2012. As at January 1, 2012, he had share options
to subscribe for 994,000 shares in the Company and 25,730,000 shares in HLPL, and up to his resignation, he had share options to subscribe for
25,730,000 shares in HLPL.

ZEARR MEEMERND PEER S BRI ERERME =T LO)BA -

Such interests in share options of the Company and HLPL have been included in Note 29(b) on the Financial Statements.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company or
any of their associates had, as at December 31, 2012, any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations.

Other than as stated above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company (including their spouses and children under
18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2012, details of substantial shareholders’ and
other persons’ (who are required to disclose their interests pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO) interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

BHEROSAEBERGEE
Number of Shares or ERTRAZESL
Underlying Shares Held % of Issued Capital
\ (#F#&) (%E) (&) (%7
Pt s (Long (Short (Long (Short
8 Name Note Position) Position) Position)  Position)
PREERE 25 Chan Tan Ching Fen 1 498,428,580 - 36.93 -
Cole Enterprises Cole Enterprises 1 498,428,580 - 36.93 -
Holdings Limited Holdings Limited
Merssion Limited Merssion Limited 1 498,428,580 - 36.93 -
Kingswick Investment Limited ~ Kingswick Investment Limited 2 97,965,000 = 7.26 =
Aberdeen Asset Aberdeen Asset 3 204,272,454 = 156.14 =
Management Plc & Management Plc and
HEEAL its Associates
Davis Selected Advisers, L.P. Davis Selected Advisers, L.P. 8 66,870,000 - 5.01 -
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5 Notes

1. WERDE—EAESIRFE 2RO BR 1KY - REBES LT A%ETES ZKILA ° Cole Enterprises Holdings Limited ArZ{E5tHEE 2 XFEA ©
These shares were the same parcel of shares held by a trust of which Ms Chan Tan Ching Fen was the founder. Cole Enterprises Holdings

Limited was the trustee of the trust.

Merssion Limited#5B PN T NA\BO+ 8 NFHA/N\TEES - ERAFEAENT7E R TR B EHE 2 fKingswick Investment Limited#574 ©
Merssion Limited held 498,428,580 shares, of which 97,965,000 shares were held by its subsidiary, Kingswick Investment Limited.

2. Kingswick Investment Limited FTi56 2 L FH B N +8 R TG B 257 Lt AREE 4 4 1 /Cole Enterprises Holdings Limited/Merssion
Limited i 2 MEATF N NBE+ZENFTRENTREHZHER -
The 97,965,000 shares held by Kingswick Investment Limited were included in the above-mentioned number of 498,428,580 shares held by Ms
Chan Tan Ching Fen/Cole Enterprises Holdings Limited/Merssion Limited.

3. WERMD TIARELESNFTHE

These shares were held in the capacity of investment managers.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2012, no other interest
required to be recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of the
SFO has been notified to the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the usual
course of business are set out in Note 30 on the Financial Statements.
None of these related party transactions constitutes a discloseable
connected transaction as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 99 to 121.
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22l AUDITOR

AATERENEERITZIREREAE 12 A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the
HrZER ZEEEZATEFHETAME Company until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting is to
AR ATZEE B2 NEREAE  be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
REHERBIE ©

EEERW By Order of the Board
NEE Bella Peck Lim Chhoa
EEM Company Secretary

BB —T—=F—H=+—H Hong Kong, January 31, 2013
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hang Lung Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hang Lung
Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 140 to 214, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at December 31,
2012, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
December 31, 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

January 31, 2013
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HE—ZT——F+ - A=+—H -5 For the year ended December 31, 2012

HE
BE —FT——F
—E——% +Z-A=+—H
+=—H=+—H 1E~EA
IEFE Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
fff= December 31, December 31, | December 31,
in HK$ Million Note 2012 2011 2011
W Turnover 3(a) 7,986 3,361 6,286
EAb YA Other income 4 2,969 219 378
BEERAREEER Direct costs and operating expenses (1,826) (708) (1,318)
THRER Administrative expenses (695) (300) (439)
Rt AEBMEZ A FEESFH) Operating profit before change
el in fair value of investment properties 8,434 2,572 4,907
WEWEZ N FEEN Increase in fair value of
investment properties 11 3,057 953 2,100
BRI AREYE 2 A FEZER  Operating profit after change
EEEF in fair value of investment properties 11,491 3,525 7,007
BB Finance costs 5 (458) (149) (222)
FEGE & A Rl A Share of profits of jointly
controlled entities 13 276 241 443
B 75t B A Profit before taxation 3(a) &5 11,309 3,617 7,228
B Taxation 7(a) (1,379) (580) (1,145)
AREE /HH T Profit for the year/period 9,930 3,037 6,083
JE(LAD R - Attributable to:
AR Shareholders 24 5,262 1,578 3,206
e i R Non-controlling interests o5 4,668 1,459 2877
9,930 3,037 6,083
FRAF Earnings per share 10(a)
E- 9N Basic $3.90 $1.17 $2.38
351 Diluted $3.87 $1.16 $2.36
WIS SRR T DA Ig Rk 2 — 305 ° The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
& /BRI R (G AL B FE R B REQ o Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the year/period are set out in note 9.
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HE—ZT——F+ - A=+—H -5 For the year ended December 31, 2012

2 7< CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE
=
LEAE A
Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
e e December 31, December 31, | December 31,
LB E ST E in HK$ Million 2012 2011 2011
AEE/HEF Profit for the year/period 9,930 3,037 6,083
Hib 2 mEWiE Other comprehensive income 7(d)
EIEEE AR ZEARGHE Decrease of share of capital reserves of
2 jointly controlled entities - ) )
REMERBEE)FHE Net movement in investment
revaluation reserve 11 (16) (19
BMEEINEBARIIRIEEA > Exchange difference arising from
[EHE=R translation of overseas subsidiaries 171 1,825 3,297
182 1,808 3,277
NEE/MEERSALE Total comprehensive income for
the year/period 10,112 4,845 9,360
EE2ERREAE ! Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
&= Shareholders 5,371 2,561 4,908
FEE R R A Non-controlling interests 4,741 2284 4,452
10,112 4,845 9,360
MMM TR BHKk e —Ho The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BTSN R STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R=ZF—=—F+=H=+—H At December 31, 2012

£ 8 Group /A A Company
BB BEESTAHE in HK$ Million
FERBEE Non-current assets
ElE&E Fixed assets
- v/ES Investment properties 106,102 101,833 - _
BERPIREAME Investment properties
under development 24,482 23,613 - -
HibEE & E Other fixed assets 255 206 - _
11 130,839 125,672 - -
b)EEpNGIb: £ Interest in subsidiaries 12 - _ 15,001 14,721
AENEER Interest in jointly
controlled entities 13 2,247 2,152 - -
Hth&EE Other assets 14 1,258 1,697 - _
RIERBEE Deferred tax assets 21(0) 19 45 _ _
134,363 129,566 15,001 14,721
REEE Current assets
Re RIRITIFH Cash and deposits
with banks 15 40,183 26,149 - -
JFE S BR RN L A U R Trade and other receivables 16 860 779 - _
HEhEE Other assets 14 452 449 - _
FEME Properties for sale 17 6,139 6,145 - _
BEEZEE Assets held for sale 18 906 _ - _
48,540 33,522 - -
REEE Current liabilities
BITERRHAEE Bank loans and
other borrowings 19 1,113 5,400 - -
JENBEF M HAERZL  Trade and other payables 20 5,240 4,134 7 6
FERFIIE Taxation payable 21() 446 455 - _
FHEZAE Liabilities held for sale 18 13 _ - _
6,812 9,989 7 6
REBEE/(8E)FE Net current assets/(liabilities) 41,728 23,533 @ ©)
EEAERRBERE Total assets less
current liabilities 176,091 153,099 14,994 14,715
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITERREMEER Bank loans and
other borrowings 19 36,532 22,294 - -
FEFTH A RIFIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 12(b) - - 373 443
RIEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 21(p) 0,944 9,637 - _
46,476 31,931 373 443
BEERE NET ASSETS 129,615 121,168 14,621 14,272
EAREE Capital and reserves
FRAR Share capital 23 1,350 1,348 1,350 1,348
ki Reserves 24 63,874 59,162 13,271 12,924
AR Shareholders’ eqity 65,224 60,510 14,621 14,272
Ik Non-controlling interests o5 64,391 60,658 - _
B TOTAL EQUITY 129,615 121,168 14,621 14,272
PBREI#% Philip N.L. Chen
EREKE Managing Director
CEA=! H.C. Ho
MITES Executive Director
MmN IR BiKk 2 —H5 - The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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HE—ZT——F+ - A=+—H -5 For the year ended December 31, 2012

fi%ER#E2% Shareholders’ equity

. , IR
AR Hif#EdE  RERF Non-  #&kEzs
Share Other  Retained 1 controlling Total
capital reserves profits interests equity
\ R (fE23)  (FfizE24) (FizE24) (Pfg7E25)
LAY EEITTE in HK$ Million (Note 23) (Note 24) (Note 24) (Note 25)
WZZE——%+tA—H At July 1, 2011 1,348 7,455 50,169 58,972 61,225 120,197
ANERR A Profit for the period - - 1,578 1,578 1,459 3,037
JEIHEERRZENHE Decrease of share of capital
2 reserves of jointly controlled
entities - 1) - 1) - 1)
BEMEREEETFE Net movement in investment
revaluation reserve - (16) - (16) - (16)
MEIGINIT B A RIRRIA Exchange difference arising
EXCERER from translation of overseas
subsidiaries - 1,000 - 1,000 825 1,825
NEARE R B FE Total comprehensive income
for the period - 983 1,578 2,561 2,284 4,845
EEERARE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - (769) (769) - (769)
AT Issue of shares - 1 - 1 _ 1
EEREER Employee share-based
payments - 53 4 57 49 106

EAEE A — R E AR Change in non-controlling

Z B AR AN interests arising from increase
R IERE D) of the Group's shareholding in
a subsidiary - (312) - (312) (1,696)  (2,008)
BN IR R AL S Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - (1,191) (1,191
B8 FIFE R AE R RIE Repayment to non-controlling
interests - - - - (13) (13)
R-ZT——F+=-H=+—H AtDecember 31,2011 and
—FT——%—A—H January 1, 2012 1,348 8,180 50,982 60,510 60,658 121,168
AR Profit for the year - - 5,262 5,262 4,668 9,930
BEGEREEETFE Net movement in investment
revaluation reserve - 11 - 11 - 11
HEEINEBARIIRBEA 2  Exchange difference arising
fER =R from translation of overseas
subsidiaries - 98 - 98 73 171
AEE2EKGEETE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 109 5,262 5,371 4,741 10,112
EFEERHRE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - (513) (513) - (513)
KEZFHERE Interim dividends in respect of
current financial year - - (256) (256) - (256)
BATRR D Issue of shares 2 15 - 17 _ 17
EERIEER Employee share-based
payments - (4) 113 109 124 233
E AR B — B A Change in non-controlling
Z MR A 2 A interests arising from
IR A decrease of the Group’s
shareholding in a subsidiary - (14) - (14) 74 60
AR E RIS Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - (1,176) (1,176)
B8 TIEE RS ZUE Repayment to
non-controlling interests = - - - (30) (30)
R=T—=—%+=H=+—H AtDecember 31,2012 1,350 8,286 55,588 65,224 64,391 129,615
MmN T AR BiKk 2 —H - The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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—&#+= A=+—H L5 Z For the year ended December 31, 2012

Et;.;_z

BE-Z——F
+=H=+—H =
IHEE 1EX1EA
Year ended Six months ended Year ended
in HK$ Million December 31,2012 December 31, 2011 | December 31, 2011
e TEE) Operating activities
REKEEF RS Cash generated from operations 26 6,201 2297 4,256
ERHIE Tax paid
BREBNEE Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (455) (1,064) (1,064)
A B TS China Income Tax paid (596) (176) (466)
RELETEZ Net cash generated from
REFH operating activities 5,150 1,057 2,726
b Investing activities
Payment for fixed assets (5,360) (6,960) (9,769)
3 Net sale proceeds from
Fﬁ{? S5 E 4 disposal of fixed assets 5,171 3 4
RG] ’%Z Deposits received for assets
BEZRS held for sale o1 _ _
EE \%%?'Jﬁﬁ AigE Purchase of held-to-maturity
investments - (13) (13)
EH&Z?*E%?'JHE A Receipt of matured held-to-
REKIE maturity investments 450 _ _
2 HAILE Interest received 700 188 354
BiE %’& Dividends received from
jointly controlled entities 40 21 49
BENEER Repayment from jointly
controlled entities 141 49 72
EH&;H: miR&IERHE Dividends received from
(385 unlisted investments 3 11 11
,Eja/ ( i) Repayment of advance from/
ELMIREER (advances to) unlisted
investments 1 1 (1)
R =1{E A B HARRFT (Increase)/Decrease in bank
Fkz (3hn)/5m deposits with maturity greater
than three months (3,223) 2,811 1,183
ARRETEZ Net cash used in
RE&FE investing activities (1,986) (3,889) (8,110)
BEEE Financing activities
FERITER R Proceeds from new bank loans
HifEE ﬁﬁ’E FKIB and other borrowings 16,054 9.202 16,216
BRIRTTER Repayment of bank loans (5,920) (2,500) 4,183)
ITERDERREFTS A Proceeds from exercise of
share options 17 1 5
BENHSR Interest and other borrowing
HEfigeE[A costs paid (968) (218) (407)
ENBERNER Finance lease charges paid @3 ) (13)
BERRE Dividends paid (769) (769) (1,025)
BT IR R AR B Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests (1,176) (1,191) (1,604)
BB I IR i 2 OB Repayment to non-controlling
interests (30) (13) (218)
iop=sNCIE e H%Z% = Increase/(Decrease) in
8/ Gl non-controlling interests
in subsidiaries 60 (2,008) (2,301)
BERN 2 EARE D Capital element of finance lease (104) (64) (126)
REMEEE 2 Net cash generated from
REFE financing activities 7,161 2435 6,344
ReRESEEYZ Increase/(Decrease) in cash
#hn/GRa) and cash equivalents 10,325 (397) 960
ExgmovE Effect of foreign exchange
rate change 444 904 1,290
W—HA—B/£A—HB8 Cashand cash equivalents
ZRERREEEY at January 1/July 1 21,303 20,796 19,053
R+=-—A=+—H Cash and cash equivalents
ZHERELZEY  at December 31 15 32,072 21,303 21,303

BTSRRI AN Tk 2 — =B D

144 |

EfREEAR AR

—E—FFR

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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(LA # A 87 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 BERMBRFEFLEH
BERARAFEEFERN _T——F+— A=
TERZRE  ARFRZHMRFEFHEH
HMAA=ZTHEEXRR/RT-_A=1t—H %
FURERTHEARFTNMBFEFAERE
HR o Bt p L 2 BB R Bl B B T2
FRA-B ZFRRHMBERETFS
R BRERAAR - LA EMBEREK
ZHRFEEFHEBRBEAAERST A
=t+—RH-

MRV BFEFEBELER - NP B
ME—_ET——F—A—HAE=_T——-F+
“A=+—BuLt+—@EA(&E==ZF—=
FHZA=Z+—HIEFE]) - MAMBER
RZLHBHFARE_T—FtHA—H
E-T——F+_-_A=+—HIt~EA
(B2 F+_-_A=1t—HIt~E
Al [ZT—H8M)) - AR R TE
R EEMETFIEL LR - RIBRCE BN
EHELB) ([HKFRSs ) iR#y — T ——
F—A—HE-ZF——%+=-A=+—H
Ftt+t—@EABE-—E—F+=-A=+
—HUEFEEI K [ZTE——FE|)2HKE
B RERERER - KRE2ERER © &
AREFEREETERNZMFHE + U
1IN BF TS R 2 LLEME o

2 EFESHEE

(@) BHIZEEA

RIS ERER THIRIR A A i 2 HKFRSs &
B MZBHRETESAMAGRML
FrEERER(EBUHREER) - (FE
S ERD ([HKASs ) k2 #g - EELARE
AHRARBECRBURD) ZRE - NP
BRI ECBEEMAXHMERAFES
ERRAD ZERFERTE - AEEERMAZ
TEEFERRBANT -

1 CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company
dated November 27, 2011, the Company’s financial year end date
has been changed from June 30 to December 31. The change is
to align with the financial year end date of the Company with that of
its subsidiaries established in mainland China, the financial results of
which are consolidated into its consolidated financial statements each
year, and their financial statements are statutorily required to be closed
with the financial year end date of December 31.

As a result of the change in financial year end date, the current
financial period covers a twelve-month period from January 1, 2012 to
December 31, 2012 (the “year ended December 31, 2012”), and the
comparative figures in these financial statements cover a six-month
period from July 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 (the “six months ended
December 31, 2011” or “P.E. 12/2011”). As the comparative figures
are not comparable with those of current financial period, financial
information for the twelve-month period from January 1, 2011 to
December 31, 2011 (the “year ended December 31, 2011” or “Y.E.
12/2011”), prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), has been disclosed for the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated cash flow statement and certain selected notes to
enhance comparability.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable HKFRSs, which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the principal accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. These new and revised HKFRSs have no significant impact
on the financial statements of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2012 and the six months ended December 31, 2011.

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendment or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(note 33).

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s
interest in jointly controlled entities.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated in the
accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs that

have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 32.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity, so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken
into account.

De facto control exists when the Company is able to exert effective control
by holding a substantial non-controlling interest in an entity of which the
other shareholdings are widely dispersed and thus unable to coalesce to
successfully vote against the wishes of the largest shareholder.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealized profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealized gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the Company,
whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognized at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (note 2()).

(d) Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual
arrangement between the Group or the Company and other parties,
where the contractual arrangement establishes that the Group or the
Company and one or more of the other parties share joint control over
the economic activity of the entity.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity method and are
initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entities’ net assets.
The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the jointly controlled entities for
the year, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
items of the jointly controlled entities’ other comprehensive income is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the jointly
controlled entity, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the jointly controlled entity. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
in the jointly controlled entity is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity.

When the group ceases to have joint control over a jointly controlled
entity, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date when joint control
is lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity, except where unrealized
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in jointly
controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment losses (note 2(j)).

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination
over the Group’s share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses and is
tested regularly for impairment (note 2())).
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Goodwill (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of a
business combination is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

On disposal of an entity, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

() Properties

1. Investment properties and investment properties under
development

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or

held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or for capital

appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined

future use and property that is being constructed or developed for

future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in the
course of construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal
of an investment property is recognized in profit or loss. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described in note 2(g).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is
classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has been classified as
an investment property is accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease, and the same accounting policies are applied to that interest as
are applied to other investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in note 2(g).

2.  Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are classified under current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs
include the acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of development,
borrowing costs capitalized (note 2(0)) and other direct expenses. Net
realizable value represents the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the property.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Properties (Continued)
3. Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are classified under current assets and
stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including borrowing
costs capitalized, attributable to unsold properties. Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price as determined by reference to
management estimates based on prevailing market conditions, less
costs to be incurred in selling the property.

(g) Other fixed assets

1. Otherfixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses (note 2(j)). Gains or losses arising from
the retirement or disposal of an item of other fixed assets are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognized in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

2. Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

() Classification of assets leased to the Group

The classification is determined based on an evaluation of the substance
of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease. Leases of assets under which the lessee
assumes substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Leases of assets under which the lessor
has not transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-by-property basis and is
accounted for as if held under a finance lease; and
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Other fixed assets (Continued)
2. Leased assets (Continued)

() Classification of assets leased to the Group (Continued)

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of
which cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
included in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under finance leases. Depreciation
is provided at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Company or
the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 2(h). Finance charges impilicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are written off as an expense of the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

(i) Operating leases charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Depreciation
1. Investment properties

No depreciation is provided for investment properties and investment
properties under development.

2. Other fixed assets

Depreciation on other fixed assets is calculated to write off the cost,
less their estimated residual value, if any, on a straight line basis over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 50 years or unexpired lease term,
whichever is shorter

Furniture and equipment 4-20 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

(i) Financial assets
1. Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity which the Group’s
management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized in the statement of
financial position at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment loss. Any impairment loss is recognized in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired (note 2())).

2. Other investments in equity securities

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognized in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (note 2(j)). Other investments in equity securities are classified
as available-for-sale equity securities and are initially recognized at fair
value plus transaction costs. At the end of the reporting period, the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity.
Dividend income from these investments is recognized directly in profit
or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(q). When these
investments are derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized directly in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Investments are recognized/derecognized on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

(j) Impairment of assets

An assessment is carried out at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence that a current or non-current
asset, other than properties carried at revalued amounts, is impaired. In
the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost is
considered in determining whether the investments are impaired.

If any such indication exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognized as follows:

- For current receivables carried at amortized cost, the impairment
loss is recognized when there is objective evidence of impairment
and measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective rate where the
effect of discounting is material. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about events that have an impact on the asset’s estimated future
cash flows such as significant financial difficulty of the debtor. If in
a subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized in prior years.

Impairment losses for receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognized in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity securities, the cumulative loss that has
been recognized in investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognized
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortization) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognized in
profit or loss. Impairment loss recognized in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities is not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognized in other comprehensive income.

For other non-current assets, the recoverable amount is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is recognized as an
expense in profit or loss whenever the carrying amount exceeds
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favorable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment losses is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognized. An impairment loss in respect
of goodwill is not reversed.

(k) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and

thereafter stated at amortized cost less impairment losses for bad and

doubtful debts (note 2(j)), except where the receivables are interest-free

loans or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,

the receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (note 2(j)).
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated cash flow statement.

(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortized cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference
between costs and redemption value being recognized in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

(o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities
1. Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Company issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially recognized as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognized in accordance with the Company’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. When no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognized in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognized as deferred income
is amortized in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognized in accordance with note 2(p)(2) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of guarantee will call upon the Company
under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Company
is expected to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and
other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognized, less accumulated amortization.

2. Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. When the time value of the money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)
2. Other provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(q) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognized in profit or loss as follows:

1. Sale of properties

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognized upon the
later of the signing of sale and purchase agreements or the issue of
occupation permit by the relevant government authorities, which is
taken to be the point in time when the risks and rewards of ownership
of the property have passed to the buyer.

2. Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognized on a straight
line basis over the terms of the respective leases, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payment receivable. Contingent rentals are recognized as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

S, Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

4.  Dividends

Dividends are recognized when the right to receive payment is
established.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Taxation

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized, are
recognized. The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes and the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Taxation (Continued)

When investment properties and investment properties under development
are carried at their fair value in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2(f)(1), the amount of deferred tax recognized is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value
at the end of the reporting period unless the property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognized is
measured based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognized when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognized.

(s) Translation of foreign currencies

[tems included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group
are measured using the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the
entity (“functional currency”). The financial statements of the Group are
presented in Hong Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
values are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.
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2
(s)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated in Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences

are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated

separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognized.

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the same Group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a Group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.
The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in note 2(t)(1).

A person identified in note 2(t)(1)()) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
Group’s internal financial reporting to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations. For disclosure purpose, a reportable
segment comprises either one or more operating segments which
can be aggregated together because they share similar economic
characteristics and nature of the regulatory environment, or single
operating segments which are disclosable separately because they
cannot be aggregated or they exceed quantitative thresholds.

(v) Employee benefits

1. Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement schemes

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, the cost of non-monetary

benefits and obligation for contributions to defined contribution

retirement schemes, including those payables in mainland China and

Hong Kong under relevant legislation, are accrued in the year in which

the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

2.  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is measured at
grant date, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted, and is expensed on a straight line basis over
the vesting period taking into account the probability that the options
will vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (employee share-
based compensation reserve).

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognized in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve).
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Employee benefits (Continued)
2.  Share-based payments (Continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the related employee
share-based compensation reserve is transferred to share capital and
share premium, together with the exercise price. If the options expire
or lapse after the vesting period, the related employee share-based
compensation reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.

(w) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset is classified as held for sale (or disposal group) if
it is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above criteria for classification
as held for sale are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the
non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal
group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are recognized at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions
to this measurement policy so far as the financial statements of the
Group are concerned are deferred tax assets and investment properties.
These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognized in profit
or loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or
is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the
non-current asset is not depreciated or amortized.
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses according to the nature of services
and products provided. Management has determined three reportable
operating segments for the measurement of performance and the
allocation of resources. The segments are property leasing in Hong
Kong and mainland China and property sales in Hong Kong.

Property leasing segment includes property leasing operation. The
Group’s investment properties portfolio, which mainly consists of retail,
office, residential, serviced apartments and carparks are primarily located
in Hong Kong and mainland China. Property sales segment includes
development and sale of the Group’s trading properties in Hong Kong.

Management evaluates performance primarily based on profit
before taxation.

Segment assets principally comprise all non-current assets and current
assets directly attributable to each segment with the exception of
interest in jointly controlled entities, other assets, deferred tax assets,
assets held for sale and cash and deposits with banks. The investment
properties of the Group are included in segment assets at their fair
values whilst the change in fair value of investment properties is not
included in segment profits.
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(Continued)

(@) DEPEXRBERFEE (@) Turnover and results by segments

¥ i 4] Profit before taxation

S
—EB——F
+=A =
Sr=1[ LEREA
LHFE Six months Six months
Year ended ended Year ended Year ended ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, | December 31,| December 31, December 31, December 31,
in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011 2012 2011 2011
pax:i] Segment
YERE Property leasing
-BA - Hong Kong 3,185 1,564 3,079 2,645 1,290 2,533
— B A ~ Mainland China 3,526 1,604 3,014 2,668 1,213 2,285
6,711 3,168 6,093 5,313 2,503 4,818
MIEHE Property sales
-&8 - Hong Kong 1,275 193 193 847 150 150
A EB Segment total 7,986 3,361 6,286 6,160 2,653 4,968
Hiplg A Other income 2,969 219 a78
1TEE A (M) Administrative expenses (Note) (695) (300) (439)
Rt A EME Operating profit before
2D THEE B change in fair value of
EER investment properties 8,434 2572 4,907
BEME L Increase in fair value of
ATELE N investment properties 3,057 953 2,100
-REBZMFEEE — property leasing in
Hong Kong 2,112 655 1,387
-RRERZ ERE - property leasing in
mainland China 945 298 713
BER Finance costs (458) (149) (222)
[E(EEERRIEF Share of profits of
jointly controlled entities 276 241 443
B e Nyl Profit before taxation 11,309 3,617 7,228
BIE Note:
THRERGEREER _E=T=-"a81T(ZZT—HH : Administrative expenses included share-based payments of $233 million (P.E. 12/2011: $106

—EBEANBEL: —E——FEF: —EBRAFT—EET)° million; Y.E. 12/2011: $151 million) representing the amortization of the fair value of options
BRIEERAE TREENMRNDEIEARZEBIHANZ A ERE granted to employees over the vesting period and do not involve any cash outflow for the Group.
i AREREENEFRSRL
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3 EXFmRIHBER @ 3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(b) PEEEE (b) Total assets by segments
424 FE Total assets
in HK$ million
2 &R Segment
LIE SN Property leasing
- BB - Hong Kong 55,282 56,857
- R AL - Mainland China 76,394 69,554
131,676 126,411
MEHE Property sales
- BB - Hong Kong 6,162 6,185
D EpAEE Segment total 137,838 132,596
BE N A Interest in jointly controlled entities 2,247 2,152
Hib&E Other assets 1,710 2,146
RIERIAE E Deferred tax assets 19 45
FHECAE Assets held for sale 906 -
Re RBITFER Cash and deposits with banks 40,183 26,149
WEE Total assets 182,903 163,088
4  EHAlgA 4 OTHER INCOME
BHE
Bz %
+=A=+—H 1E73ME A
LFE Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
BB ESETE in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011
HERE YR Gain on disposal of investment properties 2,149 _ _
RITHEHA Bank interest income 703 188 303
FELTEEIHARENBUA  Interest income from unlisted held-to-maturity
investments 19 10 19
EHAbF BUA Other interest income 18 _ 1
LR EBEA ZBBYA Dividend income from listed investments 3 - 3
FELETIREBA ZBREUA Dividend income from unlisted investments 3 11 11
[E 5 W as/ (E518 ) 48 Net exchange gain/(loss) 10 ©) 9
Hith Others 64 12 1o
2,969 219 378

166 | BESEERAT —ZT—_FF®  HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

5 BRELATZA

HE
Bz —T——4F
2% +-A=+—H
+=—BA=+—H 1E7~1EA
LEE Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
e — 2y December 31, December 31, December 31,
BB BSITHE in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011
BREADE R E R T 5IEIE Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:
BRARAFANEEZRITERKL  Interest on bank loans and other borrowings
HiaE2F 8 repayable within 5 years 489 152 208
BRAFREEZIRITERE  Interest on bank loans and other borrowings
HgE 22 repayable over 5 years 292 67 124
BEMENER Finance lease charges 3 5 13
HibfEERAR Other borrowing costs 67 20 50
BER B Total borrowing costs 851 246 415
o EERARE R (M) Less: Borrowing costs capitalized (Note) (393) @7) (193)
% EA Finance costs 458 149 299
2 E YA Cost of properties sold 355 16 16
BT - BIEESMEER  Staff costs, including employee share-based
—E=FzEEn (=T — payments of $233 million (P.E. 12/2011:
HE: —ETREET $106 million; Y.E. 12/2011: $152 million) 935 419 740
—FFE:RATZ
BEIT)
N Depreciation 38 16 30
BEMMER  BIEAMEE A Operating lease charges, including contingent
Z(ZE2——HFE: —T= rentals of $Nil (P.E. 12/2011: $12 million;
BB —T——FE Y.E. 12/2011: $24 million) 20 56 113
—FHEST)
BTN < Auditors’ remuneration
- ZH R — audit services 12 5 11
— W% S EL A AR — tax and other services 5 3 5
WEEFTA and after crediting:
WEME AL W ALEE - 230 Gross rental income from investment properties
BEESH+T=BATFN\BE lessdrect outgoings of $1,398 million
T(ZE——H NMESNTHE (P.E 12/2011: $665 million; Y.E. 12/2011:
BEL: ZET——FE : +=  $1,275 milion), including contingent rentals
BETHABT)  BEX of $345 million (P.E. 12/2011: $176 million;
SEE=EBNTHEST Y.E. 12/2011: $339 million) 5,313 2,503 4,818
(ZZ—HM : —EtF~a
B T —FF:
=B=FThBE&ET)

BfoE Note:
BEPYEZBERNEREFEIZ_HAN(ZE—H
M:EPZ2— 8N ZT——FF: 822 %N)Z2FH
REARA ©

The borrowing costs have been capitalized at an average rate of 2.6% (P.E. 12/2011: 1.9%; Y.E.
12/2011: 1.9%) per annum for properties under development.
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6 EERSREEAESZHNE

REALFMEZESRE—RBIUINTE
FoZRBeRNESeRHUARMIENTE
ERBEILGFRATEENFMENEZ - X
REBRIAITEFTOFIEF - EFAVBN
EHREBENFERE ATEENE
MRER - EEEARRNKREAN - ™
BB RBRITHERBRAEMERE

(a) ESBE
EEMEFIAT

LABEE B B ITaTE in HKS milion

6 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three

Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Committee makes
recommendation to the Board on the Non-Executive Director’s and
Independent Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration packages
and determines the remuneration package of individual Executive
Directors. The emoluments of Directors are determined by the scope
of responsibility and accountability, and performance of individual
Executive Directors, taking into consideration of the Company’s
performance and profitability, market practice and prevailing business

conditions, etc.

(@) Directors’ emoluments

Details of directors’ emoluments are summarized below:

HZE
—T——F
_T=A

=+—H
LE7EA

Bz

AEEYE —2-—%

ERE +=A

sT &2 it =+—H

Group’s IEFEE  Sixmonths

BYEFEAL contributions  Year ended ended

Discretionary to retirement December 31, December 31,
bonuses scheme 2012 2011

e FERy
REYFIZ
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

ik

Fees

BITE=S Executive Directors
PRES R Ronnie C. Chan 0.7 22.5 8.0 2.2 33.4 17.0
PR E 1 Philip N.L. Chen 0.5 21.1 8.0 1.1 30.7 15.1
G H.C. Ho 0.5 4.3 37 0.2 8.7 3.7
=i () Wiliam P.Y. Ko (Note (c) 0.5 9.1 3.8 0.9 14.3 75
FHITES Non-Executive Director
BREER Gerald L. Chan 0.3 - - - 0.3 0.1
BIYFHITEE Independent
Non-Executive Directors

R E S.S.Yin 0.5 - - - 0.5 0.3
BrREEE Laura LY. Chen 0.8 - - - 0.8 0.4
BRE H.K. Cheng 0.9 - - - 0.9 0.5
BB Simon S.0. Ip 0.4 - - - 0.4 0.2
BE—Z——% Yearended

+=H=+—H December 31,2012 5.1 57.0 23.5 4.4 90.0 44.8

LHEE
HE-T——F Sixmonths ended

+=A=+—H December 31,2011 2.8 28.1 11.7 2.2 44.8

LE7]{EA
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6 EENRSREBAEZME
()

b) EEFALZEME

Eh&&m#HALH =H(ZF——H

B =ZR)RARAEE  —BREADAZ

RMEEERARZESR —R(ZT——H

B ZZ)ALZBemT

6 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (P.E. 12/2011:
three) are existing directors of the Company, one is an ex-director of
the Company and the emoluments in respect of the remaining (P.E.
12/2011: two) individual are as follows:

—E2——-% +=-A=+—H

+=A=+—H 1E75E A

IHFE Six months

Year ended ended

December 31, December 31,

in HK$ million 2012 2011

we Fees 0.2 0.2
e RMREDH = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6.2 3.0
B ETEAL Discretionary bonuses = 15
REBEHRAKSFEIZHIR  Group’s contributions to retirement scheme 0.6 0.3
7.0 5.0

() mBREXTER=ZZT—=-F+=ZA+=
HETRTESE - BHE-_T——F+
“A=+—HLEE ENFREH
EEZHMERBEAE—THEE —T8
7 AP BEHNHE6E) e &
NTETINREFARNTESTES
BAALBIEREZEH S - AEERR
RETE 2 AR REMA -

(d) BRAEMEIN ETEZMEERE
AR AR A RO R AR AT S5
BTy Bt - RABRERMBER
2 B 1 AR R 1 TR BT 2T 29(b) R & ©

(e) BE=ZZE——F+-H=1T—HI#F
ERZF——F+ZA=+—HIERX
@A BERLLREZERSRITEA
BXMHIEERABERMEXRBERSE
MEAREHE -

(c) Mr. Wililam P.Y. Ko resigned as executive director on December
12, 2012. Total emoluments paid to Mr. Wiliam P.Y. Ko of
$15.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 included
the emoluments set out in note 6(a) and $0.8 million paid as
salaries, the Group's contributions to retirement scheme and
other expenses in relation to his employment as employee of the
Company following resignation as executive director.

(d) In addition to the above emoluments, the directors of the
Company and the above remaining individual were granted share
options under the share option schemes of the Company and of
HLP. Details of which are disclosed in note 29(b).

(e) During the year ended December 31, 2012 and the six months
ended December 31, 2011, there were no amounts paid to
directors and senior executives above for compensation of loss
of office and inducement for joining the Group.
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7 FEWmKRAZBIR 7 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT
(a) #HEUWmFRRZRIEAL: (@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
BE
—E-——F
+=BA=+—H 7N +=—A=1+—
ILFE Six months IEFE
Year ended ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011
REFIR Current tax
EENEH Hong Kong Profits Tax 448 191 349
BEFEREZR Over-provision in prior years (14) @) @)
434 189 347
R PRIS T China Income Tax 608 275 491
1,042 464 838
RAERIR Deferred tax
WEME L N FEE Change in fair value of investment properties 236 74 176
HibRE RELI =58 Other origination and reversal of
temporary differences 101 42 131
Aet(HEE21(b)) Total (Note 21(b)) 337 116 307
RIS BBt Total income tax expense 1,379 580 1,145

ERNEHRBREREIRE/MAZG5TE  Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (P.E.
ABHEMABD 2T ABA(ZZE——H  12/2011: 16.5%; Y.E. 12/2011: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
BB ZTNZH: —T——FF : H  profits for the year/period. China Income Tax mainly represents China
DZTNBR)FE - REFREFHEEAR  Corporate Income Tax calculated at 25% (P.E. 12/2011: 25%; Y.E.
BOEMEHREADZ —THR(ZZ——H  12/2011: 25%) and China withholding income tax at the applicable
M:B22=-1tH: ZZT——FE : BH rates. A withholding tax of 5% is levied on the Hong Kong companies
Z-TR)FAERTREIRMEHIZERT  in respect of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign
RotE o BB QAN HRBE AN ZINEIE  investment enterprises in mainland China earned after January 1, 2008.
ErEERH_ZENF—A—HEELE

ZBAFTIRE 2 REHBEZE D Z BB

TEIRFI1SHL ©

b) HE=ZZ—=—F+=-_A=+—HIEF (b) Share of jointly controlled entities’ taxation for the year ended

EREEEERAAME_T=88T December 31, 2012 of $23 million (P.E. 12/2011: $9 million; Y.E.
(ZE——HH: hB&gx: —ZT— 12/2011: $17 million) is included in the share of profits of jointly
—FE: —TtEET)EFAEM controlled entities.

ABATRFIN -
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7 HZEWRBERAZBIE@® 7 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(c) FEXZHHEBRFANRMAMER R  (c) Reconciliation between actual tax expense and profit before
B2 g taxation at applicable tax rates:

HE
—RA=+—H —E——F
IEAREAR |[+=A=+—H
Six months IEFE
Year ended ended Year ended
e December 31, December 31, December 31,
LAEH B & et E in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011
R B A% A Profit before taxation 11,309 3,617 7,228
HHRBADEMLUERTZRETE  Tax on profit before taxation at applicable rates 2,181 742 1,468
L TIE
IEERTEWM A Z BB & Tax effect of non-taxable income (822) (150) (328)
IR 2 BRIER & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 75 19 31
EfEA BB REM Tax effect of tax losses utilized and
AIHHER I ER 2 FIESE other deductible temporary differences (118) (55) (66)
AERZMEERBZFHEZE  Tax effect of unrecognized tax losses 66 22 37
Efth Others 11 4 5
BEFEEB SR Over-provision in prior years (14) @) @)
FEEHIES T Actual tax expense 1,379 580 1,145

(d) F/8A - EEMZ2EKZE TR (d) There is no tax effect relating to the components of the other

HEOEMBTE comprehensive income for the year/period.
8 MEREIEFR 8 NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
R B AN BEARARRMB®MEANZE  Net profit attributable to shareholders includes a profit of $1,101
F+—EZ—8&8L(ZF——H[M : +—  milion (P.E. 12/2011: $1,160 million) which has been dealt with in
BARTET) - the financial statements of the Company.
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9 RKRE
@ AFE/MKRE

B R BT E
e & IR HRE
ANl

EEf & IRERIS
RE(ZE—HH: T
TE——FF kAt

in HK$ million

Interim dividend declared and paid of
19 cents per share 256 - -

Final dividend declared and paid of Nil cent
(P.E. 12/2011: Nil cent; Y.E. 12/2011:
57 cents) per share - - 769

9 DIVIDENDS
(a) Dividends attributable to the year/period

+
ﬁxdlﬂ

ChEE Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,

2012 2011 2011

HEHE A BEIRAREAR S Final dividend of 60 cents (P.E. 12/2011:

lHX/ \JFTUJ(f%i**HﬂFEﬁ : 38 cents; Y.E. 12/2011: 38 cents) per share

=t/ =ZF——FF : proposed after the end of the reporting period 810 512 512

=+l

1,066 512 1,281

REERBEIRZREGIRE - WHEHEZR A  The dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has not
HEHzEBE been recognized as a liability at the end of the reporting period.
by #HEz=—ZF——F+=-HAH=+—HI1;x (b) The final dividend of $513 million (calculated based on 38 cents

BRAzZRERB—T=Z88TAHKRE
(RESE=1+/WITZEEEAZE
BIOIRAHE )R _ZE—=—F+=A
=t+—HLEFEHERKE(ZZ—
—HE  ERANTHLEET) °

10 BREA
(@) SREAREERF DENTBE

| At
=B
Al

LABBE ST E in HK$ million

FAUGESRERNREEZT| 2 Eamnings for calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share
(net profit attributable to shareholders)

E (BIRCR FEAEAEA)

per share with issued share capital as at dividend pay-out date)
for the six months ended December 31, 2011 was approved
and paid in the year ended December 31, 2012 (P.E. 12/2011:
$769 million).

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) The calculation of basic and diluted earmings per share is based
on the following data:

BE
ﬁ:xdlﬂ

Six months
ended
December 31,

IEFE

Year ended
December 31,
2012 2011 2011

IEFE
Year ended
December 31,

5,262 1,578 3,206 ‘
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10 ERER @

NBEERE

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Year ended
December 31,
in million 2012

December 31,

IR B
Number of shares

Year ended
December 31,
2011 2011

FUGTESRELRBR ZRMD  Weighted average number of shares used

It in calculating basic earnings per share 1,349 1,348 1,348
BEEEERA 2 BERMD ZFE  Effect of dilutive potential shares

- Bt HE - share options 9 9 9
FB AT E B E B R 2 PR Weighted average number of shares used

hniETFaE in calculating diluted earnings per share 1,358 1,357 1,357

(b) MREMEERLH (T

B R BITAE

CEEEREME (D)
RNEZE - WINERAERELEN IR &
IR ) ZRTEANT ¢

Year ended
December 31,
in HK$ million 2012

December 31,

The underlying net profit attributable to shareholders which excluded
changes in fair value of investment properties net of related deferred
tax and non-controlling interests, is calculated as follows:

HE
—z

+-HA=+—8H

175 1ELA
Six months
ended Year ended
December 31,

2011 2011

R FE AR AT Net profit attributable to shareholders 5,262 1578 3,206
BEYEZ AN TEESEF 2 FE  Effect of changes in fair value of

investment properties (3,057) (953) (2,100)

HERENIA 2 & Effect of corresponding deferred tax 236 74 176
SR NRINIREME 2 A FE  Effect of change in fair value of investment

BRoE properties of jointly controlled entities (145) (172) (323)

(2,966) (1,051) (2,247)

PSR Non-controlling interests 1,268 473 984

(1,698) (578) (1,263)

PR AR B AR Underlying net profit attributable to shareholders 3,564 1,000 1943

REBCREEERANAEZ BREN S

AR

Diluted

shareholders are:

Eﬁﬁ
—s-—%
+=A=+-8

IHEE

Year ended
December 31,
2012

Basic $2.64

$2.62

The earnings per share based on underlying net profit attributable to

T dlﬂ
Six months IEFE
ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2011 2011
$0.74 $1.44
$0.74 | $1.43 |
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11 BEEE — KE 11 FIXED ASSETS - GROUP

BERPICEYE
Investment
properties

REME
e Investment under Efth
AMBEETHE in HK$ million properties development Others

FRAE S LA - Cost or valuation:
RZE—FtH—H At July 1, 2011 94,003 21,524 548 116,075
I S Exchange adjustment 1,052 494 3 1,549
NE Additions 110 7,310 30 7,450
He Disposals - - ©® ©)
NFEZ Increase in fair value 945 8 _ 953
#BA/ () Transfer 5,723 (5,723) - -
RZTE—F+=A At December 31, 2011 and
z;—a&:;ﬁf:i January 1, 2012 101,833 23,613 575 126,021
—A—H
PE H % Exchange adjustment 34 @37 1) (4)
nE Additions 409 5,614 92 6,115
HeE Disposals (3,054) - (19) (3,073)
AR Increase in fair value 3,057 - - 3,057
A /() Transfer 4,708 (4,708) - -
ENPEEFHECEE Reclassification to assets
held for sale (885) - (82) (967)
N-T——F At December 31, 2012 106,102 24,482 565 131,149
+=BA=+—H
ZEE - Accumulated depreciation:
RZZE—F+tH—H At July 1, 2011 - - 335 335
ERI L Exchange adjustment - - 1 1
REE Charge for the period - - 16 16
&R Written back on disposals - - @) )
R-_Z—%F+_H At December 31, 2011 and
=t+t—-BRZZT——F January 1, 2012 _ - 349 349
—HA—H
I Exchange adjustment - - (1) (1)
REEIE Charge for the year _ _ 38 38
& H & 8 o) Written back on disposals - - 7) (7)
ENNEEFHECEE Reclassification to assets
held for sale - - (69) (69)
N=T—=—fF At December 31, 2012 - - 310 310
+=BA=+—H
BRMASE - Net book value:
N=-T——F At December 31, 2012 106,102 24,482 255 130,839
+=HA=+—H
R-E——F At December 31, 2011 101,833 23,613 226 125,672
+=ZA=+—H
EE & E 2 KA E K Cost or valuation of the fixed assets
HEMT ¢ is made up as follows:
—Z——_H+Z-H=+—H December 31,2012
fHE Valuation 106,102 24,482 - 130,584
BB Cost = - 565 565
106,102 24,482 565 131,149
—T——F+=-HA=1+—H December 31, 2011
fH1E Valuation 101,833 23,613 - 125,446
ANMAE Cost - - 575 575
101,833 23,613 575 126,021
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1 BEEE — &£B®w
MEZEEFESMAT ¢

BB BITAE

in HK$ million

11 FIXED ASSETS - GROUP (Continued)

An analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:

BRAPIREYE
Investment properties
under development

BREME

Investment properties

BRI Long leases in Hong Kong 34,440 34,417 - -
EBBINREAME  Long leases outside Hong Kong 1,282 1,238 797 760
FEPHMHR Medium term leases in Hong Kong 20,464 22,135 - -
EBBINPEAIME  Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 49,916 44,040 23,685 22,853
BERE R Short lease in Hong Kong = 3 - _
106,102 101,833 24,482 23,613

(@) AEBZEREMEREZERFTREYE (a) The investment properties and investment properties under

HRZF-—ZF+ZA=1+—"H&ER
—AFHAEMEEREXERERD
72 A B 3R S A (2088 ) PR
SERTISEEREETRHE -

AEBEREMFEZEAMFENERR
EREBOBECEE HREFE
RE(CE——F: A +tNENTR
BET) -

AEERMETEEZREFERRE
MR BB ARSI E 2 L3 M52
EYWNAET(ZT——F: LAB
T REBBRINAF R 2+
WhEENN\BETL(ZT—F : N\
BETT) MARIMIERE 2 30 M2
EY=—THABL(ZT——F: =T

4t —

“HET) °

YEHEW S BEREYE ZHEWA
BEATEE-—TBE8T(CE—
HE: =@ TN \EET: —F—
—FE  AHEAT=A8T) °

development of the Group were revalued as at December 31,
2012 by Mr. Charles C.K. Chan, Registered Professional Surveyor
(General Practice), of Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, on a market value basis.

The net book value of investment properties of the Group includes
an amount of $Nil (2011: $5,985 million) in respect of an asset
held under a finance lease.

The net book value of other fixed assets of the Group included
long leases of $9 million (2011: $9 million) in respect of land
and building held in Hong Kong, medium term leases of $8
million (2011: $8 million) and long leases of $35 million (2011:
$32 million) in respect of land and buildings held outside Hong
Kong respectively.

Property leasing revenue includes gross rental income from
investment properties of $6,711 million (P.E. 12/2011: $3,168
million; Y.E. 12/2011: $6,093 million).
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11 BEEE — 8w

(b) AEEREEERLTDEMZREM
HWOMEYSE - ZFHAO—KRI 2
B —EZRF  HRPHaREEE
4 EREFHEE KR o KREAE
WBEEFHEFRNFAREe 2
&3 MAEEESFHEE —TEflx
FHOEREL - & THLOBIEN AR
& D2RHEFEZWAMERE -

REER  AEERREVERER
FHREWME - RETAIREERXE
WD I RRTHS @R

Z

11 FIXED ASSETS - GROUP (Continued)

(b) The Group leases out its properties under operating leases
and subleases under finance lease. Leases typically run for an
initial period of two to five years, with some having the option
to renew, at which time all terms are renegotiated. Long term
leases contain rent review or adjustment clauses and the Group
has a regular proportion of its leases up for renewal each
year. Certain leases include contingent rentals calculated with
reference to the revenue of tenants.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group s total future
minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of investment properties and investment properties under

development were as follows:

24 HHEa

in HK$ million Subleases  Other leases
—FR Within 1 year - 5,294 5,294
—FRERAFA After 1 year but within 5 years - 7,826 7,826
hFE After 5 years - 2,217 2,217
- 15,337 15,337

payicl HMEL

in HK$ million Subleases Other leases
—FR Within 1 year 185 4,763 4,948
—FIRERER After 1 year but within 5 years 856 6,194 7.050
hEE After 5 years 1,401 931 2,332
2,442 11,888 14,330

12 B AR

12 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

NG
Company
AR BESITHE in HK$ million
JE LM - BANME Unlisted shares, at cost 181 181
i L BB A BRI B A Amounts due from subsidiaries less provision 14,820 14,540
15,001 14,721

TEMBARZFAERENHIFESS
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12 mﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁw

(@) FEURHBARREASEER 28K
%lm%ﬁ% i TR A = ZE R
AR+ —EARTEWE - HFIEE
REBE o

(b) ENMBARFESEER RERX
BETEERY - mEBRZSEHER
AE+ZEAARTEEE - BWHIEE
MEBAIE e

13 S&AFER

]}u]
:n

12 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@) Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free with
no fixed terms of repayment and classified as non-current assets
as they are not expected to be recoverable within the next
twelve months.

(b) Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free with no

fixed terms of repayment and classified as non-current liabilities as
they are not expected to be repaid within the next twelve months.

13 INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

%8 Group ‘A7) Company
in HK$ million
FELEMMRD - BRAME  Unlisted shares, at cost - - 5 5
FE(L BB FE Share of net assets 1,740 1,504 - -
1,740 1,504 5 5
FEWA &R RIFRIE Amounts due from jointly
controlled entities 514 655 2 2
JENE B R RIFIE Amounts due to jointly
controlled entities (7) (7) (7) (7)
2,247 2,152 - _

BREATLEEL(ZE
ANTEEET)EE -BRATLE
BrL(ZE— E ARTEARBIT)HER
BERER E&miﬁf'J+EJr§'$7I\ e/
(MELRARFELRERR 2ERE

)?E?&/T)\Hﬂ ﬁﬁ.TEHHuA—rT)\IEZ:%ZEIQ\*
R+ —{EAAWKE/(EE - BIEERDE
E/AfE

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities included a provision of $67
million (2011: $67 million). Except for the amount due from a jointly
controlled entity of $67 million (2011: $67 million) which is interest-
bearing at market rate, amounts due from/(to) jointly controlled entities
are unsecured, non-interest bearing with no fixed terms of repayment
and classified as non-current assets/liabilities as they are not expected
to be recoverable/repayable within the next twelve months.
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13 88N AEFEw®)

13 INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

Details of jointly controlled entities are set out in note 36. The summary
financial information related to the Group’s interest in jointly controlled

entities are as follows:

in HK$ million
ERBEE Non-current assets 2,317 2,176
REEE Current assets 172 161
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities (670) (768)
mENAE Current liabilities (79) (65)
BEFE Net assets 1,740 1,504

BZE

—E—_—F =
+=A=+—H =—
IEFE Six months WHFEE
Year ended ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011
e Turnover 236 115 222
KREFE/EE Profit for the year/period 276 241 443

14 HhEE

14 OTHER ASSETS

LAY BEEITTE in HK$ million
REAZ LHRE @ ZHE Listed investments in Hong Kong at market value 67 56
BRELTRHEIEAEE Unlisted held-to-maturity investments in Hong Kong (Note (a)) 452 898
(M3E (@)
EXTFIELHIRE NGB  Advances to unlisted investee companies less provision 9 10
| & B (5 () Intangible assets (Note (b)) 1,182 1,182
1,710 2,146
o BIER DR —FE 2 BB Less: Unlisted held-to-maturity investments in Hong Kong
ELMIHEIRERE with maturity less than one year (Note (a)) (452) (449)
(M%E (2)
1,258 1,697

M RE -

@R-ZF——F+-A=t+—H AEEHFFFLHES
RE : WREBNR T =FNAZE_ZT—=F+=
AR - WEFREF - HABE_HNBE(ZZT——
F:—HAREE—MNE)ZERRERAE  BFE
FFFIRE °

L) BEEERAEEN _TTNFLA—RAZAIRENE
RABEME 2 RAEEMAEEZEE - RFHR - K
SEE L RHBRGDSEESRENR - WRES
RIE ©

178 | BREBERAT —T——FFR

Notes:

(a) At December 31, 2012, the Group held investments in unlisted bonds which will mature from
September 2013 to December 2013. The effective yield of the bonds ranged from 1.6% to
2.9% (2011: 1.6% to 2.9%) per annum, payable quarterly or semi-annually.

(b) Intangible assets represent goodwill arising from the Group’s additions in equity interests in its
subsidiary, HLP, for transactions before July 1, 2009. At the end of the reporting period, an
impairment test was performed by comparing the goodwill with its recoverable amount and
no impairment was recorded.
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15 BENIRITERK 15 CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

in HK$ million

THFER Time deposits 37,474 22,178
RITER Cash at banks 2,709 3,971
SFAEFBRRERAIRE K& Cash and deposits with banks in the consolidated statement of

HRITIFR financial position 40,183 26,149
B A=1E A1£ZIEAER7TF 50 Less: Bank deposits with maturity greater than three months (8,111) (4,846)
SGERERERNAES R Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement 32,072 21,303

REEED

REEZER - NREBZHE RIRITEFEFKIEF At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and deposits with
ANEGF_H_EB(ZZ——%F : TH+  banks were interest-bearing at an average rate of 2.2% (2011: 0.7%)

E)FtE - EE¥oHMmIT : per annum with currency denominated in:
PNGE-TER- v in HK$ million
BEEE(E Hong Kong Dollars equivalent of:
AR Renminbi 36,913 21,457
i Hong Kong Dollars 2,223 3,531
EiH United States Dollars 1,047 1,161

40,183 26,149

REBEFHEARBERITEFABMERFT  The Group holds Renminbi bank deposits to meet its ongoing payment

WA R IE B BN REE - obligations in relation to its development projects in mainland China.

16 FELR BR R0 R HL fth B ULRR 16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(@) EFFABRKERFERHEMEWTZEHK  (a) Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables
RREAERBASTAT with the following terms:

BB REBITE in HK$ million

WA —E A A Current and within 1 month 47 68

—ZE={@A 1 -3 months 4 4

={EAUE Over 3 months 4 3
55 75

RERGEKGEITTEAN - KEEZ{EE  The balance of bad and doubtful debts is insignificant. The details on

BURFFIBEPIRHIEES1(0) ° the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 31(c).
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16 FEWERM KR H MR @ 16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b) AEBzEMEKZEE=EZ/\H (b) Included in other receivables of the Group is deposit of land
EBn(Z2——F : ZEZT/\B&T) acquisition in mainland China of $308 million (2011: $308 million).

RABEAEE it HE -

17 8= 17 PROPERTIES FOR SALE

B EEITTE in HK$ million

FEERPYE — REAMRZ Properties under development for sale — long leases

-BE — Hong Kong 1,296 987
FECEKYE — R B Completed properties for sale — medium term leases
-&E — Hong Kong 4,839 5,154
- BBIRIN - Outside Hong Kong 4 4
4,843 5,158
6,139 6,145
18 FHEZEE/&E 18 ASSETS/LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

RZZE——F+A+hnB  AEEE—%  On October 19, 2012, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
BYFE=ARIVEEWSZ  HEHEEE  agreement with an independent third party to dispose of subsidiaries
EAREMEZWNBRAR([HEZKEBZA  (‘disposal subsidiaries”) with an investment property being the principal
A1) - IRIEHKFRSS © & ZHIBAF S  asset. In accordance with HKFRS 5, the disposal subsidiaries’ assets
FEENES NBSETZEEN—T=8 of $906 milion and liabilties of $13 milion were reclassified as assets
ETZEBESYHEAGTHEZEE/ARE - and liabilities held for sale respectively. Completion of the disposal is
HHEFEFBEER-_ZE—=F—H=1+—  scheduled to take place on January 31, 2013.

H5EmK °
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RITERREMEE
REEH - BERHETERNEMEEY
BEERIOT ¢

19 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

At the end of the reporting period, bank loans and other borrowings

were unsecured and repayable as follows:

BB BITAE in HK$ million

—F A=A Within 1 year or on demand 1,113 5,400

—FREFR After 1 year but within 2 years 1,378 1,363

MERERFR After 2 years but within 5 years 26,915 18,997

RFENUE Over 5 years 8,523 2,035
36,816 22,395

B KRB TS B Less: unamortized front end fees (284) (101)
36,532 22,294
37,645 27,694

FRN - MAERTERERZS A NEZ NG
FE(ZE— M ERRAEE+HA
E: =T ——&F TR =-EBEELHAE)
FREFTE -

AEBZETEEXINMBRORS - %
EWBROBRAKEERNEARHEZIEE
BREERENSERRERERAAT
BEFEZEXRTERNMREKRT « F
N AEBDTEE2ETREFRONER -

RZE——F+-_A=+—H £~A&EE#A
NTEREATFTLtEEL(ZZE—F : £+
“RBNATEIL)ABHENBRITEEEE -

o - EBEMEZ —HEERANHELR
AR —EAEE=TEET(ZF——%F:
ZHESET) 2P HREA BT E]) o 1
FEB AKREAENABITETREHLEE
NFHhEEL(ZZ——F : B)+FH%
B ERFNEA=HAAEENE+A
E(Z2—%F:F)-

o

All bank loans are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 0.6% to 8.5%
(P.E. 12/2011: 0.5% to 7.5%; Y.E. 12/2011: 0.3% to 7.5%) per annum
during the year.

Certain of the Group’s borrowings are attached with financial covenants
which require that at any time, the Group’s consolidated tangible net
worth is not less than and the ratio of borrowings to consolidated
tangible net worth is not more than certain required levels. During the
year, all these covenants have been complied with by the Group.

At December 31, 2012, the Group had $8,597 million (2011: $7,280
million) committed undrawn banking facilities.

In addition, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the HLP has a US$3 billion
(2011: US$2 billion) Medium Term Note Program (the “Program”). At the
end of the reporting period, the Group has issued in total in equivalent of
$5,799 million (2011: $Nil) 10-year bonds with coupon rates ranged from
3.55% t0 4.75% (2011: Nil) per annum under the Program.
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20 FEMEREFREfMEATR 20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BB BESTHE in HK$ million
FER ER K FERT B A (P E (@) Creditors and accrued expenses (Note (a)) 3,547 2,608
BYieE (3 (b)) Deposits received (Note (b)) 1,693 1,526
5,240 4,134
BIE Notes:
(@) BRI R REEAREERR —FATSEN ZIREFIE (@) Creditors and accrued expenses include retention money payable of $335 million (2011: $266
=RB=TFREBL(ZZ—F : ZBATABET) ° million) which is not expected to be settled within one year.

O BE¥EZRENEANT 88 (ZT—F : LETLE (b) Deposits received of $992 million (2011: $907 million) are not expected to be settled within
BTN —FRATEER - one year.

D A FENBEZ & E b BN 2~ RN BE X Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the
HEEE DTN following aging analysis:

B R BT E in HK$ million
— & AREE] Due within 1 month 2,509 1,759
={EA%EH Due after 3 months 367 287
2,876 2,046
21 REEHHEARREZLEZ 21 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
g STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) AEFIE (@) Current taxation

BB REBITE in HK$ million
BERFETBE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax 207 191
FREIPTIS B Provision for China Income Tax 234 223
EEE 2 EREEREH Hong Kong Profits Tax payable relating to prior years 5 41
446 455
(b) IEFEFIE (b) Deferred taxation

in HK$ million
REFIAEE Deferred tax liabilities 9,944 9,637
RIERR I E E Deferred tax assets (19) (45)
RAETIA B B FE Net deferred tax liabilities 9,925 9,592
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21 REFEMHMRRRLEZ

BIE ()
(b) IEFEFRLIE(4)
RERAMERRER R R EAE/

(BE)WERRF/ SR 28T

21 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(o) Deferred taxation (Continued)

The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during

the year/period are as follows:

in HK$ million ERTE
el o
e R T% &
Depreciation BEEZ
allowances 15K 1S =
in excess YIS Future
, . . of related  Revaluation benefit of tax HAh
BRERIREER Deferred tax arising from: depreciation of properties losses Others
WZZE——F+EH—H Atduy1,2011 1,308 7,896 45) 90 9,249
FORE 5 8 A $0BR Charged to exchange reserve 24 203 _ _ 207
RIB2EAWFNER (MisE7(@) Charged to profit or loss (Note 7(a)) 33 74 _ 9 116
RZE——F+=A At December 31, 2011 and
=t+—BR=-ZT——F January 1, 2012 1,365 8,173 (45) 99 9,592
—HA—H
PARE S REH AR Credited to exchange reserve - ©) - _ ©)
R NIER/(BA)  Charged/(Credited) to profit or
(KRE7(a) loss (Note 7(a)) 76 236 30 ®) 337
BEMOBER Reclassification to assets/
HEZAE/BE liabilities held for sale @®) - 6 - ©
R=B——F At December 31, 2012 1,433 8,407 9) 94 9,925
+=—BA=+—H

[Efs ] TEBREMIERECFKAETERA
M2 RO BN BRER < HEEERIAR(E -

() RERBIELEHRERE
AREHARE THEARZBEHRELR
W=tHEET-—BAEL(ZF——F: =+
BNATEERTT) BB EERTE £ RRLEHR
HEEFELER  RAR-F——F+=
A=+—H "RrEHEAHEENAR
FERBUB DI - L FRBRBHOM
BEERBRRHIAR W ARBE -
B st S A5 0 B 75 B B R B AR R B et R A
A R FRIEE

Included in “Others” is mainly deferred tax liabilities recognized in
respect of undistributed profits of foreign investment enterprises in
mainland China.

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognized

The Group has not recognized deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses of $3,501 million (2011: $3,087 million) sustained in the
operations of certain subsidiaries as the availability of future taxable
profits against which the assets can be utilized is not probable at
December 31, 2012. The tax losses arising from Hong Kong operations
do not expire under current tax legislation. The tax losses arising from
the operations in mainland China expire five years after the relevant
accounting year end date.
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22 BEMIEIE 22 FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS
MEHAAOSEL L ENZHESEE L ERME  Total minimum lease payments under finance lease and their present
N

values are as follows:

ROENZ  BIRREE
HERBRE FEAZHIE

Present Interest
value of expenses
minimum relating to minimum
lease payments future periods lease payments
in HK$ million
BN &5 Amounts payable
—FR Within 1 year - - -
in HK$ million
et &% Amounts payable
—ER Within 1 year 104 3 107
MERPNFRIEZERFFNRAEZT(=ZZ——  The effective interest rate of the finance lease obligations is Nil (2011:
F:LE)-o 7%) per annum.
23 IR 23 SHARE CAPITAL
BRHEE BRALHE iahE G A&
Number of Amount of Number of Amount of
shares share capital shares share capital
(BER) (B&ER) (B8R (A&T)
(million) ($million) (million) ($million)
ETE Authorized
FREE—TT Shares of $1 each 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
BEITRARE Issued and fully paid
W—A—B/tA—8 AtJanuary 1/July 1 1,348 1,348 1,348 1,348
RIS HARERT &) Shares issued under share
ESSpd) ) option scheme 2 2 _ _
W+ZA=+—H At December 31 1,350 1,350 1,348 1,348
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e

RESERVES
The Group

24
(@

i

Other reserves

Share of

capital

reserves

B  of jointly
Share controlled
premium entities

B
Employee
share-based

feEl ]
Capital
redemption
reserve

Other
capital
reserve

Investment & 5 {#% 1
revaluation Exchange compensation General

# Retained  Total

in HK$ million reserve  reserve reserve reserve Total profits reserves

RZT——%F At July 1, 2011 2,434 1 26 14 2,503 241 275 1,961 7,455 50,169 57,624
+A—AR
REE T Profit for the period _ _ _ _ _ _ B B _ 1578 1578
BEEEREZ Decrease of share of capital
BEARGEE 2R reserves of jointly
controlled entities - (1) - - - - - - (1) - ©)
EMEENFEZ  Decrease in fair value of
L listed investments - - - (16) - _ _ -~ (e - (16)
¥ EFINIEE AT Exchange difference arising
RRIBEE ZIE X, from translation of
23 overseas subsidiaries - - _ _ 1,000 _ _ ~ 1,000 ~ 1,000
AR Total comprehensive
HER income for the period - 1) - (16) 1,000 _ _ _ 983 1578 2561
EFERARE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - - - - - - - - (769) (769)
AT Issue of shares 1 - . - - . _ - 1 _ 1
EEREER Employee share-based
payments - - - - - 53 - - 53 4 57
E A& B E—H Change in non-controlling
MiEB AT ZRHE  interests arising from
1 hni E A increase of the Group’s
SRR R shareholding in
a subsidiary - - - - - - - (312) (812) - (812)
i ——%F At December 31, 2011 and
+ZA=+—H  January1,2012 2,435 - 26 @) 3503 294 275 1,649 8,180 50,982 59,162
k=Z2——%F
—A—A
AEE R F] Profit for the year _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 5262 5262
EHEELQAFEZ  Increase in fair value of
#Ehn listed investments - - - 11 _ _ - ~ 91 _ 11
HEEINIE AT Exchange difference arising
BRIBEE ZIEH, from translation of
=82 overseas subsidiaries - - - _ 98 _ _ _ o8 _ 98
AFEEEE Total comprehensive
Wz income for the year - - - 11 98 _ _ _ 109 5262 5371
EFERRE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - - - - - - - - (513) (513)
REEFERE Interim dividends in respect
of current financial year - - - - - - - - - (256) (256)
TR Issue of shares 15 - - - - - _ _ 15 _ 15
EERESEA Employee share-based
payments 4 - - - - ® - - @ 113 109
H7A%&@EAE—MH  Change in non-controling
ihpEE NG e interests arising from
A TE A IE decrease of the Group’s
T 2 shareholding in
a subsidiary - - - - - - - (14)  (14) - (14)
R-ZE——fF At December 31, 2012 2,454 - 26 9 3,601 286 275 1,635 8,286 55,588 63,874
+=A=+-—8
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24 fEEw
(b) A7

24 RESERVES (Continued)
(b) The Company

HAb R

Other reserves

Rty  EBREEE Employee {252
B Capital  share-based wmAl R
e Share redemption compensation Retained Total
BB STEE in HK$ million premium reserve reserve profits  reserves
RW-F——FtA—H Atduy1, 2011 2,434 26 52 862 3,374 9,158 12,532
ZRERE A R A E U A Profit and total comprehensive
pakc) income for the period - _ _ _ _ 1160 1,160
KEERRE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - - - - (769) (769)
TATR Issue of shares 1 - - - 1 _ 1
N_Z—F+—A At December 31, 2011 and
=Bk January 1, 2012 2,435 26 52 862 3,375 9,549 12,924
—ZT——F—HA—H
RNEEHMNRZEKZE  Profit and total comprehensive
k| income for the year - _ - _ _ 1101 1,101
EFE RS Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - - - - (5613) (613)
RNEFEFHRRE Interim dividends in respect of
current financial year - - - - - (256) (256)
BT Issue of shares 15 _ - - 15 _ 15
EEREEMA Employee share-based
payments 4 - (4) - - - _
R=-=T——%+=A4 At December 31, 2012 2,454 26 48 862 3,390 9,881 13,271
Er=1[

AEBR-_ZE——F+_A=+—HHR
BEMaE—EBNATREET(ZE——

F . —EFTET)NRREANHMME AR Z  subsidiaries in mainland China.
=
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The retained profits for the Group at December 31, 2012 included
$186 million (2011: $120 million) in respect of statutory reserves of the



24 f#HiEm)

(b) 2F@®
BOBREREEABRGEEBEZBRD BIZ
EBCREMEHDY B+ N\ZIEREMT N
FIREE - REEHREREREEBRM
BAHEERF A FEZ R 2 FHE -
WARIRFI5E 2(1)(2) < SFTEREZIE © B W
BEEBREBIINNBRARMERRELY
PE 3 258 o BNkt sr o) it - (B B RN
EFEeFECHE LA N REITE 2D
B2 ATE - TBREESRERBES A
AEDIR o Kb E A EEEE TR
EBA-—RBEAMBRE) 2 R - Hig
BRENKABEBRBEEZREAFEZ
ZEFE o

—E——F+-FA=+—H KAQAA
HORTFRREZFEESRBELA—BZLE
F=F&EL(Z2—F : —AZUE—

AEENEAEERR EZERARE
AEBEREFELE  UABRRERER KL
REMFNEREN D - FRASERAR
HSRE -

AEEMEREHRA RERREAL
T DATE RS 1 Bk T T B 2 R
2 3R 2 95 B B 8 AN S SR O 8 TR AR
B FRE T - AR ARE Y 254
& RAEHRE 2 BB ARG ELE -

AEEZERTBEEXRRRATRENTS
Ko WEBBNERKNM B AERERE
BRERE - REREFEREREINFE
AP - FERERITERLBERD
A ORBRERRITER - RESERER
e an S SRR S o

24 RESERVES (Continued)
(b) The Company (Continued)

The application of the share premium account and the capital
redemption reserve are governed by Section 48B and Section 49H
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance respectively. The investment
revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change on the fair
value of available-for-sale securities held at the reporting date and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(i)(2). The
exchange reserve represents the exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries. The
employee share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value
of share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as explained
in note 2(v). The general reserve was derived from retained profits and
is distributable. The other capital reserve represents any difference
between the cost of the additional investment and the carrying amount
of the net assets acquired at the date of exchange when acquiring an
additional non-controlling interest in a existing subsidiary.

The aggregate amount of the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company at December 31,
2012 was $10,743 million (2011: $10,411 million).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits to other
stakeholders, and to secure access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholders’
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in the light of changes in the
Group’s business portfolio and economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing ratio
and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future financial
obligations and commitments. The gearing ratio represents the
proportion of net debt to equity plus net debt. Net debt represents bank
loans and finance lease obligations, less cash and deposits with banks.
Equity comprises shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests.
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24 &)
(b) 2T B
RZZE——F+-_A=+—H "  A5£EBE
RFEREKERR=_E—FF+ A=+
—H  AKEZBEERRENZ— AR
A EEAHE AR W EZRINGEHEE
ARFSKZ AR ©

24 RESERVES (Continued)
(b) The Company (Continued)

The Group has a net cash position as at December 31, 2012 while the
gearing ratio as at December 31, 2011 was 1%. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

25 JEiEpER

SR RRE 25 B EL A AR SRR AN B (A —
=+—B)k2BEENNBR R IR A E
B REMRFI SR o SRR Y

HEHN R A ERE R o

25 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests represent the equity interests and the share of
profit or loss attributable to other shareholders in respect of its various
subsidiaries not wholly-owned by the Group as at December 31. Details
of movement of non-controlling interests are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

26 REKEEK RS 26 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Bz #z=
—E——fF

+=A=+-H

—E——F

IEAER |[+=A=+—H
Six months IEFE
Year ended ended Year ended

December 31, December 31, December 31,

in HK$ million 2012 2011 2011

L

BB BSTHE

B A5 A A Profit before taxation 11,309 3,617 7,228
PR Adjustments for:
HEREYERG Gain on disposal of investment properties (2,149) - -
RITFLBMA Bank interest income (703) (188) (323)
FEETHRZEINEHEREFNE  Interest income from unlisted held-to-maturity

WA investments (19) (10) (19
HAhF B U A Other interest income (18) - M
FELTIREER ZIREMA  Dividend income from unlisted investments (3) (11) (11)
BB Finance costs 458 149 222
e Depreciation 38 16 32
HEH A EEEERE Loss on disposal of other fixed assets 12 - -
FREZREEE Impairment losses on listed investments - 2 4
TEWEZ AFEZEN Increase in fair value of investment properties (3,057) (953) (2,100)
JEh & &R Al A Share of profits of jointly controlled entities (276) 241) (443)
EERIEER Employee share-based payments 233 106 152
FEMEZRL/ (M) Decrease/(Increase) in properties for sale 20 (120) (228)
RIBER 2R Decrease in mortgage loans - - 1
JEMA R 3 e LA FE IR Z 35 0N Increase in trade and other receivables (23) (55) (101)
JER R ESH B R 280/ Increase/(Decrease) in creditors and accrued

CR) expenses 211 (153) 375)
BYIRE 2 18N Increase in deposits received 168 138 218
REKEXK 2B Cash generated from operations 6,201 2,297 4,256
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27 HREE 27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REER 2 ABENT ¢ At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities were as follows:

NG
Company

in HK$ million

B ATIFMES ZIRITEE  Guarantees given to banks to secure credit
etz 7 facilities drawn by subsidiaries 7,960 7,001

KARWEGRMNB AR ZEEREMIEITIE  The Company has not recognized any deferred income for the
EIRME 7 EREREMELTER A - FiZEE  guarantees given in respect of borrowings and other bank facilities for
ERBITEEZ AT EE LA EMEE KR subsidiaries as their fair value cannot be reliably measured and their

KREBAZ(ZE—F 1 F) - transaction price was $Nil (2011: $Nil).
28 i 28 COMMITMENTS
(@) MNEEBHARTEBREABEHBZER (@) At the end of the reporting period, capital commitments not
AENT provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
£S5
Group
in HK$ million
=30} Contracted for 5,527 6,441
EREBREARELD Authorized but not contracted for 29,344 27,574
34,871 34,015

FliFAEFERERAEERFPREANMEEZ  The above commitments include mainly the land costs and construction
TR ZIREEFELEZ THAA  related costs to be incurred in respect of the Group’s development of
KSR o its investment properties in various cities in mainland China.

(b) AEEBEREBETFANEMZTAIHIEE (b) The Group leases certain properties under non-cancellable

FHAMAETWE ETHHNE operating leases expiring within ten years. Certain leases include
F2EYERAMET 2 HAEE © contingent rentals calculated with reference to revenue from
REER - RRELDEMNZHESEEE the properties. At the end of the reporting period, total future
N minimum lease payments were as follows:

in HK$ million

—FRX Within 1 year - 18
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(@) Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund scheme
for its employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group by an independent corporate trustee and managed
by professional fund managers.

Contributions are made by both the employer and the employees at a
certain percentage of employees’ basic salaries, the percentage varying
with their length of service. When an employee leaves the scheme prior
to his or her interest in the Group’s contributions being fully vested,
forfeited contributions are credited to reserves of the fund. Depending
on the level of reserves, the Group may direct the trustee to credit
dividends to members’ accounts out of the reserves of the fund. The
Group’s contributions may be reduced by the forfeited contributions,
but there was no such reduction of the Group’s contributions during
the year. Total contributions made by the Group for the year amounted
to $21 million (P.E. 12/2011: $10 million) and forfeited sums credited to
reserves amounted to $1 million (P.E. 12/2011: $0.4 million).

A master trust Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) is operated by an independent service provider. Mandatory
contributions are made by both the employer and the employees at 5%
of the employees’ monthly relevant income, up to a limit of $25,000.
The Group’s contributions will be fully and immediately vested in the
employees’ accounts as their accrued benefits in the scheme. Total
MPF contributions made by the Group for the year amounted to $4
million (P.E. 12/2011: $2 million).

As the Group’s provident fund scheme is an MPF Exempted
Occupational Retirement Scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”), eligibility
for membership of the ORSO and MPF schemes is identical. New
employees are offered a one-off option to join either the ORSO or the
MPF scheme.
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(@) Retirement benefits (Continued)

Staff in the Company’s subsidiaries operating in mainland China are
members of a retirement benefits scheme (the “Mainland RB Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government in mainland China. The
only obligation of the subsidiaries in mainland China is to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to Mainland RB Scheme to fund
the retirement benefits. The local municipal government in mainland
China undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all
existing and future retired employees of subsidiaries in mainland China.
Total contributions made by subsidiaries in mainland China for the year
amounted to $27 million (P.E. 12/2011: $11 million).

(b) Equity compensation benefits
The Company

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on November 24,
2000 has expired. No further options shall be offered thereunder, but
in all other respects the provisions of the scheme shall remain in full
force and effect and all options granted prior to such expiration and not
exercised at the expiry date shall remain valid.

Under the scheme, the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
is authorized to grant options to selected participants, including
employees and directors of any company in the Group, to subscribe for
shares of the Company as incentives or rewards for their contributions
to the Group. The exercise price of the options is determined by the
Board at the time of grant, and shall be the highest of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price of the shares at the date of
grant and the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. The period open for
acceptance of the option and amount payable thereon, the vesting
period, the exercisable period and the number of shares subject to
each option are determined by the Board at the time of grant.
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
Hang Lung Properties Limited

The share option scheme adopted by the Company’s subsidiary, HLP
on November 22, 2002 (the “Old Scheme”) was terminated upon
the adoption of a new share option scheme on April 18, 2012 (the
“New Scheme”, together with the Old Scheme are referred to as the
“Schemes”). No further options shall be offered under the Old Scheme,
but in all other respects the provisions of the Old Scheme shall remain
in full force and effect and all options granted prior to such termination
and not exercised at the date of termination shall remain valid. The New
Scheme remains in force for a period of 10 years commencing on its
adoption date and expiring on the tenth anniversary thereof.

The purposes of the Schemes are to enable HLP to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contributions to
HLP group, to attract skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivize
them to remain with HLP group and to motivate them to strive for the
future development and expansion of HLP group by providing them
with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in HLP.

Under the Schemes, the Board of HLP is authorized to grant options
to selected participants, including employees and directors of any
company in HLP group, subject to the terms and conditions such as
performance targets as the Board of HLP may specify on a case-by-
case basis or generally. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board of HLP at the time of grant, and shall be the highest of
the nominal value of HLP shares, the closing price of HLP shares at
the date of grant and the average closing price of HLP shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant. The period
open for acceptance of the option and amount payable thereon, the
vesting period, the exercisable period and the number of HLP shares
subject to each option are determined by the Board of HLP at the time
of grant.
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)

1. The movements of share options of the Company during the year

are as follows:

3 R=B—=F
= +=A=+—H 1IE(E
AR T 2 RIRAT L MR EARE 2 1760 ER  ( )
Qutstanding on Outstanding on Period during  Exercise
bodun=p-| January 1, B&i 2178 B Forfeited/ December 31, which options price
Date granted 2012 Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 2012 are exercisable (HK$)
—EENFRA=1H 6,027,000 - (652,000) (50,000) - 5,325,000 “ETRFRA-TAE 9.45
May 20, 2004 —E-UFRA+NH
May 20, 2005 to
May 19, 2014
ZETRFT+—A=+H 7,200,000 - (500,000) - - 6,700,000 —ZTT+F+—A=+HE 20.52
November 20, 2006 —E-RE+—A+hA
November 20, 2007 to
November 19, 2016
485t Total 18,227,000 - (1,152,000) (50,000) - 12,025,000

EFR A B BRI R o A R — =
TFEREE  WARKEBH+-FERH
RIATHE - BAR AR (D BIREAS S5 R0 - BRI
B AR AT 5 o

() EARBEATEZ AR ERL B
BREAMAMEFHTERZ
ZEIT

All the above options may vest after one to five years of the grant date
and are exercisable up to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant,
after which they will lapse.

()  Movements in the number of share options of the Company
outstanding and their related weighted average exercise
prices are as follows:

BE-—Z2——&
+T=—A=t+—HILEE

HE—_ZT——F
+=—A=+—HI~EA

Year ended December 31, 2012 Six months ended December 31, 2011

AT 1T EE

(B¥)
Weighted
average
exercise price

(HKS)

InREFISTTEE
(%)
Weighted
average
exercise price
(HKS)

Number of
options

Number of
options

W—A—B/tA—8 Outstanding at January 1/July 1 15.48 13,227,000 15.42 13,350,000
CESEard

BATfE Exercised 14.25 (1,152,000) 9.45 (123,000)

B Cancelled 9.45 (50,000) - -

R+ A=+—BHAWITE Outstanding at December 31 15.62 12,025,000 15.48 13,227,000

Rt+—A=+—BAF7H#  Exercisable at December 31 15.62 12,025,000 15.48 13,227,000

FREFRERTEZRHBEERZS

EITE R Z TR IR T E D R A
At+=—rmx—AHLEE+<T=A=l-

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before
the dates of exercise by the directors and employees during the year
was $52.17 and $46.23, respectively.
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(b) ROFHERFE
RERNTEZRMDEETEE B 2 MEF  The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise for share
BB AR+ —c— A -

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)

options during the year was $52.14.

(i) FEEBMARIEITE Z M EkE (i)  The weighted average remaining contractual life of options
Z I FBRE DR A BN outstanding at the end of the reporting period was 2.8 years
F(ZE—F  =ZBNF) - (2011: 3.8 years).
2. FAIEEMERNEE 2 ZEINT 2. The movements of share options of HLP during the year are as
follows:

A& ERfEE B
Number of share options

A—AH +=A=+—8H
HARARITIE B/ 2 RARATIE iR 10 ERE 2 1715 1fEfE
Outstanding on BLR%  Outstanding on i i (A%)
January 1, B BT B84  Forfeited/  December 31, which options  Exercise price
2012 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2012 are exercisable (HK$)
ZETFRA=TH 7,431,625 - (1,171,000 (830,000) - 5,430,625 —ETRFRA=THE 9.20
May 20, 2004 —E—MNFERATNAB
May 20, 2005 to
May 19, 2014
—ETRFNA—H 500,000 - - (500,000) - - —ETRFNA—HZE 12.35
September 1, 2005 —T—RFENA=+—8H
September 1, 2006 to
August 31, 2015
ZETRF 10,534,000 - (1,564,000) (4,200,000) - 4,770,000 —ZTT+F+—A+MAZE 16.75-22.55
+—A+mA —E—tEEF=A+N\H
ETTTLF November 14, 2007 to
=ZA+NHE March 18, 2017
November 14, 2006 to
March 19, 2007
ZEZHENR 59,908,000 - (1,041,000) (13,650,000) (921,000 44,296,000 —TTN\FNA=+—HE 17.36-27.90
—t+—R% —T-N\F+=ZA=+H
—TEN\F August 21, 2008 to
+=-—A=+—H~ December 30, 2018
August 21, 2007 to
December 31, 2008
—E-TF-ANBE 21,450,000 - (20,0000  (7,450,000)  (200,000) 13,780,000 ZE-ZHFZRANE 2646-27.27
ZE-FFRA—H ZECTFRA=1+—H
February 8, 2010 to February 8, 2012 to
June 1, 2010 May 31, 2020
ZE-TF LR 46,650,000 - - (6,000,000) (2,260,000) 38,390,000 —ET——FtA=-+ANHZE 30.79-36.90
—t+hRZE —T-—FA+=A
—=—%F July 29, 2012 to
~A+=H June 12, 2021
July 29, 2010 to
June 13, 2011
—E——F+=AtH 1,350,000 - - - - 1,350,000 —E-=F+-A+tAZE 2410
December 7, 2011 —E-—F+-FXH
December 7, 2013 to
December 6, 2021
45T Total 147,823,625 - (3,796,000) (32,630,000) (3,381,000 108,016,625
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)

All the above options may vest after one to five years of the grant date

and are exercisable up to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant,

after which they will lapse.

M

Movements in the number of share options of HLP
outstanding and their related weighted average exercise

ZENT ¢ prices are as follows:
BE_®-——F gE-—T——%
+=—HA=+—HLEE +=ZRA=+—HI1t~EA
Year ended December 31, 2012 Six months ended December 31, 2011
R hniE
947 fEMH FITE(E
(GEH) (B¥)
Weighted Weighted ig%)
average average N E
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
(HK$) options (HK$) options
»—A—B/tA—8 Outstanding at January 1/July 1 24.34 147,823,625 24.28 149,445,500
AR T
B Granted - - 24.10 1,350,000
217 Exercised 12.92 (3,796,000) 16.58 (955,875)
28 Cancelled 23.16 (32,630,000) - -
B2/ B R Forfeited/Lapsed 27.61 (3,381,000) 23.53 (2,016,000)
®+=-—A=+—H Outstanding at December 31 24.89 108,016,625 24.34 147,823,625
CESEaLd
R+—-—A=+—8 Exercisable at December 31 21.06 40,141,525 19.60 42,042,225
AT

F IR A D HRAE -

F/HR - ARREENELTEFHMAL
RETTEERBE 2 RMDHE - REAR
BITEZ RN EEZZMRETERRZ
AT EE M E PR ER -+ AT
A=A -

RERITEZ B PETEE B 2 BEH
ENETFERER -+ /T NAA— -

No share options were granted during the year.

No share options of HLP were exercised by the directors in the period of

their employment as directors of the Company during the year/period.

The weighted average closing price of the shares of HLP immediately

before the dates of exercise by the employees during the year was

$28.53.

The weighted average share price of HLP at the dates of exercise for

share options during the year was $28.81.
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29
(b)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
Equity compensation benefits (Continued)

(i)  The weighted average remaining contractual life of options
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was 6.4 years
(2011: 7.3 years).

In respect of share options of the Company and of HLP granted
to the directors of the Company and individuals of the five highest
emoluments of the Group, the related charge recognized for the
year ended December 31, 2012, estimated in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy in note 2(v)(2) was as follows:

Mr. Ronnie C. Chan, $28.0 million (P.E. 12/2011: $18.3 million);

Mr. Philip N.L. Chen, $36.2 million (P.E. 12/2011: $19.2 million);

Mr. H.C. Ho, $13.8 million (P.E. 12/2011: $7.1 million);

Mr. William P.Y. Ko, $18.4 million up to his resignation as director
of the Company and HLP on December 12, 2012 (P.E. 12/2011:
$11.3 million) ; and

Mr. Henry T.Y. Yiu, $13.6 million up to his resignation as director
of HLP on December 11, 2012 (P.E. 12/2011: $7.4 million).
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except for the transactions and balances already disclosed elsewhere in
the financial statements, the Group entered into the following related party
transactions during the year/period in its ordinary course of business:

(a) The Group has a 20% interest in a jointly controlled entity which
participated in the development of Package One of the MTRC
Tung Chung Station Development Project. At December 31,
2012, the Group advanced to this jointly controlled entity a total
of $525 million (2011: $631 million). All advances are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(b) Emoluments to directors and key management has been
disclosed in notes 6 and 29(b).

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

Exposure to interest rate, liquidity, credit and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group has policies and
practices approved by management as described below in managing
these risks.

(@) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from deposits with
banks and borrowings issued at floating rates. Interest rate trend
and movements are closely monitored and, if appropriate, existing
borrowings will be replaced with new bank facilities when favorable
In addition, the Group established the

Programme which provides fixed interest rate facilities to the Group

pricing opportunities arise.

and assists the Group to manage its interest rate risk.

The interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities are
disclosed in notes 14, 15, 19 and 22.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(@) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Based on the simulations performed at year end in relation to the
Group’s bank deposits and borrowings, it was estimated that the impact
of a 100 basis-point increase in market interest rates from the rates
applicable at the year end date, with all other variables held constant,
would increase the Group’s profit after taxation and total equity by
approximately $117 million (P.E. 12/2011: decrease the Group’s profit
after taxation and total equity by approximately $17 million).

This analysis is based on a hypothetical situation, as in practice market
interest rates rarely change in isolation, and should not be considered
a projection of likely future profits or losses. The analysis assumes the
following:

= changes in market interest rates affect the interest income and
interest expenses of floating rate financial instruments and bank

borrowings; and

all other financial assets and liabilities are held constant.
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31 BIEMEEEZEREEw 31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) REBEEREME (b) Liquidity risk

AEBEEEEREFEEAQNRLEN  The Group manages its surplus cash centrally and the liquidity risk of

EBARZRBBHESERHESRS 5& the Company and its subsidiaries at the corporate level. The objective

REAZ M Z2EESREEZIRITR s to ensure that an adequate amount of cash and committed bank

& UENHEZHES 2T - AEEE  facilties are available to meet all funding requirements. Significant

BRRIKBEZEEEEREAIFESSER  flexibiity is maintained through diverse sources of committed credit

it UNEBRGETER 2 e KEIE - lines to respond to unforeseeable opportunities and events.

BRRMRBERE

Contractual undiscounted cash flow

—EWFA ZERFA
BREE Between  Between HAFMNE
e e Carrying 1and 2 2and 5 Over
LAY BEETAE in HK$ million amount years years 5 years

IRITERREMEE Bank loans and

other borrowings 37,645 43,679 2,128 2,326 28,726 10,499
JEAST BRI EoAth FE ST RR Trade and other payables 5,240 5,240 3,913 773 465 89
R=ZZE——F+=-H=+—H AtDecember 31,2012 42,885 48,919 6,041 3,099 29,191 10,588

EHRTRBERE
Contractual undiscounted cash flow

BREE —% KR  Between Between

. Carrying Within 1and 2 2and 5

JCAT = in HK$ million amount 1 year years years

BITERRAMEE Bank loans and
other borrowings 27,694 30,075 5,884 1,828 19,888 2,475
JE A~ BR R I EL A FE AT 35K Trade and other payables 4,134 4,137 2,964 700 421 52
W=—ZT——F+=-H=+—H AtDecember 31, 2011 31,828 34,212 8,848 2,528 20,309 2,527
() EERB (c) Credit risk

AEBZEERBEZREEUWEZRETF  The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables and
REZERTMNRTEESBEE 2T K deposits and bonds held with reputable banks and financial institutions.
B o
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

[t maintains a defined credit policy including stringent credit evaluation on
and payment of a rental deposit from tenants. Proceeds from property
sales are receivable pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements. In addition to the payment of rental deposits, tenants
are required to pay monthly rents in respect of leased properties in
advance. Except for sale of properties developed by the Group, it does
not hold any collateral over the receivables. Receivables are regularly
reviewed and closely monitored to minimize any associated crediit risk.

The Group does not engage in any derivative transactions. Surplus cash
is placed with reputable banks and financial institutions in accordance
with pre-determined limits based on credit ratings and other factors to
minimize concentration risk.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set out in
note 27, the Group does not provide any other guarantee which would
expose the Group or the Company to material credit risk.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

(d) Currency risk

Currency risk arises when recognized assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
Group’s entities to which they related. The Group maintains certain
bank deposits denominated in United States dollars amounting to
US$143 million (2011: US$149 million) and 10-year bonds amounting
to US$500 million (2011: $Nil). Given that Hong Kong dollars are
pegged to United States dollars, the resulting currency risk on such
deposits is considered insignificant.

HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

The Group also engaged in property development and investments in
mainland China through its local subsidiaries whose net assets are exposed
to currency risk. In addition, the Group holds Renminbi deposits and bonds
to meet its ongoing payment obligations in relation to its development
projects in mainland China which is denominated in Renminbi. Where
appropriate, the Group seeks to minimize its exposure to currency risk in
mainland China through borrowings denominated in Renminbi.

Management estimated that a 1% appreciation/depreciation of
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar would not have a material effect
on the Group’s profit after taxation and the Group’s equity attributable
to shareholders would be increased/decreased by $450 million (P.E.
12/2011: $362 million).

The above analysis has been determined assuming that the change in
foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

(e) Fair value

The fair values of the listed investments of the Group are measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments which are categorized as level 1 defined in accordance with
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures. During the year/period,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements between levels.

The fair values of held-to-maturity instruments, unlisted investments,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, cash and
deposits with banks, bank loans and other borrowings are considered
approximate to their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.
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32 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 29(b) contains information about the assumptions and their risk
relating to fair value of share options granted. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Valuation of investment properties and investment properties
under development

The investment properties and investment properties under
development of the Group were revalued at end of the reporting period
by independent professionally qualified valuers on a market value basis.
For the completed investment properties, the valuers have valued such
properties with reference to market evidence taking into account the
rental income of the properties. The assumptions adopted are based
on the market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period,
with reference to current market sale prices for similar properties in the
same location and condition and the appropriate capitalization rate.
For the investment properties under development, the valuers have
valued such properties as if they were completed in accordance with
the relevant development plan allowing for any future construction and
other relevant costs required for completion of the development, and
where appropriate, by reference to the comparable market sale and

purchase transactions.

(b)  Properties held for sale

The Group determines the net realizable value of unsold properties
based on estimation of future selling price less costs to be incurred
in relation to the sale, with reference to the prevailing market data and
market survey reports available from independent property valuers.

(c) Impairment of assets

The Group tests regularly whether goodwill and other assets that have
indefinite useful lives have suffered any impairment. Other assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined using fair value
less costs to sell or value-in-use calculations as appropriate. These
calculations require the use of estimates.
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32 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(d) Income taxes

There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business
and judgment is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

(e)  Recognition of deferred tax assets

The amount of the deferred tax assets included in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group is recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences and unused tax losses can
be utilized. The recognition of deferred tax assets requires the Group
to make judgments or based on the assessment of future financial
performance, the amount of future taxable profits and the timing of
when these will be realized.
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33 ETBER 2 RRKE 33 FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

BE_E——H+-_A=+—HI=FE " The Group has not early applied the following amendments, new
AEEWEIZEFAHE BTN A S  standards or interpretations which have been issued by the HKICPA
et AR AR ZEE] ~ FER|s AR - 58 but are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2012. The
FLATER] « ER|SZREY T2 % AREE  adoption of the following amendments or standards will not result in

B HRTGRERES -

substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

AT B H#ak bAR
FthZ ST HIR AR

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKAS 1(18514) BT IRR N 2 —E——F#+A—H
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Financial Statements July 1, 2012
HKAS 19(4¢ 5 3T) EEREH —E—=%—A—H
HKAS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits January 1, 2013
HKAS 27 (2011) B Bk —T—=%—-A—H
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements January 1, 2013
HKAS 28 BN R A E R AR —E-—=%—HA—H
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures January 1, 2013

2009-2011 & HKFRSs 27| 2 & € v —E-=%—-H—H

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle January 1, 2013
HKFRS 7 (£&4£37) TRIA: K#E —HiFenEERERAE —T—=F—A—H

HKFRS 7 (Amended)

Financial instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

January 1, 2013

HKFRS 10 ra g mE —E—=%—-A—H
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements January 1, 2013
HKFRS 11 BE & ik —E—=%—A—H
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 1, 2013
HKFRS 12 H i E Ak s B 5E —Z-=%——H
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities January 1, 2013
HKFRS 13 ~YHEZ EF —E-=%—A—H
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement January 1, 2013
HKAS 32(44E5T) LRITA: 27 —EiFeRmEERSREBE —E-NFE—-H—H

HKAS 32 (Amended)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9

Financial instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

TRIE
Financial Instruments

January 1, 2014

—E-RF—H—H
January 1, 2015
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34 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on January 31, 2013.

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
At December 31, 2012

35 FEHE AT
R—ZE——%+-_A=+—H

NG
Company

BEETRA
(B¥)

Issued
Share Capital
(HK$)

SE P
EmBADL
% Held by
The Group

NPT
ERA DL
% Held by
The Company

7%
Activity

EERiliipAva
NS,
Place of
Incorporation
and Operations

Akihiro Company Limited 2 100 100 MEERLES B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
Antonis Limited* 10,000 50.7 - LIEZIEN= BE
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP City Limited 2 50.7 - mEEE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Joy Limited 2 50.7 - MEERIEE BB
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
AP Properties Limited MEERLES B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
[Al B 34 50.7 -
‘A’ shares
(B A& 6 50.7 _
‘B’ shares
AP Star Limited* 2 50.7 - ERRARE BB
Investment holding Hong Kong
AP Success Limited 2 50.7 - MERE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Universal Limited* 2 50.7 - LIEZIEN= aBE
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Win Limited* 1,000,000 50.7 - MERE BE
Property leasing Hong Kong
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35 TEMBE AT @
RZE——F+-_A=+—H

NG|
Company

AP World Limited
Bayliner Investment Ltd.*

Believecity Limited*

Bonna Estates Company Limited
EBOERRAA
Caddo Enterprises, Limited*

Cititop Limited

Cokage Limited*
BEHERARAT
Country Bond Development Limited

[A] &
‘A’ shares

[B] B

‘B’ shares

BEEEARAT
Country First Enterprises Limited

B ERRANT
Country Link Enterprises Limited
Crest Incorporated*

Curicao Company Limited*

Dokay Limited*

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
At December 31, 2012

BETRA
(P SE T
Issued  EmB DL
Share Capital % Held by
The Group
2 50.7
137T 100
US$1
2 100
1,000,000 50.7
4,000,000 50.7
2 50.7
2 100
990 50.5
1 50.7
2 100
5,000,000 55.5
LE 100
Uss$2
2 100
2 50.7

NIl
B A DL
% Held by
The Company

100

100

%%
Activity

LY

Property development

ERIRE

Investment holding

ERKRERESEE
Investment holding &
securities trading

MEHE
Property leasing

MEEE
Property leasing

MEERLEE

Property development

& leasing

ZRIRE
Investment holding

ERIRE
Investment holding

ERIRE
Investment holding

ERRE

Investment holding

ERIRE

Investment holding

ERIRE

Investment holding

MmEEE
Property leasing

EERiliinAva

R S B
Place of
Incorporation
and Operations

B
Hong Kong

EEEMRES
British Virgin Islands

HE
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

EHE
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

RBERMRES
British Virgin Islands

HE
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong
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35 TEMBE AT @ 35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

R-—ZE——F+—-A=+—H At December 31, 2012
BETRA SR
(B¥) SBFTR A S R S B
Issued HEmBDLL EmADL Place of
N Share Capital % Held by % Held by ES 3 Incorporation
Company (HKS) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
Dynamia Company Limited 2 100 100 MEBRREE B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
BEERER AT ERIRE BB
Ease Smart Development Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
[A] R 1 100 -
‘A’ shares
(Bl A 1 50.7 -
‘B’ shares
BEEEARAT 2 50.7 - ERIZE BB
Easegood Enterprises Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BRRIRERR AT 2 100 100 ERRE BE
Ever Brilliant Investment Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Folabs Limited* 2 100 - MEHE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Fu Yik Company Limited* 3 50.7 - MEHE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
EXBRAF 2 50.7 - ERIEE BB
Gala Ruby Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong
BREXRRAR" 2 100 100 MEHE BE
Glory View Properties Limited* Property leasing Hong Kong
Gowily Limited 2 50.7 - MERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Grand Centre Limited 4 50.7 - MEHE )
Property leasing Hong Kong
Grand Hotel Group Limited 10,200 50.7 - R EELER B
B Hong Kong
Apartment operating &
management
BEBEREARAF ERIRE BB
Grand Hotel Holdings Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
[Alf& 62,163,123 50.7 -
‘A’ shares
(B & 6,000,000 50.7 -
‘B’ shares

207



BA TSR PMIEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 TEMBE AT @
RZZE——F+-_A=+—H

NG|
Company

BEEERARAA
Great Cheer Development Limited

Hang Chui Company Limited
Hang Far Company Limited*

BIRERAF
Hang Fine Company Limited

Hang Kwok Company Limited*

Bl (1T BRAR
Hang Lung (Administration) Limited

B2 (PE)BRAF
Hang Lung (China) Limited

Bl (KE)BRAR
Hang Lung (Dalian) Limited

BEAXARAT"

Hang Lung Enterprises Limited*

BlEGBERARAR

Hang Lung Financial Services Limited

BEEKRERRAR"
Hang Lung Investments Limited*

BEOIE)BRAF)
Hang Lung (Jiangsu) Limited

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2012

BRI
(%)
Issued

Share Capital
(HK$)

200

10,000

10,000

SBFTR
AN
% Held by
The Group

100

50.7

50.7

50.7

50.7

50.7

100

50.7

100

100

100

50.7

NIl
B A DL
% Held by
The Company

100

100

100

100

100

%%
Activity

LY

Property development

MEHE
Property leasing

ERIRE
Investment holding

MERE
Property leasing

MEHE
Property leasing

B PR

Management services

ZRIRE
Investment holding

ERRE

Investment holding

ERRE

Investment holding

15

Financial services

ERIRE
Investment holding

ERRE

Investment holding

EEaiifavA

R S B
Place of
Incorporation
and Operations

B
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

EHE
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong
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35 TEMBE AT @
RZZE——F+-_A=+—H

BETRA
(%)
Issued
NI Share Capital
Company (HK$)
Bl (Em)BRAR 1
Hang Lung (Jinan) Limited
BE(RH)BRIFR 1
Hang Lung (Kunming) Limited
151 (R %) BRA A 1
Hang Lung (Liaoning) Limited
B2 (&S )BRAF) 2
Hang Lung (Shenyang) Limited
Bl (RE)BRAR 2
Hang Lung (Tianjin) Limited
B (EH)BRAR 1
Hang Lung (Wuxi) Limited
Hang Lung Park-In Limited 2
BETEREERAR" 10,000
Hang Lung Project Management Limited*
BEMERR AT 4,476,566,045
Hang Lung Properties Limited
ERYMESEARAE" 100,000
Hang Lung Property Management
Limited*
BEMEREAR AR 2

Hang Lung Real Estate Agency Limited*

BEEERERR AR 2
Hang Lung Treasury Limited

SBFTR
AN
% Held by
The Group

50.7

50.7

50.7

50.7

50.7

50.7

50.7

50.7

50.7

50.7

50.7

100

NIl
B A DL
% Held by
The Company

100

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
At December 31, 2012

%%
Activity

ERRE

Investment holding

2R E

Investment holding

ERIRE
Investment holding

ERIRE
Investment holding

ERRE

Investment holding

ERIRE

Investment holding

mEEE
Property leasing

IRIERER
Project management

ERRE

Investment holding

MEER

Property management

ES AW LE

Property agencies

15

Financial services

EERiliinAva

R S B
Place of
Incorporation
and Operations

B
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

EHE
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

EHE
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong
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35 FEMBAT @ 35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
R-—ZE——F+—-A=+—H At December 31, 2012

BEFIRA SEMAR
(%) SBFTR DEFFF AR
Issued EmBEDL EmADL Place of
AN Share Capital % Held by % Held by Ei Incorporation
Company (HKS) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
Hang Wise Company Limited* 200 100 100 YEHRE aBE
Property leasing Hong Kong
Hantak Limited 2 100 100 PRI E 50
Investment holding Hong Kong
Hebo Limited 2 100 100 MEERE B
Property development Hong Kong
HL Enterprises Limited* 2 100 100 RIS E BB
Investment holding Hong Kong
BERB(ELE)BRRF" 2 100 100 B 75 B
HL Mortgage (HTG) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
BEEB(HER)BRAR" 2 100 100 817 BE
HL Mortgage (NH) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
BERB(REZE)BRAR" 2 100 100 B HE
HL Mortgage (NP) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
B zE (R ) BR AR 2 50.7 - BRI E HE
HLP (China) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
HLP Finance Limited* 1€ 50.7 - 8175 EEERRES
US$1 Financial services British Virgin Islands
BEMENFEEERAF AR TT 50.7 - 817 BE
HLP Financial Services Limited RMB1 Financial services Hong Kong
HLP Fortune Limited 1 50.7 - MEERE HE
Property development Hong Kong
BlEmERERRAA 2 50.7 - BF 75 BB
HLP Treasury Limited Financial services Hong Kong
HLP Treasury Services Limited* 2 50.7 - TRRIGE BE
Investment holding Hong Kong
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35 TEMBE AT @ 35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

R-ZE——F+=-HA=+—H At December 31, 2012
BETRA SRS
(%) S B PrET A S R S B
Issued EmEDL EmADL Place of
NG| Share Capital % Held by % Held by E 3 Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
Hoi Sang Limited* 2 50.7 - R E B
Investment holding Hong Kong
Kindstock Limited* 2 100 - 2R E BB
Investment holding Hong Kong
SHBRAR" 1,000,002 50.7 - MERE &
Lockoo Limited* Property development Hong Kong
BEERERRAF 10,000 100 - ERIRE B
Luckyson Investments Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
R ¥ig s (B R5e ) BR AR 20 89.7 - g HE
Lungsun Mortgage (PV) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
Magic Modern International Limited * 1 50.7 - EE B
Advertising Hong Kong
Mansita Limited* 2 50.7 - LIEZiEN= BE
Property leasing Hong Kong
Modalton Limited 2 50.7 - MEEE BE
Property leasing Hong Kong
Monafat Limited* 2 50.7 - YERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
HEERAF 2 100 - MEHE HE
Nikco Limited Property leasing Hong Kong
BRI ERRAR 10,000 100 - MEEE HE
Ocean Time Investments Limited* Property leasing Hong Kong
Palex Limited* 2 50.7 - MEEE BE
Property leasing Hong Kong
Paradot Limited* 2 100 100 MEERE BB
Property development Hong Kong
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35 TEMBE AT @
RZE——F+-_A=+—H

NG|

Company

Pocaliton Limited

Promax Limited
BHRARAF

Prosperland Housing Limited
Purotat Limited*

Rago Star Limited

Rioloy Limited

Scotat Limited

FXEBEXERAT
Stanman Properties Limited

Stooket Limited

Style Giant Limited

EBRERARAA"

Success Cosmos Development Limited*
Tegraton Limited

Topnic Limited

Velan Limited*

BEBEXBRAR"

Wai Luen Investment Company, Limited*

Yangli Limited*

BREZERRAR
Yee Fly Investment Limited*

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2012

BEHITRA

(P
Issued

Share Capital

(HK$)

1,560,000

20

100,000

1,000

SBFTR
BmADL
% Held by
The Group

50.7

89.7

100

100

50.7

50.7

89.7

100

50.7

89.7

100

50.7

100

100

50.7

50.7

100

NIl
ERA DL
% Held by
The Company

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

%%
Activity

MEHE
Property leasing

EELIE

Property development

ERIRE
Investment holding

ERIRE
Investment holding

MEHE
Property leasing

MEHE
Property leasing

ZRIRE
Investment holding

MEERIEE
Property development
& leasing

mEEE
Property leasing

MR
Property development

LY

Property development

MEEE
Property leasing
mEBE
Property leasing

UE L3

Property development

MEHE
Property leasing

MEHE
Property leasing

ERRENESEE
Investment holding &
securities trading

EERiliinAva

R S B
Place of
Incorporation
and Operations

B
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

HB
Hong Kong
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35 TEMBE AT @
RZZE——F+-_A=+—H

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
At December 31, 2012

EEalii D ava
\ SEFTRE NCIliESS S SE
FREIRtNE A @B EmBE DL Place of
Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprises AfER % Held by % Held by £ Incorporation
in mainland China Registered Capital  The Group  The Company Activity  and Operations
RiEEE I EFR AR ARH2,956,877,355 7T 50.7 - MEER A g
Dalian Hang Lung RMB2,956,877,355 Property development  Mainland China
Properties Ltd.
ERBRAMEFRAR & 4,660,000,000 7T 50.7 - MR FEl A
Kunming Hang Ying HK$4,660,000,000 Property development  Mainland China
Properties Ltd.
HEEEEERRAR AR #5,073,996,324 7T 50.7 - MEEREEE AR A3
Liaoning Hang Lung RMB5,073,996,324 Property development ~ Mainland China
Properties Ltd. & leasing
IR BEERR AR 385,000,000 7T, 50.7 - MEERMEE FEl A,
Shandong Hang Lung US$385,000,000 Property development  Mainland China
Properties Ltd. & leasing
B EEERRAR) 349,990,000 7T 50.7 - mEERLEE leiaai
Shenyang Hang Lung US$349,990,000 Property development ~ Mainland China
Properties Ltd. & leasing
REERE M EGR AR 75 2,420,000,000 7T 50.7 - MEER A g
Tianjin Hang Lung HK$2,420,000,000 Property development  Mainland China
Properties Ltd.
i BREMAEFR AR AR#3,020,746,261 7T 50.7 - MR A El A
Wuxi Hang Lung RMB3,020,746,261 Property development  Mainland China
Properties Ltd.
mpERMAEFR AR 75 509,000,000 7T 50.7 - MR FEl A
Wuxi Hang Ying HK$509,000,000 Property development ~ Mainland China
Properties Ltd.
\ SEMA L
ERIIE- N NCIBIES PE—E i1k
(%7T) BmBE DL Place of
FERtR NG B Registered Capital % Held by % Held by Ei) Incorporation
Equity Joint Venture in mainland China (US$) TheGroup The Company Activity  and Operations
PRlEREmEREERAR 167,004,736 50.1 - mEERLEE aleia:i
Shanghai Hang Bond Property Property development  Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd. & leasing
bBEEREmERR AT 17,766,000 70 - MR FEI A
Shanghai Heng Cheng Real Estate Property development  Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd.
EeBEREMEREERAR 165,000,000 52.2 - MERRREE FEl A,
Shanghai Kong Hui Property Property development  Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd. &leasing

# Operated in Hong Kong
* Not audited by KPMG

tERBRE
© JERESH G AN EAER

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries of the Group which in

ERINHEZRAR/YARE EN R E
EREATVEZTEMBART -

the opinion of the directors, principally affect the profit and assets of
the Group.
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36 FESELNT 36 PRINCIPAL JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
R-ZE——F+_A=+—H At December 31, 2012
BETRA SR
(%) L ies DEFFF I FE I B
Issued EmEDL EmADL Place of
Share Capital % Held by % Held by Ed Incorporation
Company (HKS) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
HEERBR AR 400 25 - MEHEE B
Daily Win Development Limited Property leasing Hong Kong
BERE(KE)ERAR 2 50 - g BE
Hang Hing Mortgage (TH) Financial services Hong Kong
Limited
BEAFEARRAT 519,000 50 - B ROER IR HE
Hang Lung-Hakuyosha Dry Dry and laundry cleaning Hong Kong
Cleaning Limited
Newfoundworld Finance 100,000 20 - 7% BE
Limited Financial services Hong Kong
Newfoundworld Holdings 2,000,000 20 - ZERIEE B
Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Newfoundworld Investment 17T 20 - PRI & EBERARHS
Holdings Limited US$1 Investment holding British Virgin Islands
Newfoundworld Limited 2,000,000 20 - YRR BA
Property development Hong Kong
Pure Jade Limited 1,000 20 - YEER BA
Property development Hong Kong
ERERERAR 3 16.9 - MELE B
Star Play Development Limited Property leasing Hong Kong

FHARW IS RS SR EEATE % ©  The above companies are not audited by KPMG.
FRINEEERRAHAEER T EE  The above list gives the principal jointly controlled entities of the Group

ERBERFEZEESGERA] - which in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the profit and
assets of the Group.
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THFMFELE TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

—Z HEXNA=THILFE
+=A For the years ended June 30
Jan - Dec
2012 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
in HK$ million
(unless otherwise stated)
HEE Total assets 182,903 163,088 155367 126512 98676 93489 76222 66,508 58704 52,004
REWHE Investment properties 106,102 101,833 94,003 88,633 69,958 66,136 52,539 43,753 39,370 32,227
HeEmE Properties for sale
-2 - Completed 4,843 5158 5089 5086 6954 6805 9,706 10215 10,757 7,078
- #EH — Under development 1,296 987 905 800 760 43 41 - - 5018
e MIRTTIER Cash and deposits with banks 40,183 26,149 28274 11,852 9,632 10,738 7,092 6,189 3,734 1,959
HmefE Total liabilities 53,288 41920 35170 24,167 19907 21432 17,733 20,182 14738 17,538
SRITER K Bank loans and

HinfEs other borrowings 37,645 27,694 20901 10,790 9,966 9,040 8482 11,787 6397 11,319
FERE Floating rate notes - - - - 1500 1500 1500 1500 1,500 540
IR Shareholders’ equity 65224 60,510 58972 52973 40,640 36782 29,095 25013 22,839 18,829
EEFEBEE Net assets (including

SRR D) non-controlling interests) 129,615 121,168 120,197 102,345 78,769 72,057 58489 46,326 43,966 34,466
g2 Turnover 7,986 3361 5714 12580 4,696 10553 4,778 4200 7,472 5449
BRERFE(L AR Net profit attributable to

shareholders 5,262 1578 3529 13,139 2559 7,516 4,786 2,833 4,644 2544
B4R (MEE2)  Underlying net profit (Note 2) 3,564 1,000 1,733 3695 1454 2555 1,996 950 1,869 987
) Dividends 1,066 512 1,025 1,017 941 941 813 739 725 637
sRER Per share data
&7 Earnings

-EA ~ Basic $390 $117 $262 $983 $192 $564 $359 $213 $350 $1.92

- - Diluted $387 $116 $260 $971 $190 $556 $356 $211 $348  $1.91
EAZEF(KMFE2)  Underlying eamings (Note 2)

- &R —Basic $264  $074 $129 $276 $1.09 $192 $150 $071  $141  $074

-4 - Diluted $262 $074 $128 $273 $1.08 $189 $148 $071  $140 $074
i858 Dividends

- ~ Interim 19¢ - 19¢ 19¢ 165¢ 165¢ 145¢ 145¢ 145¢ 12¢

- R — Final 60 ¢ 38¢ 57 ¢ 57 ¢ 54 ¢ 54¢  465¢ 41¢ 40¢ 36¢

- 25/H) — Total for the year/period 79¢ 38¢ 76¢ 76¢ 705¢ 705¢ 61¢ 555¢ 545¢ 48¢
&SRR (MP3E3)  Shareholders’ equity (Note 3) $483  $449 $437 $396 $305 $276 $21.8 $188 $172 $142
BEFEBIEIE  Netassets (ncluding non-

SeRERs) (ff3E8)  controling interests) (Note 3) $960 $899 $892 $764 $590 $540 $439 $348 $33.1 $260
BER(HEE) Gearing ratio (Note 4) 0% 1% 0% 0% 3%  04% 6% 14% 10% 24%
RE = Pay-out ratio 20% 32% 29% 8% 37% 13% 17% 26% 16% 25%
EXREEE Underlying pay-out

(BiHEE2) ratio (Note 2) 30% 51% 59% 28% 65% 37% 41% 78% 39% 65%
BRITRH Number of shares

(HER) issued (in million) 1,350 1348 1,348 1,339 1334 1,334 1,334 1332 1328 1,328

BiaE Notes:

1. RZFB——F+—A EFSRERAEEZHRFE
FHEARNAZTRERA T —A=+t—R - Bt * K
SEZHBHRAR T ——F LA —HAE+=A=1—

BLERER -

2. RIS AEELERENIER - il EALR - 5
A KK B R E MBI A R R ERTREDE

ZAFERE R EA RN IR MR E R

3. RENHHE R 2R RER/AEFEREBITIRE -

=
VR o

4. BERFEREREINFEIR Z LR o FERIERT
BERREMER FERBRBEROAE  HRHAE

FARITIEAR o BRHE BB FE RS SR i it B SRR AR A 2 o

1.

In November 2011, the Board of Directors approved the change of the Group’s financial year
end date from June 30 to December 31. Thus, the Group has a six-month financial period
from July 1 to December 31, 2011.

. To facilitate better understanding of the Group’s operational results, the underlying net profit,

earnings per share and pay-out ratio are presented by excluding the effect of changes in fair
value of investment properties and investment properties under development and their related
deferred tax and non-controlling interests.

. Based on shareholders’ equity/net assets divided by number of shares outstanding at the

end of the reporting period.

. Gearing ratio represents net debt over equity plus net debt. Net debt represents bank

loans and other borrowings, floating rate notes and finance lease obligations, less cash and
deposits with banks. Equity comprises shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests.
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A A& CORPORATE INFORMATION

e

PR (2ER)

BRHEB (mErse)”

PRED 4k (ZFmirm)

PR ko #

BOESY sxmEE - OBE - A Fat"
PR 4+

B8 OBE - A FHL*

BEAS

tosrTEE
* BUHBITEE

DIRECTORS

Ronnie C. Chan (Chairman)
S.S.Yin (Vice Cha/rman)*

Phi|ip N.L. Chen (Managing Director)
Gerald L. Chan?

H.K. Cheng GBs, 0BE, JP*

Laura L.Y. Chen*

Simon S.O. Ip c¢BE, JP*

H.C. Ho

# Non-Executive Director
* Independent Non-Executive Director

ERLET
BT OBE - A Bl (F/E)
B8 222  OBE - AF#+

R4

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Simon S.O. Ip CBE, JP (Chairman)
H.K. Cheng GBs, 0OBE, JP
Laura L.Y. Chen

RENMNTHNEESD
B s xm2E OBE - AFHE(LE)

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

H.K. Cheng GBs, 0BE, JP (Chairman)

FRa)s Laura L.Y. Chen

BIH% oBE - kTt Simon S.0. Ip ¢sE P

RIEREK AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
PR EE 4% Philip N.L. Chen

B SN Bella P.L. Chhoa

NAERE COMPANY SECRETARY

BBy Bella P.L. Chhoa

R REGISTERED OFFICE

BERIREEE IO
BITIRITRE- TN\
BaE 0 28790111
{EE : 2868 6086

28th Floor, Standard Chartered Bank Building
4 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel : 28790111

Fax : 2868 6086

B B8 A
#34E ¢ http://www.hanglunggroup.com
BIEHUE + HLGroup@hanglung.com

INTERNET ADDRESS

Website: http://www.hanglunggroup.com
Email address: HLGroup@hanglung.com

Z 2R
R e
BE B

AUDITOR
KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
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EHER LISTING INFORMATION

M=F—=F+=H=+—H At December 31, 2012

1,349,593,242 Iz F IR EEEHE 1.007T 1,349,593,242 shares of HK$1.00 each listed on

EEEBAERZMER AT L2 km The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

PRAD AR STOCK CODE

BABMERZA Hong Kong Stock Exchange 00010

it Reuters 0010.HK

EAE] Bloomberg 10HK
BFEEEML(KRD) BOARD LOT SIZE (SHARE) 1,000
EHFETES AMERICAN DEPOSITARY RECEIPT
E—RRBEEERS) Sponsored Level-1 (Over the Counter)

BEHRBG R, ZIERR CUSIP Number/Ticker Symbol 41043E102/HNLGY

%Eu%ﬁ%%ﬂﬂxf s =S ADR: Underlying Share Ratio 1:5

FaER1T « AAIEEIRTT Depositary Bank: The Bank of New York Mellon

ki Website: http://www.adrbnymellon.com
REBF K& SHARE REGISTRARS

BEBPRFHEZLBRA Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

%f/%/i*if?z}ﬁj(ﬁﬁ—ﬁ)\JrE?)ﬁ 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre

AMFALTEME 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

B Tel: 2862 8555

B8R : Fax: 2865 0990

WE E BRERAS INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

A A= C.F. Kwan

BEHAL Email address: ir@hanglung.com

D & SHARE INFORMATION

A% (& Price % {8 Price

Fe &K B A Bam  &IE& FE R

High Low Total Trading Volume High Low Total Trading Volume

B OB Rt gk B (FR) B OB g8 (FAR)

HK$  HK$  Number of Shares ('000) HK$  HK$  Number of Shares ('000)
2012 2011
% —2 First quarter 54.95 42.60 40,513 | & —2 First quarter 54.95 44.00 47,270
2% —Z Second quarter 51.75 43.65 26,846 | £ —Z Second quarter 54.70 46.40 54,591
2 =7 Third quarter 51.75 45.80 22,595 | 285=7F Third quarter 51.80 37.95 49,374
22 P9Z Fourth quarter 51.00 41.80 203,636 | ZPHZE Fourth quarter 49.80 36.20 53,660
R-ZB—-H+-A=+—HZRE: B¥44.05T | R=FE——F+-A=+—HZRE: #4255
Share Price as at December 31, 2012: HK$44.05 | Share Price as at December 31, 2011: HK$42.55
REB—=-HF+ZA=+—HZWE: B¥545FT | R=F——F+=-A=t+—H2ZWE: B 573.8ET
Market Capitalization as at December 31, 2012: HK$59.45 billion | Market Capitalization as at December 31, 2011: HK$57.38 billion
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